I1.

III.

IV.

VI.

Buildings & Grounds Committee

Tuesday, October 31, 2023 4PM
40 McMaster Street, Ballston Spa, NY

Chair: Matthew Veitch
Members: Philip Barrett, Eric Connolly, Diana Edwards, John
Lant, Scott Ostrander (vc), Mike Smith

Agenda

Welcome and Attendance
Approval of the minutes of the September 5, 2023 meeting

Awarding the Animal Shelter HVAC Phase 1 construction contracts to John W.
Danforth Company, DiGesare Mechanical, Inc., and B&B Premier Contracting,
LLC- Chad Cooke, Public Works

Authorizing a lease renewal with Railroad Place Partners, LP for Supreme Court
Chambers — Chad Cooke, Public Works

Other Business

Adjournment

To view the webcast live or once recorded, go to https://www.saratogacountyny.gov/meetings/2023-meetings



https://www.saratogacountyny.gov/meetings/2022-meetings/

SARATOGA COUNTY
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM

TO: Steve Bulger, County Administrator
Ridge Harris, Deputy County Administrator
Michelle Granger, County Attorney
Therese Connolly, Clerk of the Board
Stephanie Hodgson, Director of Budget

CC: John Warmt, Director of Purchasing
Jason Kemper, Director of Planning and Economic Development
Bridget Rider, Deputy Clerk of the Board
Matt Rose, Management Analyst

Audra Hedden, County Administrator's Office This column must be completed

prior to submission of the request.

DEPARTMENT: Department of Public Works
DATE: 10/17/23
COMMITTEE: Buildings & Grounds

County Attorney’s Office

1. Is a Resolution Required:
Consulted Yes

Yes, Contract Approval

2. Proposed Resolution Title:

Awarding the Animal Shelter HYAC Phase 1 construction
contracts totaling $1,636,890.

3. Specific Details on what the resolution will authorize:

Awarding the Animal Shelter HYAC Phase 1 construction contracts
totaling $1,636,890. Bid awards are as follows:

Mechanical contract to John W. Danforth Company in the amount of
$1,495,890.

Electrical contract to B&B Premier Contracting, LLC in the amount of
$84,000.

Plumbing contract to DiGesare Mechanical, Inc. in the amount of
$57,000.




4.

Is a Budget Amendment needed: YES or |V [NO County Administrator’s Office
If yes, budget lines and impact must be provided. Consulted

Any budget amendments must have equal and offsetting entries.

Please see attachments for impacted budget lines.
(Use ONLY when more than four lines are impacted.)

Revenue

Account Number Account Name Amount
Expense

Account Number Account Name Amount

Fund Balance (if applicable): (Increase = additional revenue, Decrease = additional expenses)

Amount:

Identify Budget Impact (Required):

No Budget Impact. Funds are included in the Department Budget

a. G/L line impacted

b. Budget year impacted

C. Details



6. Are there Amendments to the Compensation Schedule?

YES or |V [NO (Ifyes, provide details)

Human Resources Consulted

a. Is anew position being created? Y N

Effective date

Salary and grade

b. Is anew employee being hired? Y N

Effective date of employment

Salary and grade
Appointed position:
Term
c. Isthis a reclassification? Y N
Is this position currently vacant? Y N
Is this position in the current year compensation plan? Y N
7. Does this item require the awarding of a contract: |V |Y N

Purchasing Office Consulted
a. Type of Solicitation BID Yes

Specification # (BID/RFP/RFQ/OTHER CONTRACT #)

#23-PWASHAVC-15(M)(P)(E)

c. If a sole source, appropriate documentation, including an updated letter, has been
submitted and approved by Purchasing Department? E Y v IN N/A
d. Vendor information (including contact name):

See Remarks for low bidder vendor informatrion

€. Is the vendor/contractor an LLC, PLLC, or partnership: E|ectrical contractor is an LLC
f. State of vendor/contractor organization: NY

g. Commencement date of contract term: Upon contract execution

h. Termination of contract date: Upon project completion

1. Contract renewal date and term: N/A

k. Is this a renewal agreement: Y |[vIN

l. Vendor/Contractor comment/remarks:



10.

Is a grant being accepted: YES or v |NO

a. Source of grant funding:

b. Agency granting funds:

c. Amount of grant:

d. Purpose grant will be used for:

e. Equipment and/or services being purchased with the grant:
f. Time period grant covers:

g. Amount of county matching funds:

h. Administrative fee to County:

Supporting Documentation:

Marked-up previous resolution

No Markup, per consultation with County Attorney

Information summary memo

Copy of proposal or estimate

Copy of grant award notification and information

V| other COpY Of bids and award recommendation

County Administrator’s Office
Consulted

Remarks:

#23-PWASHAVC-15(M) - $1,495,890 #23-PWASHAVC-15(P) - $57,000

John W. Danforth Company (Ed Halderman)  DiGesare Mechanical, Inc.(Thomas Holmes)
5 Liebeck Lane, Clifton Park, NY 12065 3434 Carman Road, Schenectady, NY 12303

#23-PWASHAVC-15(E) - $84,000
B&B Premier Contracting, LLC (Robert Brady)
10 Ferris St., Hudson Falls, NY




engineeredsolutions

October 23, 2023

Peter Abreu, P.E.

Saratoga County
Department of Public Works
3654 Galway Road

Ballston Spa, NY 12020

Subject: Saratoga County Animal Shelter

Dear Peter;

Engineered Solutions evaluated the bids received on September 28, 2023 for Saratoga
County Animal Shelter which consists of Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing Contract.
Please see the attached for all bidders. The low bidders are as shown below:

Mechanical Contract:
John W. Danforth Company $1,495,890.00

Electrical Contract:
B&B Premier Contracting, LLC $84,000.00

Plumbing Contract:
DiGesare Mechanical, Inc. $57,000.00

At this time, Engineered Solutions, recommends this project be awarded to the above
mentioned companies.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 518-280-2410 x325.

Sincerely,
ENGINEERED SOLUTIONS

Scott C. Swenson, PE
LEED AP

Principal

file

646 Plank Road #104, Clifton Park, NY 12065 « 518.280.2410
www.engineered-solutions.net



FORM OF BID
HVAC MODIFICATIONS — PHASE 1
Saratoga County Animal Shelter
6010 County Farm Read, Ballston Spa, NY

BID #23-PWASHAVC-15(M) — Mechanical Construction

Date: 9/28/23

Bid of John W. Danforth Company (hercinafier called "Bidder™)

organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York

doing business as_John W. Danforth Company

To the County of Saratoga, Ballston Spa, New York (hereinafter called "Owner").

Gentlemen:

The Bidder, in compliance with your invitation for bids for SARATOGA COUNTY ANIMAL SHELTER, and having
examined specifications with refated documents and the site of the proposed project, hereby proposes to furnish all labor,
materials, and supplies, and to complete the project in a timely manner in accordance with the Contract Documents; and at
the prices stated below. These prices are to cover all expenses incurred in performing the work required under the Contract
" Documents, of which this bid is a part.

Bidder agrees to perform all work described in these specifications (as a lump sum) as stated in the following. The bidder
agrees to furnish all labor, equipment, and material necessary for the Saratoga County Animal Shelter based on these
specifications 23-PWASHAVC-15(M) and a review of the site.
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FORM OF BID
HVAC Modifications — Phase 1

BIDDER’S NAME: John W. Danforth Company

Addenda Acknowledgement: Addendum No. Date Received
1 9/20/23

2 9law]23

BASEBID i et $ \ ] Ltqgi qqa

TOTAL WRITTEN AMOUNT:  arg. WMien Seor Wurdied niedy £
Trsarg eAdint Wopteed  Nheedy otiaeg

NOTE: Base bid shall include contract allowance of $35,000 for BID #23-PWASHAVC-15(M) - Mechanical
Construction.

The bidder understands that the Owner reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive any informalities.

The bidder agrees that his bid shall be valid and may not be withdrawn for a period of 45 days after scheduled closing
time for receiving bids,

The bid security attached in the sum of $§ 5% of Base Bid Amount  (in figures)

(in words)

is to become the property of the Owner in the event that contract and bond are not executed within the time set forth, as

liquidated damages for the delay and additional expense to the County caused thereby.
W
Respectiully submitted: SIGNATURE P 4 —

S
NAME & TITLE Eé/ Haldemé’f’l, Vice President

(Seal if bid is by a corporation) COMPANY John W. Danforth Company

ADDRESS 5 Liebich Lane, Clifton Park, NY 12065

FEIN 16-0401910

TELEPHONE 518-400-1600

DATE 928123 FAX N/A

EMAIL ADDRESS ehaldeman@jwdanforth.com
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NON-COLLUSIVE BIDDING CERTIFICATION

Section 103-d of the General Municipal Law

(a) By submission of this bid, each bidder and each person signing on behaif
of any bidder certifies, and, in the case of a joint bid, each party thereto certifies
as to its own organization, under penalty of perjury, that to the best of knowledge
and belief:

(1) The prices in this bid have been arrived at independently without collusion,
consultation, communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting
competition, as to any matter relating to such prices with any other bidder or with
any competitor;

(2) Unless otherwise required by Law, the prices which have been quoted in
this bid have not been knowingty disclosed by the bidderand will not knowingly
be disclosed by the bidder prior to opening, directly or indirectly, to any other
bidder or to any competitor, and

(3) No attempt has been made or will be made by the bidder to induce any
other person, partnership or corporation to submit or not to submit a bid for the
purpose of restricting competition.”

| hereby affirm under the penalties of perjury that the foregoing statements
are tfrue.

Dated: .. September 28, 2023 .

]
/ Jﬂ,’/’; : Ed Haldeman, Vice President
Signatur&—™ Title
STATEOF fJanofor¥ )
) SS:

COUNTYOF E e )
Subscribed to and sworn before me this ﬁ‘day of c_g Z f‘l[ erber ,20 22
by Eﬂ /’b{ ffggm&v\ (name of signer).

“

tary Public KEVIN F, LAURENDI
No. 01LAB346040
Notary Public, State of New York
Qualified in Erie County 14
My Commission Expires 08/08/20, 22




CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH IRAN DIVESTMENT ACT

Pursuant to General Municipal Law §103-g, which generally prohibits the County of Saratoga
from entering into contracts with persons engaged in investment activities in the energy sector of
Iran, the bidder/proposer submits the following certification:

[Please Check One]
BIDDER’S CERTIFICATION

By submission of this bid or proposal, each bidder/proposer and each person signing on
behalf of any bidder/proposer certifies, and in the case of a joint bid each party thereto
certifies as to its own organization, under penalty of perjury, that to the best of its
knowledge and belief, that each bidder/proposer is not on the list created pursuant to
paragraph (b} of subdivision 3 of Section 165-a of the State Finance Law.

[ Tam unable to certify that my name and the name of the bidder/proposer does not appear
on the list created pursuant to paragraph (b) of subdivision 3 of Section 165-a of the State
Finance Law. I have attached a signed statement setting forth in detail why I cannot so
certify.

Dated: September28 20 23

STATE OF Ue}p&éd{)

) ss.:

COUNTY OFFyie. )
The undersigned, being duly sworn, says (a) I am duly authorized to execute this Certification

and (b) I hereby certify, under penalty of perjury, that the forgoing Certification is in all respects
true and accurate. .

-

Signature
Ed Haldeman
Printed Name
Vice President
Title
) .
Subscribed and sworn to before me this ﬁh
day of ,20 ?. 3
f KEVIN F. LAURENDI
Notary Pubfli No, 01LAS346040

Notary Public, State of New York
Qualified in Erie County 2e
My Commission Expires 08/08/20&1
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE FOR THE
PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Pursuant to State Finance Law §139-1 of the State of New York, effective January 1, 2019, where
competitive bidding is required for certain public contracts, every bid must contain the following
statement affirming that the bidder has implemented a written policy addressmng sexual
harassment prevention and that the bidder provides annual sexual harassment prevention
training, which statement must be signed by the bidder and affirmed by such bidder under the

penalty of perjury:
[Please Check Onef
BIDDER’S CERTIFICATION

By submission of this bid, each bidder and each person signing on behalf of any bidder
certifies, and in the case of a joint bid each party thereto certifies as to its own
organization, under penalty of perjury, that the bidder has and has implemented a written
policy addressing sexual harassment prevention in the workplace and provides annual
sexual harassment prevention training to all of its employees. Such policy shall, at a
minimum, meet the requirements of section two hundred one-g of the labor law.

O 1 am unable to certify that I, or my employer, have implemented a written policy
addressing sexual harassment prevention in the workplace. The reason(s) why neither 1
nor my employer can make such certification 1s/are:

Dated: September28 20 23.

STATE OF M%/z }
COUNTY OF EprQ ) ss:

The undersigned, being duly sworn, says: (a) I am duly authorized to execute this Certification
and (b) I hereby certify, under penalty of perjury, that the forg ing Cerfification 1s in all respects

true and accurate.

‘?Signa'mre

Ed Haldeman
Printed Name

Vice President

Title
Subscrlbgld and sworn to before me this 23%,"
day of K;? mber L2022
KEVIN F. LAURENDI
No. 01LAB346040
Notary Public, State of New York 16

Qualified in Erie County
My Commission Expires 08108!20%




CONTRACTOR REFERENCE SHEET

All bidders must complete this form providing three (3) references of past performance. References
should involve projects and or service situations of similar size and scope to this bid. References must
have had dealings with the bidder within the last 36 months. The County reserves the right to contact any
or all of the references supplied for an evaluation of past performance in order to establish the
responsibility of the bidder before the actual award of this bid and/or contract.

BIDDER’S NAME: John W. Danforth Company

REFERENCE NAME: Buffalo Construction Consultants
ADDRESS: 6000 N Bailey Avenue, Buffalo, NY 14226
TELEPHONE: 716-353-1331

CONTACT PERSON: Bill Mahoney

e e o e ke o e ek ok ookl ook ksl R ke ok s sk ok e ok ek sk e e e o o o Kok ook ok sk R R

REFERENCE NAME: Turner Construction

ADDRESS: 51 Lakefront Boulevard, Suite 200, Buffalo, NY 14202
TELEPHONE: 716-853-1900

CONTACT PERSON: Steve Perrigo

s ohe s o ool o 3 o ok ok ool ok ok SRk ok ok st ok ok ok o R sR ko ok ol ol e skl sle ke e ok ofe ke vkl sheske ol ok vk sk ok kel sl sk ok b sk o o e sk o ok ok sk sk ke oke ok

REFERENCE NAME: Kaleida Health
ADDRESS: 100 High Sireet, Buffalo, NY 14203
TELEPHONE: 716-238-4673
CONTACT PERSON: Pete Murphy
17
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CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATION STATEMENT

The undersigned certifies under oath that the information provided herein is true and sufficiently complete so as not to be
misleading,

SUBMITTED TO: County of Saratoga, Offices of Central Services
ADDRESS: 50 West High Street, Ballston Spa, NY 12020
SUBMITTED BY: John W. Danforth Company

NAME: Ed Haldeman, Vice President

ADDRESS: 5 Liebich Lane, Clifton Park, NY 12065

PRINCIPAL OFFICE: 300 Colvin Woods Parkway, Tonawanda, NY 14150
Corporation M

Partnership I

Individual il

Joint Venture il

Other [l

NAME OF PROJECT (if applicable): Saratoga County Animal Shelter, HVAC Modifications - Phase 1

TYPE OF WORK (file separate form for each Classification of Work):

General Construction X HVAC
Plumbing Electrical
Other

{(please specify)

1. ORGANIZATION:

1.1 How many years has your organization been in business as a contractor? 139 years
1.2 How many years has your organization been in business under its present business name? 139 years

1.2.1  Under what other or former names has your organization operated? N/A

18
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CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATION STATEMENT

i3

14

15

1.6

If your organization is a corporation, answer the following:
1.3.1 Date of Incorporation: 2/1/1897

1.3.2  State of Incorporation: NYS

.33 President’s Name: Patrick W. McParlane

1.34  Vice-President’s Name(s): See Attached List of Principals

1.35 Secretary’s Name: Patrick W. McParlane
1.36  Treasurer's Name: Kevin Reilly

If your organization is a partnership, answer the following:
141 Date of Organization:

1.42  Type of Partnership (if applicable):

1.43 Name(s) of General Partner(s):

If your organization is individually owned, answer the following:
1.5.1 Date of Organization:
1.52 Name of Owner:

If the form of your organization is other than those listed above, describe it and name the principals:

2. LICENSING:

21

22

List jurisdictions and trade categories in which your organization is legally qualified to do business, and
indicate registration or license numbers, if applicable. Across NYS and Ohio

List jurisdictions in which your organization’s partnership or trade name is filed. Across NYS and Chio

19
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CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATION STATEMENT

3. EXPERIENCE:

3.1

3.2

33

34

335

36

List the categories of work that your organization normally performs with its own forces. .
Mechanical contractor specializing in HVAC, Plumbing, Process Piping, Design/Build, Sheetmetal,

Refrigeration, Service, Temperature Controls, Testing & Balancing, Duct Cleaning and HVAC
filters

Claims and Suits - (if the answer to any of the questions below is yes, please atiach details):
3.21  Has your organization ever failed to complete any work awarded to it? No

3.22  Arethere any judgements, claims, arbitration proceedings, or suits pending or outstanding
against your organization or its officers? No

3.23 Has your organization filed any lawsuits or requested arbitration with regard to construction contracts
within the last five (5) years? No

Within the last five (5) years has any officer or principal of your organization ever been an officer or principal
of another organization when it failed to complete a construction contract? (if answer is yes, please attach
details) No

On a separate sheet, list major construction projects your organization has in progress giving the name of the
project, owner, architect, contract amount, percent complete, and scheduled completion date.

3.4.1 State total worth of work in progress and under contract.
See Attached Current Project List

On a separate sheet, list the major projects your organization has completed in the last five (5) years, giving the
name of project, owner, architect, contract amount, date of completion, and percentage of the cost of the work
performed with your own forces.

3.5.1 State average annual amount of construction work performed during the past five (5) years:
See Attached Completed Project List

On a separate sheet, list the construction experience and present commitments of the key individuals of your
organization.  Gag Attached List of Principals

4. REFERENCES:

4.1

Trade References: See Attached

20
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CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATION STATEMENT

4.2 Bank References: Key Bank of New York
50 Fountain Plaza
Buffalo, NY 14202
Sean Moskal, Senior Vice President
716-819-5395

4.3  Surety:
431 Name of bonding company: Fidelity & Deposit

4.32 Name and address of agent: Walsh Duffield
801 Main Street

Buffalo, NY 14203
5. FINANCING:

5.1 Financial Statement: S€e attached 2022 Financial Statement

5.1.1  Attach a financial statement, preferably audited, including your organization’s latest balance sheet and
income statement showing the following items:
Current Assets (¢.g., cash, joint venture accounts, accounts receivable, notes receivable,
accrued income, deposits, materials inventory, and prepaid expenses);

Net Fixed Assets;
Other Assets;

Current Liabilities (e.g., accounts payable, notes payable, accrued expenses, provision
for income taxes, advances, accrued salaries, and accrued payroll taxes):

Other Liabilities (e.g., capital, capital stock, authorized and outstanding shares par
values, earned surplus and retained eamings).

5.12  Name and address of firm preparing attached financial statement, and date thereof:
Bonadio & Co, LLP

100 Corporate Parkway, Suite 200, Amherst, NY 14226
5.13 Is the attached financial statement for the identical organization named on page one?

Yes
If not, explain the relationship and financial responsibility of the organization whose financial

statement if provided (e.g., partner-subsidiary).

5.2 Will the organization whose financial statement is attached act as guarantor of the contract for
construction? Yeg
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CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATION STATEMENT

6. SIGNATURE:
6.1 Dated Thursday this 28th day of September, 2023

Name of Organization: John W. Danforth Company

By:
Title: Ed Haldeman, Vice President
62 M ﬂ H{}LMP oy being duly sworn deposes and says
that the information provided herein is true and sufficiently complete so as not to be misleading.
Subscribed and sworn before me this Qgth dayof <)£,O1[C M‘QE " 2@2'3
Notary Public: i ,{Aﬁ;’! f ﬂwé’jzf/@&
.. . KEVIN F. LAURENDI
My Commission Expires: @? / 1% /9 OgL| No. (3r1L.f-\Ei:.’»4654’;‘0[:J
e - Notary Public, State of New York
Quallfied in Eiie County .,
My Gommission Expires 0a108/2021
22
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VENDOR INFORMATION
FOR THE COUNTY OF SARATOGA

Please comiplete the following information which is necessary in order for Saratoga County to track vendor applicant
information and the County’s purchasing process.

Business Name John W. Danforth Company

Address 5 Liebich Lane, Clifton Park, NY 12065

Business Type (Sole Proprietorship, Corporation, LLC, etc.) Corporation

Is your business a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)? Yes
Is your business a Minority and Women-Owned Business Enterprise (MWBE)? Yes

Does your business have a small business status? Yes

Any other business status, please provide information:

Provide the name of the Certifying Entity (ties):

Have you conducted business with the County before? No

If the answer to the above question is NO, please provide your Federal ID Number and attach a copy of your W-9
Form, FEIN # :_16-0401910

How did you discover this Bid opportunity? Bid Net Direct

Do you use the Empire State Municipal Purchasing Group Website (BidNet)? No

If Yes, do you find it useful (explain) or if No, why? _Y©S, we are able to get notices on upcoming bids
and gain access {o their documents

Completing the above information does not change your chances of being awarded a contract. The
information collected will NOT be sold and will not be used to contact you.

Thank you. 23

Vendor Information



CORPORATE BID RESOLUTION

For Corporate Bidders Only

RESOLVED, that_Ed Haldeman be authorized to sign and submit
(individual)

the bid or praposal of this corporation for the following project(s):

HVAC Modifications - Phase 1
Saratoga County Animal Shelter
6010 County Farm Road, Ballston Spa. NY, Bid# PWASHAVC-15

and to include in such bid or proposal, the certificate as to non-collusion required by section 103-d of the General

Municipal Law as the act and deed of such Corporation, and for any inaccuracies or misstatements in such
certificates this corporate bidder shall be liable under the penalties of perjury.

ok ok ek gkok ok

The foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolution adopted by John W. Danforth Company

{corporation)
at a meeting of its Board of Directors heldonthe  29th  day of January , 2023
and is still in full force and effect on this ___ 28th  day of _September , 2023
SEAL OF CORPORATION
C Secretary

Patrick W. McParlane
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John W. Danforth Company « 100% Emptoyee Owned

List of principals, their primary function, and length of service:

Kevin “Duke” Reilly, Chairman

As JWD Group, Inc., Chairman, Duke is responsible for all facets of group leadership. He has direct
influence and oversight on the group’s strategic direction and operation, Duke ensures that Danforth 1s
in constant pursuit of providing the best value to our customers through innovative solutions. His
leadership has guided Danforth to becoming the 4th largest mechanical contractor in the Northeast.
Duke has over 35 years of mechanical industry experience. Duke attended the United States Naval
Academy and served in the Navy for 5 years. After joining the Danforth team in 1982 as a Project
Manager, Duke used his experience from managing projects to implement more efficient practices for
Danforth’s construction model. Over the next 20 years he continued to help grow Danforth’s capabilities
and was promoted through the ranks of management to his current role as JWD Group Chairman.
Duke’s tenure with Danforth and JWD Group has been marked by contimual company growth and
improvement to become a true single solution provider for mechanical services in the Northeast and
beyond.

Patrick W. McParlane, President

For the past eight years, Pat has been responsible for the overall acquisition portion of the business and
all its business segment personnel within the Client Solutions Division. He plays a pivotal role in
business development and strategic planning within the Buffalo Market. Pat was formerly a District
Manager for the international firm Siemens and was responsible for the total business operations and
strategic direction in New York, Vermont and Pennsylvania. He has nearly 30 years of experience in
the ESCO field that specifically relates to the qualifications outlined by the Erie County RFP. Over the
years, Pat has been integral of a number of major projects that Danforth completed in Erie County,
including the University at Buffalo School of Medicine, John R. Oishei Children’s Hospital and Buffalo
Riverbend just to name a few.

Previously Pat was instrumental in securing millions of dollars in funding for his clients’ energy projects
from agencies including the United States Department of Energy and NYSERDA.

Pat has the experience to structure and secure the proper funding for energy programs, utilizing the
guaranteed operational and energy savings to pay for the financial obligations of the project. Pat
graduated from State University New York College at Buffalo with a Bachelors of Science & an AAS
from SUNY Alfred.

Robert J. Beck, CEO

As John W. Danforth Company’s CEQ, Robert is responsible for strategic direction, growth and
organizational foundation of the company. Robert oversees the continual improvement of Danforth’s
sales, operations, and execution of over $250 million in contracts. All company efforts promote the spirit
of Danforth’s vision, mission and core values.

Robert has nearly 30 years of mechanical industry experience. After graduating from the University of
Florida, Robert began a career in the industry as a District Sales Manager for Lochinvar Corporation in

Delivering industry leading experiences to our customers every day.
www jwdanforth.com | 1 (844) JWD - 1884




1991. He started at Danforth in 1993 and has been promoted through various company management
roles over the last 25 years to his current role as company President.
Robert and his wife Elise, along with their two children, Ethan and Audrey, reside in Amherst, NY.

Jason P. Rudich, Executive Vice President, Estimating

Jason is responsible for various office and field engineering duties including load calculations,
equipment sizing calculations, equipment selection and confirmation. He specializes in identifying
client’s needs and developing turnkey solutions to meet their energy and operational goals. Jason has
nearly 20 years of experience providing Design/Build solutions for Danforth’s customers and is
Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design, Accredited Professional (LEED AP) certified.

Jason graduated from Alfred State College with a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering. He
has designed numerous systems for various projects throughout New York State with a focus on Energy
Performance.

Jerry Wilson, Senior Vice President, Sales

Jerry serves as the Senior Vice President of Sales. Jerry operates out of Danforth’s Headquarters in
Buffalo and is responsible for leading the business acquisition and marketing for the Client Solutions
business segment. His responsibilities specifically include identifying market opportunities, developing
strategic partnerships with key customers and accounts, along with sales forecasting, planning, and
budgeting. Jerry has over 35 years of experience in the energy and environmental business.

At Danforth, some of Jerry’s notable projects include the energy performance contract of the Town of
West Seneca valued at $9 million that resulted in annual energy savings of 700,000 Kwh, as well as the
energy performance contract of the Monroe County Civic Center valued at over $13 million, resulting in
annual energy savings of over 2,700,000 kWh. Recently, Jerry’s team was awarded an Energy
Performance Contracts with Livingston County valued at $5.7 million, Wyoming County valued at $2.8
million and Niagara County valued at $6.6 muillion.

Jerry's experience in client solutions and sales has made him a valuable asset to the Danforth Team.
Jerry has an Associate’s Degree in Electro-Mechanical Technologies from SUNY Alfred, a Bachelors of
Science Degree in Industrial Engineering Technology from Buffalo State College, and a Masters of
Business Administration from Canisius College. Jerry belongs to the Association of Energy Engineers
(AEE) as well as the American Society of Heating Refrigerating, and Air-Conditioning Engineers
(ASHRAE).

Brian Tubin, Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

Brian began his career in public accounting at a prominent firm in Buffalo, NY where Danforth was a
major client. He worked on Danforth’s account for 7 years performing accounting, tax and auditing
services. During this time he also worked to provide compliance, management advisory and business
valuation services to over 100 other diverse business entities with his main concentration being the
construction industry. While working in the public accounting field, Brian met the state education and
experience requirements for the titles of Certified Public Accountant (CPA) and Certified Valuation
Analyst (CVA).

In 2003, Brian left public accounting to become the Vice President of a full service General
Construction company. Brian was responsible for the overall operations of the company, mcluding

Delivering industry leading experiences to our customers every day.
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planning and directing all aspects of the orgamization’s financial and operational policies, procedures,
objectives and initiatives. Brian was instrumenta!l in the company’s long-term strategic planning as well
as the management of the day-to-day issues related to finance, administration and construction
operations. Brian was responsible for actively seeking opportunities for diversification and expansion
into new areas while maintaining focus on the company’s profitability and customer service. During this
time, Brian’s relationship with Danforth continued to grow as they were his main subcontractor for all
plumbing, HVAC, and mechanical work.

With over 20 years of work experience and proven leadership in all facets of accounting, finance,
operations, construction and business management, Brian joined the John W. Danforth Company in
2012 as the Chief Financial Officer. Both Brian and Danforth wanted to continue to build upon the
successful long-term relationship they had established over the years. Brian cumrently oversees the
Accounting, Finance, Risk Control, Insurance, HR and IT departments. He ensures that these areas of
the business are all aligned and performing effectively and efficiently in accordance with the mission
and core values of Danforth. In addition, Brian acts as a Steward of company assets as well as a
financial strategist providing short and long-term financial budgets, analysis and forecasting for the
company to make key decisions. ‘

Delivering industry leading experiences to our customers every day.
www.jwdanforth.com | 1(844) /WD - 1884
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ALBANY » BUFFALO -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

March 27, 2023

To the Board of Directors of
JWD Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consoclidated financial statements of JWD
Group, Inc. {a New York S Corporation) and Subsidiaries, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related
consolidated statements of operations and refained earnings, changes in
stockholder's equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of JWD Group, Inc. and
Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with audifing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required fo
be independent of JWD Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 2 to the consoclidated financial statements, JWD Group, Inc.
and Subsidiaries adopted Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 842, Leases,
as of January 1, 2022. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, management is required to
evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about JWD Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the consolidated
financial statements are available to be issued.

DALLAS « EAST AURORA = NEW YORK CiTY = ROCHESTER = RUTLAND, VT = SYRACUSE - UTICA




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
{Continued)

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the zudit.

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of JWD Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about JWD Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Supplementary Information

Qur audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The supplementary information in Schedule | is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themseives, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. [n our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the

consolidated financial statements as a whale.
Borradis 4 (A./ LLP




JWD GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

N
N
N
N
V]
—

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash $ 300,672 $ 406,703
Contracts receivable, net 64,885,578 58,869,756
Retainage receivable 13,946,322 20,838,168
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on
contracts in progress 10,315,854 10,171,417
Inventory 2,312,752 2,814,715
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,143,675 1,465,264
Property held for sale 7,094,815 7,066,527
Total current assets 99,999,668 101,632,550
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT, net 6,596,441 6,872,919
OPERATING LEASE RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 25,905,261 -
OTHER ASSETS 2,413,994 2,962,446
$ 134,915,364 $ 111,467,915
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Line-of-credit $ 74,700 $ 6315814
Current portion of operating lease liabilities 360,463 -
Accounts payable 27,933,474 36,317,624
Retainage payable 3,355,684 2,512,877
Accrued expenses 4,224 787 2,578,682
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on
contracts in progress 26,032,504 14,888,481
Other current liabilities 428,879 670,904
Total current liabilities 62,410,491 63,284,582
OPERATING LEASE LIABILITIES, net of current portion 25,544,798 -
OTHER LIABILITIES 2,458,200 1,883,720
Total liabilities 90,413,489 65,168,302
STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY:
Common stock - $0.10 par value 116,438 116,438
Capital contributed in excess of par 7,206,504 7,206,504
Retained earnings 52,498,754 54,834,861
Unearned ESOP shares (8,906,303) (9,445,272)
Treasury stock, at cost (6,412,918) (6,412,918)
Total stockholder's equity 44,501,875 46,299,613

$ 134,915,364

$ 111,467,915

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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JWD GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

CONTRACT REVENUE EARNED
COST OF REVENUE EARNED
Gross profit
GAIN ON SALE OF PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
SELLING, GENERAL, AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Income (loss) from operations
OTHER INCOME {EXPENSE}):
Miscellanecus income (expense)
Interest expense
Total other expense, net
NET INCOME (LOSS)

RETAINED EARNINGS - beginning of year

RETAINED EARNINGS - end of year

2022

$ 281,628,937

2021

$ 294,653,934

(254,282,204) (271.,494.614)
27,346,733 23,159,320
38,040 3,916,009
(29,505,430) (26,040,922)
(2,120,657) 1,034,407
(40,154) 149,137
(175,296) (575,605)
(215,450) (426,468)
(2,336,107) 607,939
54,834,861 54,226,922
$ 52,498,754 $ 54,834,861

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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JWD GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 20821

Capital Lingamed
Common Contributed in Retairad ESOP
Stack Excess of Par Earnings Shares Total
BEGINMNING BALANCE - JANUARY 1, 2021 ‘ $ 118,438 3 7,206,504 54,226,822 (6.484,804) 48,652,142
Net income - - £07,838 - 607,939
Additional loan to ESOP lo purchase shares - - - [2,960,468) {2,060,468)
ENDING BALANCE - DECEMBER 31, 2021 116,438 7,208,504 54,834,861 (9,445,272) 46,299,613
Netloss - - (2,336,107} - 2,336,107
Additional loan to ESOP to purchase shares - - - (174,302) {174,302)
Release of ESOP shares - - - 712,671 742,671
ENDING BALANCE - DECEMBER 31, 2022 $ 116438 § 7,206,504 § 52436754 {8,906,803) 44,501,875

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.




JWD GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flow from
operating activities:
Depreciation
(Gain on sale of property, plant, and equiprment
Deferred compensation expense
Bad debts
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance
Noncash ESOP expense
Changes in:
Contracts receivable
Retainage receivable
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on
contracts in progress
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Accrued expenses
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on
contracts in progress
Other liabilities

Net cash flow from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of properly and equipment
Issuance of notes receivable
Premiums paid on life insurance policies
Proceeds from surrender of life insurance policies
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment, net

Net cash flow from investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Loans to ESOP '
Net repayments on line-of-credit
Repayments of long-term debt

Net cash flow from financing activities
CHANGE IN CASH
CASH - beginning of year
CASH - end of year

2022 2021
$ (2,336,107 $ 607,939
2,266,957 3,095,256
(38,040) (3,916,000)
580,880 625,200

- 93,141
- (74,967)

712,671 -
(6,015,822) (3,455,837)
6,801,846 (5,743,294)
(144,437) 1,327,133
501,963 (1,346,686)
321,589 (554,223)
(7,541,343) 5,847,155
- 38,432
1,645,905 (1,695,758)
11,144,023 (4,692,029)
(248,425) (1,998,956)
7,741,660 (11,843,503)
(2,018,767) (2,600,501)
- (17,556)
(22,799) (41,791)
571,251 435,323
38,040 29,124,238
(1,432,275) 26,899,713
(174,302) (2,960,468)
(6,241,114) (1,752,254)
- (10,100,370)
(6,415,416) (14,813,092)
(106,031) 243,118
406,703 163,585

$ 300672 $ 406,703

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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JWD GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS

JWD Group, inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”) are general contractors for
mechanical equipment, with a specialty in industrial piping. The Company has a broad base of
customers, including Fortune 500 customers, municipalities, general contractors, and architect-
engineering firms. The Company’s customers are generally located in New York State.

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of JWD Group, Inc., and its wholly
owned subsidiaries as follows:

John W. Danforth Company (wholly owned subsidiary)
Kensington Insulation Group, Inc. (wholly owned subsidiary)
Patrick 233, Inc. {(wholly owned subsidiary)

Blue Angels Properties, LLC (wholly owned subsidiary)

7401 Willowbrook Rd. Associates, LLC (wholly owned subsidiary)

*® * & 9 0

Al significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing consolidated financial statements.
Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and reported revenue and expenses. Significant
estimates used in preparing these consolidated financial statements include those assumed in
computing profit percentages under the percentage-of-completion revenue recognition method,
and those used in depreciating the Company’'s equipment.

Operating Cycle

The Company’s work is normally performed under fixed price and cost-plus contracts. The
fengths of the Company's contracts vary but are typically about two years. Therefore, assets
and liabilities related to long-term contracts are included in current assets and current liabilities
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as they will be liquidated in the normal
course of contract completion, although this may require more than one year.




SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Recently Adopted Accounting Guidance Leases

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) 842, Leases to increase transparency and comparability among
organizations by requiring the recognition of right-of-use (ROU) assets and lease liabilities on
the balance sheet. Most prominent among the changes in the standard is the recognition of
ROU assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases.
Under the standard, disclosures are required to meet the objective of enabling users of
financial statements fo assess the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from
leases.

The Company adopted the standard effective January 1, 2022 using the modified retrospective
approach and comparative financial information has not been restated. In addition, lease
disclosures for the year ended December 31, 2021 are made under prior lease guidance in
FASB ASC 840.

The Company elected the available practical expedientis to account for the existing capital
leases and operating leases as finance leases and operating leases, respectively, under the
new guidance, without reassessing (a) whether the contracts contain leases under the new
standard, (b) whether classification of capital leases or operating leases would be different in
accordance with the new guidance, or (c) whether the unamortized initial direct costs before
transition adjustments would have met the definition of initial direct costs in the new guidance
at lease commencement.

As a result of the adoption of ASC 842, on January 1, 2022, the Company recognized an
operating lease liability of $26,199,308, and an operating right-of-use asset of $26,199,308.
The standard did not have an impact on the consolidated statements of operations or cash
flows. These amounts were determined by calculating the present value of the annual cash
lease payments using a discount rate of 7%. The 7% discount rate was determined to be the
Company's twenty-year incremental borrowing rate as of January 2022.

Revenue and Cost Recognition

The Company recognizes construction contract revenue over time, as performance obligations
are satisfled, due to the continuous transfer of control to the customer. Construction contracts
are generally accounted for as a single unit of account, or a single performance obligation, and
are not segmented between types of services. The Company recognizes revenue using the
cost-to-cost method, based primarily on contract cost incurred to date compared to total
estimated contract cost. The cost-to-cost method, an input method, is used as management
considers it to be the best available measure of progress on these contracts. This
measurement and comparison process requires updates fo the estimate of total costs to
complete the contract, and these updates may include subjective assessments and judgments.

The Company recoghizes service maintenance contract revenue over time, as performance
obligations are satisfied, which are typically to maintain the customer’s mechanical system for
a specific period of time. For these services, in which the full cost to provide services may not
be known, revenue is recognized using an input method based on the amount of time the
services are provided out of the total time that the Company has been contracted to perform
those services. Amounts billed to customers in excess of recognizable revenue is recorded as
deferred revenue and is included in other liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets. Deferred revenue totaled $428,879 and $429,237 at December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.




SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and Cost Recognition (Continued)

Contract costs include all direct material, labor, subcontract and other costs and those indirect
costs determined to relate to contract performance, such as indirect salaries and wages,
equipment repairs and depreciation, insurance, and payroll taxes. Administrative and general
expenses are charged to expense as incurred. Provisions for estimated losses on
uncompleted contracts are made in the period in which such losses are determined. Pre-
contract costs are expensed as incurred unless they are expected to be recovered from the
customer. Project mobilization costs are generally charged to project costs as incurred when
they are an integrated part of the performance obligation being transferred to the customer.
The Company recognizes revenue, buf not profit, on certain uninstalled materials that are not
specifically produced, fabricated, or constructed for a project. Revenue on these uninstalled
materials is recognized when the cost is incurred, or when control is transferred.

Performance Obligations

The Company evaluates whether two or more contracts should be combined and accounted
for as one performance obligation and whether a combined or single contract should be
accounted for as more than one performance obligation. This evaluation requires significant
judgment and the decision to combine a group of contracts or separate a combined or single
contract into multiple performance obligations could change the amount of revenue and profit
recorded in a given period. For most contracts, the customer confracts with the Company to
provide a significant service of integrating a complex set of tasks and components into a single
project or capability (even if that single project results in the delivery of multiple units), in which
case the entire contract is accounted for as one performance obligation. The Company may
promise to provide distinct goods or services within a contract, in which case the Company
separates the contract into more than one performance obligation. If a contract is separated
into more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the total transaction price
to each performance obligation in an amount based on the estimated relative standalone
selling prices of the promised goods or services underlying each performance obligation.

Contract Assets and Liabilities

Contract assets represent revenue recognized in excess of amounts billed to date and
retainage receivable. Contract liabilities represent amounts billed to clients in excess of
revenue recognized to date. The Company anticipates that substantially all incurred costs
associated with contract assets as of December 31, 2022 will be billed and collected within one
yaar.

Contract assets and confract liabilities were as follows as of December 31:

2022 2021 2020

Contract assets:
Costs and estimated earnings in

excess of billings $ 10315854 $ 10171417 $§ 11,498,550
Retainage receivable 13,948,322 20,838.168 15.004 874
Total contract assets $ 24262176 $ 31009585 $ 26593424
Contract liabilities:
Billings in excess of costs and

estimated earnings $ 26032504 $ 14,888,481 $ 19,580,510
Deferred service revenue 428 879 429 237 514.714
Total contract liabilities $ 26461383 $ 15317.718 $ 20095224
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Variable Consideration

Changes in contract specifications and requirements and other revisions to project costs and
conditions can give rise to contract modifications (change orders) under which the customer
agrees to pay an additional contract price. The Company considers these contract
modifications to exist when the maodification either creates new or changes the existing
enforceable rights and obligations. Most contract modifications are for goods or services that
are not distinct from the existing performance obligation{s). The effect of a contract
modification on the transaction price, and measurse of progress for the performance obligation
to which it relates, is recognized as an adjustment to revenue (either as an increase or
decrease) on a cumulative catchup basis. Revisions can also result in claims that the
Company might make against the customer to recover project variances that have not been
satisfactorily addressed through change orders with the customer. In general, the Company
does not recognize revenue or margin based on change orders or claims until they have been
agreed upon with the customer.

Due to the nature of the work required to be performed to satisfy the Company’s performance
obligations, the estimation of total revenue and cost at completion is complex, subject to many
variables and requires significant judgment. The consideration to which the Company is
entitted to on long-term contracts may include both fixed and variable amounts on
occasion. Variable amounts can either increase or decrease the fransaction price. Some
examples of positive variable revenue include amounts awarded upon achievement of certain
performance metrics, program milestones or cost of completion date targets and can be based
upon customer discretion. Conversely, variable amounts can result in a deduction from
contract revenue if stated performance requirements are not met, such as complying with the
construction schedule.

Payment Terms

The Company typically invoices customers with payment terms of net due in 30 days. It is
common in the construction industry for a contract to specify more lenient payment terms
allowing the customer 45 to 60 days to make their payment. It is also common for the contract
in the construction industry to specify that a general contractor is not required to submit
payments to a subcontractor until it has received those funds from the owner or funding
source. In most instances the Company receives payment of invoices between 30 to 90 days
of the date of the invoice.

Warranties

The Company generally provides limited warranties for work performed under its construction
contracts. The warranty periods typically extend for a limited duration following substantial
completion of the Company's work on a project. Historically, warranty claims have not resulted
in material costs incurred, and any estimated costs for warranties are included in the individual
project cost estimates for purposes of accounting for long-term contracts.

Practical Expedients

The Company has availed itself of the following practical expedients available under ASC 606:
(1) to make a policy election to expense incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a
customer, as the amortization period of such costs would be one year or less; and (2) an entity
need not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing
component if the entity expects, at contract inception, that the period between when the enfity
transfers a promised good or service to a customer and when the customer pays for that good
or service will be one year or less.




SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash

Cash includes bank demand deposit accounts. The Company’s cash balances may at fimes
exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in these
accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to cash.

Contracts and Retainage Receivable

Contracts receivable are uncollateralized customer obligations. Interest is not charged on
delinquent accounts. Payments on contracts receivable are allocated to the customer's
specific invoices identified on the customer’s remittance advice, or, if unspecified, are applied
to the earliest unpaid invoices.

The carrying amount of contracts receivable is reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts
that reflects management's best estimate of the amounts that will ultimately not be collected.
Management individually reviews ail contracts receivable balances that exceed 90 days from
the invoice date, and based on an estimate of current credit worthiness, estimates the portion,
if any, of the outstanding balance that will not be collected. The allowance for doubfful
accounts is based on past credit history with customers, known and inherent risks and current
economic conditions. After all collection efforts have been exhausted, the receivable is written
off. The Company had contracts receivable, net of $55,507,060 at December 31, 2020.

In accordance with normal construction industry practice, retainage receivables are shown as
current assets. Retainage is due upon final completion and owner acceptance of the contract.
It is reasonably possible that amounts due in more than one year may be shown as current.

The allowance for doubtful accounts was $418,850 and $501,734 at December 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively.

Inventory
Inventory consists of sheet metal, pipe, filters, and frequently used parts stated at the lower of
cost, using the first-in, first-out method, and net realizable value.

Property Held for Sale

Property held for sale consists of industrial property of land, buildings, and improvements and
are stated at the lower of cost or market, less selling costs. Management expects to complete
the sale of these assets in 2023. Property held for sale totaled $7,094,815 and $7,066,527 at
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Expenditures for acquisitions, renewals, and betterments are capitalized,
whereas maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred, When property, plant, and
equipment are retired or otherwise disposed of, the appropriate accounts are relieved of costs
and accumulated depreciation. Any resultant gain or loss is credited or charged to the
consolidated statements of operations.

Depreciation is provided for in amounts to relate the cost of property, plant, and equipment to
operations over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives
used in determining depreciation generally vary from 3 to 39 years. Leasehold improvements
are amortized over the shorter of the remaining lease term or the estimated useful fife of the
asset.




SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company regularly assesses all of its long-lived asseis for impairment when events or
circumstances indicate their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. This is accomplished
by comparing the expected undiscounted future cash flows of the assets with the respective
carrying amount as of the date of the assessment, Should aggregate future cash flows be less
than the carrying value, a write-down would be required, measured as the difference between
the camying value and the fair value of the asset. If the expected undiscounted future cash
flows exceed the respective carrying amount as of the date of the assessment, no impairment
is recognized. No impairments were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively.

Other Assets
Other assets consist primarily of cash surrender value of life insurance, investments in
partnerships, and notes receivable.

The Company was the owner of various life insurance policies that insured the lives of several
of the Company's officers and employees. The Company cashed in the various life insurance
policies in 2022, The face values of these policies totaled $2,500,000 at December 31, 2021.
The Company recorded the cash surrender value of these policies as a non-current asset in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. There were no loans outstanding with these
policies at December 31, 2021.

The Company has investments in various parinerships, which totaled $1,131,098 and
1,053,130 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. These invesiments are accounted for
on the equity method.

The Company has notes receivable of $1,261,563 at December 31, 2022 and 2021. The notes
receivable are stated at unpaid principal balances plus accrued interest, less an allowance for
loan losses. The notes bear interest ranging from 0% to 8% and mature at various dates
through June 2030. Management periodically evaluates the loans for collectability based on
inherent collection risks and adverse situations that may affect the owner's ability to repay.
Loans for which no payments have been received for a pericd of time are considered
delinquent. After all collection efforts are exhausted, any amounts deemed uncollectible based
upon an assessment of the debior's financial condition are written off. As of December 31,
2022 and 2021, management determined that an allowance is not necessary. Loans are
placed on nonaccrual status when management believes collection of interest is doubtful.

Leases

The Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Right-of-use (“ROU")
assets represent the Company’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease
liabilities represent an obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. Lease ROU
assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the present value of
lease payments over the lease term. The lease may include renewal and termination options,
which are included in the lease term when the Company is reasonably certain to exercise
these options.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

For all underlying classes of assets, the Company has elected to not recognize ROU assets
and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less at lease
commencement and do not include an option to purchase the underlying asset that the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise. The Company recognizes fixed shori-term lease
costs on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Variable lease costs are excluded from the
measurement of the ROU asset and lease liability and are expensed in the period incurred.

The Company elected for all classes of underlying assets to not separate the lease and non-
lease components of a contract and to account for as a single lease component.

In determining the discount rate used to measure the right-of-use asset and lease liability, the
Company uses rates implicit in the lease, or if not readily available, the incremental borrowing
rate. The incremental borrowing rate is a lender quoted collateralized borrowing rate over a
similar term as the leased asset and in an amount equal to the payments of the leased asset in
a similar economic environment.

In evaluating contracts to determine if they qualify as a lease, the Company considers factors
such as if the Company obtained substantially all of the rights to the underlying asset through
exclusivity, if it can direct the use of the asset by making decisions about how and for what
purpose the asset will be used and if the lessor has substantive subsfitution rights. This
evaluation may require significant judgment.

Other Liabilities

Other liabilities consist of deferred service revenue and deferred compensation obligations to
employees. The Company recognizes deferred compensation obligations in accordance with
the vesting provision of each arrangement,

Sales Tax

The Company excludes from contract revenue eamed revenue all sales taxes assessed to its
customers. Sales taxes assessed on revenue, when applicable, are recorded as accrued
expenses on the balance sheet until remitted to state agencies.

Captive Insurance

The Company has contracted with a group captive insurance company to insure against
workers’ compensation, general liability, auto liability and physical damage. Members of the
group captive could be subject to additional premium assessments in the event the program’s
financial position deteriorates. No such assessments have been made to date, nor are any
anticipated based upon the programs’ current financial position. Payments made to the captive
for insurance coverage amounted to $1,726,121 and $2,955,525 for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Advertising
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expenditures were $526,306 and
$418,070 for the years ended Dacember 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be freated as an S Corporation for Federal and state income tax
purposes. However, income allocated to the stock owned by the ESOP, which owns 100% of
the Company's stock, is not subject to income taxation because the ESOP is an employee
benefit trust. State taxes are provided in accordance with applicable state tax laws.
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REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue by Contract Type
Net revenues by contract type consisted of the following for the years ended December 31:

2022 2021
Construction contracts $ 265,018,679 $ 281,605,796
Service maintenance contracts 16,610,258 13,048.138
$. 281628937 § 294653934

All contract revenue was earmed over time for both the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021,

COSTS AND ESTIMATED EARNINGS ON CONTRACTS IN PROGRESS

Costs and estimated earhings on contracts in progress consisted of the following at December
31:

2022 2021
Costs incurred to date on contracts in progress $ 571,662,732 $ 497,768,470
Estimated eamings to date 60,272,315 48,237,864

631,935,047 546,006,334
Less: Billings to date {647.651.697) {550,723,398)
$ _(15716650) 3 __(4.717.064)

These amounts are included in the consolidated balance sheets under the following captions
at December 31:

2022 2021

Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on
contracts in progress $ 10,315,854 $ 10,171,417

Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on
contracts in progress (26,032.504) (14.888 481)

$ (15716.650) § (4.717.064)

REMAINING UNSATISFIED PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS

The Company’'s remaining unsatisfied performance obligations as of December 31, 2022
represent a measure of the total dollar value of work to be performed on coniracts awarded
and in progress. The remaining unsatisfied performance obligations were approximately
$193,150,000 as of December 31, 2022,
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PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant, and equipment consisted of the following at December 31:

2022 2021
Vehicles $ 11377899 $ 10,137,600
Machinery, toals, and equipment 10,593,549 10,201,010
Office furniture and equipment 3,491,435 3,418,157
Land, building, and improvements 2,978,579 2,771,539
Construction-in-progress 129.070 341.594
28,570,532 26,870,900
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (21,974,091} {19,997.981)
$ 6596441 §_ 6872918

Depreciation and amortization totaled $2,266,957 and $3,095,256 for the years ended

December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consisted of the following at December 31:

2022 2021
Notes recsivable $ 1261563 $ 1,261,563
Investments in partnerships 1,131,098 1,053,130
Investment in captive insurance company 15,000 15,000
Cash surrender value of life insurance - 626,420
Other ' 6,333 5,333

241 4 2.962.44

LINE-OF-CREDIT

The Company has available a $30,000,000 line-of-credit with KeyBank that requires monthly
interest payments on the outstanding balance at the LIBOR rate plus 2.25% (6.22% and 2.32%
at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively). Borrowings under the line-of-credit are
collateralized by a first security interest in all personal property and fixtures of the Company,
whether now owned or acquired after. The line is subject to annual renewal in September each

year.

The outstanding balance on the line-of-credit was $74,700 and $6,315,814 at December 31,

2022 and 2021, respectively.

The amount available to the Company under this line-of-credit is reduced by outstanding
letters of credit, which are limited to $3,000,000. Outstanding letters of credit totaled
- approximately $2,638,700 and $2,065,225 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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10.

1.

OTHER LIABILITIES

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company has a deferred compensation plan for a select group of management
executives, which are intended to provide them with supplemental compensation in recognition
of their services to the Company. Upon separation from service by the executives other than a
termination by the Company for cause, the Company shall pay each executive a total of
$725,000 in three equal annual payments beginning on January 31 of the year following the
separation from service. The Company is recognizing the cost related to the deferred
compensation agreements over the expected remaining period of each executive’s
employment.

Value Enhancement Incentive Rights Plan

The Company has a Value Enhancement Incentive (VEI) Rights Plan which is designed as a
deferred compensation arrangement for a select group of management executives. This Plan
is also intended to provide management executives with supplemental compensation in
recognition of their services to the Company. In accordance with the terms of the Plan, awards
in the form of VE} Rights may be granted at any time as determined by the Company's Board
of Directors. The VEI Rights are settled upon a distribution event of the participant, as defined
by the Plan. The grant price of the VEI Right shall be the fair market value of the Company’s
stock based upon the most recent annual independent valuation performed by the ESOP’s
independent appraiser. The participant shall be entitled to receive payment for each VEI Right
in an amount that is equal to the difference between the fair market value of the Company’s
stock on the date of the distribution event and the grant price of such VIE Right. The VIE Right
obligations are subject to other vesting and forfeiture provisions.

The Company had total deferred compensation obligations of $2,458,200 and $2,125,387 at
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, with respect to these plans which are included in
other current liabilities and other liabilities. The Company had total deferred compensation
expense of $580,880 and $625,200 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY

Shares of common stock authorized, issued, outstanding, and held in treasury consisted of the
following at December 31:

2022 2021
Authorized 5,000,000 5,000,000
Issued 1,164,380 1,164,380
Qutstanding 706,209 706,209
Treasury 458,171 458,171

LEASES

Sale-Leaseback Transaction

In August 2021, the Company sold its office and operating facilities consisting of muitiple
properties in the Western New York region to a nonaffiliated third party for a total purchase
price of $30,500,000, less selling expenses of $1,375,762, for a total net proceeds of
$29,124,238. The properties’ sale prices were determined based on outside appraisals.
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LEASES (Continued)

Sale-Leaseback Transaction (Continued)

In connection with the sale of these properties, the Company entered into a commercial lease
agreement for the properties with the purchaser, which commenced in August 2021. The lease
provides the Company with use of the properties for an initial term of twenty years. The base
rent payments for year one of the lease totaled $2,146,496 per year. The base rent payments
increase 2% annually in years two through ten, 1.75% annually in years eleven through fifteen,
and 1.5% annually in years sixteen through twenty. The Company has the option to renew the
lease for two, ten-year terms. The exercise of lease renewal options is at the Company’s sole
discretion. The base rent payments increase 1.75% annually for the renewal terms. The
Company is responsible for all property taxes, utilities, insurance, repairs and maintenance.

The Company recognized a total gain of $3,913,092 on the sale and leaseback transaction,
which is included in the total gain on sale of property, plant, and equipment on the statement of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Operating Leases

The Company has additional operating lease agreements for various buildings and land
throughout New York State. The Company has elected the short-term lease recognition
exemption for these various leases, and as such are not recorded on the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet. The lease agreements do not contain any material residual value
guarantees or material restrictive covenants.

The components of total lease cost were as follows for the year ending December 31, 2022:

Operating lease cost $ 2,160,806
Variable lease cost 1,600,000
Short-term lease cost 400,779

$...4.161.585

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases were as follows for the year ending
December 31, 2022:

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of

operating lease obligations $ 2160806
Operating lease right-of-use assets obtained in exchange
for operating lease obligations $..26.199.308
Other information related to leases were as follows for the year ending December 31, 2022:
Weighted average remaining lease term—operating leases 18.89 years
Weighted average discount rate—operating leases 7%
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LEASES (Continued)

Operating Leases {Continued)

Future maturities of operating lease obligations are as follows for the years ending December
31:

2023 $ 2,204,022
2024 2,248,103
2025 2,293,065
2026 2,338,926
2027 2,385,704
Thereafter 37,303,818
Total future minimum lease payments 48,773,638
Less: Imputed interest {22 .868.377)
Present value of future minimum lease payrnents 25,905,261
Less: Current portion (360.463)
$ 25544798

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company accounted for leases under ASC 840
and had leases requiring monthly rental payments aggregating $36,926 per month, expiring on
various dates through April 2052. Rent expense related fo these leases totaled $1,086,057 for
the year ended December 31, 2021.

Future minimum rental payments over the terms of the above noted leases were as follows as
of December 31, 2021, for the years ending December 31:

2022 $ 2,786,541
2023 2,519,979
2024 2,466,104
2025 2,452,294
2026 2,388,155
Thereafter 41,182,787

§ 53.795.860
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company contributes to various single-employer retirement and multi-employer pension
and other benefit plans as described below.

Single-Employer Plans

The Company has an employee stock ownership plan, the JWD Group, Inc. Employee Stock
Ownership Plan (the “ESOP”), for all qualified non-union employees. The ESOP held 706,209
shares of stock of JWD Group, Inc. as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 (100% of the
outstanding shares). The ESOP is required to repurchase vested shares of participants at the
time the participants exit the ESOP at the fair market value of the shares at the time of
repurchase. These repurchases are funded with loans made by the Company to the ESOP
which are reflected as “Unearned ESOP shares” within stockholder's equity on the
consolidated balance sheets. These ioans have no set repayment terms and do not bear
interest.
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12.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)

Single-Employer Plans {Continued)

The loans will be repaid with future contributions from the Company, which will be determined
at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Contributions to the ESOP were $712,671 for the
year ended December 31, 2022. There were no contributions to the ESOP for the year ended
December 31, 2021,

Shares purchased by the ESOP from participants who exit the ESOP are held in suspense and
not allocated to ESOP participants until the refated loan principal is repaid. Total allocated and
unallocated shares were 508,808 and 197,401, respectively, as of December 31, 2022. Total
allocated and unallocated shares were 492,886 and 213,323, respectively, as of December 31,
2021. During 2022, the ESOP released 19,035 shares from suspense. The ESOP did not
release any shares from suspense during 2021.

The aggregate fair market values of the shares allocated to ESOP participants, all of which are
subject to the ESOP’s repurchase obligation, was approximately $28,493,248 as of December
31, 2022. The aggregate fair market values of the shares unallocated to ESOP participants
was approximately $11,054,456 as of December 31, 2022. The fair market value was
determined based on an independent valuation performed as of December 31, 2021, the most
recent valuation available.

The Company has a 401(k) plan that allows eligible employees to make voluntary pretax salary
deferral contributions subject to statutory limits. The Company matches 100% of the first 4%
of salary contributed by an employee. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the
Company made contributions of $850,287 and $750,337, respectively.

Multi-Employer Pension and Other Benefit Plans

The Company contributes to multi-employer defined contribution retirement, defined benefit
pension and other benefit plans under the terms of collective bargaining agreements, which
cover approximately 65% of the Company's workforce.

Some of the collective bargaining agreements require the Company to make contributions to
multi-employer defined contribution retirement plans based on hourly rates of the covered
workers. The Company’s contributions to these plans amounted to $4,326,422 and $4,781,554
for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The risks of participating in multi-employer defined benefit pension plans are different from
single-employer plans. Assets contributed to a multi-employer plan by one employer may be
used to provide benefits to employees of other participating employers. If a participating
employer stops contributing to the plan, the unfunded obligations of the plan may be borne by
the remaining participating employers.

The Company’s participation in multi-employer defined benefit pension plans for the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 is outlined in the table below The "EIN/PN” column

provides the Employee Identification Number (“EIN”) and the three-digit plan number (“PN").

The most recent Pension Protection Act (“PPA”) zone status available is for the plan year-ends
as indicated below. The zone status is based on information that the Company received from
the plan and is certified by the plan’s actuary. Among other factors, plans in the red zone are
generally less than 65% funded, plans in the yellow zone are between 65% and 80% funded,
and plans in the green zone are at least 80% funded. The “FIP/RP Status
Pending/Implemented” column indicates plans for which a financial improvement plan (“FIP")
or a rehabilitation plan (RP) is either pending or has been implemented.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)

Muiti-Employer Pension and Other Benefit Plans (Continued)

in addition to regular plan contributions, the Company may be subject to a surcharge if the
plan is in the red zone. The “Surcharge Imposed” column indicates whether a surcharge has
been imposed on contributions to the plan. The last column lists the expiration date(s) of the
collective-bargaining agreement(s) (“CBA”) to which the plans are subject.

Plans in which the Company had significant participation for the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021, are outlined in the table below:

PRA PPA Expiration
Zane Zong FIPIRP Status Date of
EfN/Pension Plan  Status Status Pending/ Contributions Contribufions Surcharge Callective
Pangign Fund Number 2020 2019 Implemented 2022 2021 Imposad Bargaining
Pipefittars Local Novesmber
22 Pension Fund 16-0920434-001 Grasn Green Nona $ 4074701 $ 4,821,110 No 2023
Sheet Metal
Workers Nationat
Pansion Fund 52.6112463-001 Yellow  Yellow Implemented 4,069,305 4,515,074 No July 2023
Pipsfitters Local
112 Pension
Fund 16-6052007-001 Yellow  Yeflow Implemented 1,202,430 1,754,487 No April 2022
Pipefittars Local
13 Pension Fund 16.0778364-001 Green Green Implamented 1,168,502 1,347,796 No Octcber 2023
Pipefitters Local
773 Pension
Fund 237114547001 Grean Green None 944,001 1,455,396 No April 2023
Pipafitters Local 7
Pension Fund 91-2055384-001 Grean Grean None 939,744 843,977 No April 2023
Sheat Metal
Workers Local 71
Pension Fund 16-6051585-001 Green Green None 779,465 890,504 No May 2022
Pipefitters Local
189 Pension
Fund 31-0894807-001 Grean Green Nane 765,365 844,947 No May 2023
Pipefitters Local
267 Pension
Fund 15-0347955-001 Yellow Yellow Implemented 658,208 1,371,618 No April 2023
Other Plans BER.523 1,483,992

i 154010334  A.12.28.301

The collective-bargaining agreements require the Company to make contributions to a number
of plans other than for pension benefits. Total contributions related to these plans, primarily for
heaith and welfare benefits, amounted to approximately $10,868,000 and $12,300,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

CONCENTRATIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company had contract revenue from two
customers totaling approximately $67,916,822, approximately 24% of total contract revenue
eamed. Contracts and retainage receivable from these customers totaled $10,325,961,
approximately 13% of total contracts receivable and retainage at December 31, 2022.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company had confract revenue from two
customers fotaling approximately $61,606,556, approximately 21% of total contract revenue
earned. Contracts and retainage receivable from these customers totaled $10,830,315,
approximately 14% of total contracts receivable and retainage at December 31, 2021.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In connection with its normal construction activities, the Company may be required to acquire
performance, bid, and payment bonds. The Company is contingently liable to a surety
company under a general indemnity agreement. The Company agrees to indemnify the surety
for any payments made on contracts of suretyship, guarantee or indemnity. The surety issuing
the bonds has recourse against certain of the Company's assets in the event the surety is
required to pay on the bonds. The Company believes that all contingent liabilities to the surety
company will be satisfied by their performance on the specified bonded contracts. At
December 31, 2022, surety bonds for contracts totaling approximately $305,222,882 have
been issued with a current backlog of approximately $90,956,594.

The Company is subject to various legal actions and claims arising in the ordinary course of
business. In the opinion of management, the outcome of any of those matters will not have a
materiai adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations, or cash
flows.

SUPPLEMEN'i'AL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

2022 2021
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest 3 175206 3 575.605

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 27, 2023, the date the consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued.
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Schedule |
JWD GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULES OF SELLING, GENERAL, AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021
Salaries $ 13,014,243 § 11,461,402
Rent 2,561,585 1,086,057
IT and communications 2,248,341 2,021,496
Payroll taxes and insurance 1,408,747 1,213,730
Corporate insurance 1,278,721 1,217,668
Employee benefits 1,158,239 1,170,270
Travel and entertainment 1,142,112 573,029
Repairs and maintenance 784,095 813,585
Real estate and other taxes 782,761 754,737
Consulting fees 725,417 961,267
Depreciation 656,386 1,630,798
Utilities 595,380 460,067
Advertising 526,306 418,070
Office supplies 455,616 466,345
Office 401(k) plan expenses 446,289 406,912
ESOP expense _ 384,713 -
Professional services ‘ 361,280 378,351
Vehicle expense 276,995 253,524
Dues and subscriptions 220,178 233,868
Training 157,516 154,676
Contributions 113,079 75,224
Credit card and bank fees 82,425 69,670
Directors' fees 80,000 50,000
Life insurance premiums 22,799 41,791
Estimating expense 21,707 35,254
Bad debts - 93,141

$ 29,505430 § 26,040,922

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these schedules.
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BID BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, the undersigned,
John W. Danforth Company, 300 Colvin Woods Parkway, Tonawanda, New York 14150 as Principal,

Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland, 1299 Zurich Way. Schaumburg, Illinois 60196-1056 and as Surety, are hereby held
Five Percent {5%) Of The Amount Set

and firmly bound unto the County of Saratoga as owner in the penal sum of _ porh In The Accompanying Proposale---z--- for

the payment of which, well and truly to be made, we hereby jointly and severally bind ourselves, our heirs, executors,

administrators, successors and assigns. Signed, this 28th day of September 2023

The condition of the above is such that whereas the Principal has submitted to the Saratoga County Department of Public Works

a Certain Bid, attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof to enter in a contract in wrifing, to

HVAC Modifications - Phase 1
Saratoga County Animal Shelter
6010 County Farm Road, Ballston Spa. NY
23-PWASHAVC-15 (M)
NOW, THEREFORE,

(a) If said Bid shall be rejected, or in the alternate,

(b) If said Bid shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a contract in the form of contract attached
hereto (properly completed in accordance with said Bid) and shall furnish a bond for his faithful performance of said
contract, and for the payment of all persons performing labor or furnishing materials in connection therewith, and shall in
all other respects perform the agreement created of said Bid, then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the same shall
remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood and agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all ¢laims
hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal amount of this obligation as herein stated.

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulated agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond shall be in no way
impaired or affected by an extension of the time within which the Owner may accept said Bid; and said Surety does
hereby waive notice of any such extensions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto
set their hands and seals, and such of them as are corporations have
caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be
signed by their proper officers, the day and year first set for above.

John W. Danforth Company {L.S) Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland
Principal Surety
BY?O‘___W By: \glwvx _ P / {;g_/
ason P. Rudich, Executive Vice President Secan P. Keenan, Attorney-in-fact

IMPORTANT - Surety companies executing bonds must be authorized to transact business in the State of New York.
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ACKNOWLEDGMENT BY PRINCIPAL (IF A CORPORATION}

State of New York )
) ss:
County of Erie )

On this 28th day of September, 2023 before me personally came Jason P. Rudich, who being by me duly
sworn, did depose and say that he resides in Marilla, New York, that he is the Executive Vice President of the
John W, Danforth Company, the corporation described in and which executed the foregoing instrument; that he
knew the seal of said corporation; that the seal affixed to said instrument was such corporate seal: thatit was
so affixed by order of the Board of Directors of said carporation and that he signed his name thereto by like order.

- ,.:--/
\eum l’%@
NataryPublic

KEVIN F. LAURENDI
No. 01LA6346040
Notary Public, State of New York
ngllﬁed in Erie County
My Commission Expires 08!08!202‘:'_1

ACKNOWLEDGMENT BY SURETY COMPANY

State of New York )
) 88!
County of Erie }

On this 28th day of September, 2023 before me personally came Sean P. Keenan, who being by me
duly sworn, did depose and say that he resides in Buffalo, New York, that he is the Attorney-in-fact of the
Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland, the corporation described in and which executed the within instrument:
that he knows the seal of said corporation; that the seal affixed to said instrument is such corporate seal: that it was
so affixed by the order of the Board of Directors of said corporation and that he signed his name thereto by like
order; and that the liabilities of said company do nof exceed its assefs as ascertained in the manner provided by the
laws of the State of New York. _

jz%;ﬂ/%{& /é/

Notary Public

VICTORIA C. CHURCH
No. 01CH6398837
Notary Public, State of New York
Qualified in Erie County
My Commission Expires 10/07/2075




THE FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY

OF MARYLAND
[299 Zurich Way Schaumburg, 11, 60196

Statement of ¥inaneia? Condition
As Qf December 31, 2022

ASSETS

Bonds... e R s s s s e s s oes § 210,365,768
Stocks eeieane 17,619,752
Cash md ShaﬁwTexm Inveaéments ................................................................................................... 2,767,685
ReiSUrance RECOVEIAIIE ... ..covcr oo iave s ianseasesssseseress sssece s eomms e sessesesesveses e sos oo eeees e seee s eeesmseee s 12,309 422
Federal Ineomme Tax RECOVELABIG. .. .o mrcvcenrermeionrorssscosenemossessssassessesssoessesssesssseeeoeseseoseseesseeesesone 0
OHEr ACCONTHS RECEIVADIE .oovvererrececrerasscesearsersss stvessrss sores ssesesmeseeses sossssase st et bores s eeeeessees oo 32,200,768

TOTAL ADMITTED ASSETS. oo vmrevrnsressens st sesssassessss st ossessonsassss csnss sssmeemsessosiesesoessessssssssesees soees e 3 284,263,392

TIABILITIES, SURPLUS AND OTHER FUNDS
Reserve Tor Taxes and BRPOISES ..o e errvnrs eesssesrernssosrereorveeeeseesmsssrrcss 3 545,031
Ceded Reinsurance Premiums Payable 42 850,834

Remittances and Hems Unalocated ..., et 0

Payable to parents, subs and sffiliates............. 0

Securities Landing Collateral Liability....c.coeee. 13
TOPAL LAABILITIER | rocesvcrmecesssseie e erc e s assaesss s bsessensensnsron S $ 43,395,865

Capital <§mck, Paid Up 5 006 OOG

Surplus.... . e er s ra st et e se b 240,867,527

Surplus as mgards Pel:cym}dm e R s b e bs st s sneenenensonnnsenenes S BET, 52T
TOTAL tveniunsssinsressss iore s orrmestes s ese et sh£sse e 13 A 830 st et et et et e st e st ¥ 284263392

Securities carried at 78,455,274 in the above statement are r}apositéci with various states as required by law.

Securities carried on the basis prescribed by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners. On the basis of
market quotations for all bands and stocks owned, the Company's total admitted assets at December 34, 2022 would
be $266,908,407 and surplus a3 regards policyholders $223,512,542.

I LAURA J, LAZARCZYK, Comotate Secretary of the PIELITY AND DIEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, do
hereby cextify that the foregoing staternent is a correct exhibit of the assets and Eabilities of the said Company on the

3ist day of December, 2022,
{ bern 3 Loy

Corporate Secretary

. State of Hinois
City of Schaumburg } 58

Subscribed and swom to, befbre me, a Notary Public of the State of Ilinols, in the Cii Schavmburg, tds 15™ day of March, 7623,

o e e st aBoclia / /7/4

RYAN HORGAN :
Officlal Seal
Matary Public - State of Hlinels
My Comrnission Expires Dec 10, 2024
WWMW“M*—%”@»%*&@ SHRETRS,

Notary Public




ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND
PGWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the ZURICH AMBRICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, a corporation of the State of New
York, the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, a corporation of the State of llinois, and the FIDELITY
AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND a corporation of the State of lHinois (herein collectively called the "Companies™), by
Robert D. Murray, Vice President, in pursuance of authority granted by Articie V, Section §, of the By-Laws of said Companies, which are
set forth on the reverse side hereof and are hereby certified to he in full force and effect on the date hereof, do hereby nominate, constitute,
und appoint Edward F. WALSH, Jr., Patrick J. QUINN, John N. WALSH, HI, Michael K. WALSH, Beverly A.
ZOLNOWSKY, Sean P. KEENAN and Patricia A. STEGER, all of Buffalo, New York, . its true and lawful agent and
Attorney-in-Fact, o make, execute, seul and defiver, for, and on its behalf as surely, and as its act and deed: any and all bonds and
srdertakings, and the execution of such bands or undertakings in purseance of these presents, shall be as binding upon said Companyes,
as fully and amply, o all intemts and purposes, as if they had been duly excouted and acknowledged by the regularly elected
officers of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY at its office in New York, New York, the regulaely elected
officers of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY at its office in Owings Mills, Maryland., and the
regularly elected officers of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND at its offiee in Owings Mills, Marvland.. in
thelr own proper persons,

The said Vice President does hereby certify that the extract set forth on the reverse side hereof i # frue copy of Articke V, Section 8. of
the By-Laws of said Companies, and is now in force. .

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the said Vice-President has hereunto subscribed hisher names and affixed the Corporate Seals of the
said ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY,
ST COMPANY OF MARYLAND, this 5th day of Faly, AD. 2020,

ol H)E Ay
& -
Wy N

ATTEST:

ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY

COLONJAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND

By: Robert D. Muriray
Vice Presichent

R N & T

By Dawn E. Brown
Secretary

State of Maryland
County of Baldmore

On ths 50 day of fuly, A 2024, befors the subscriber, a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, duly commissioned and qualified, Robert D,
Murray, Vice President and Dawa E. Brown, Secretary of the Companies. to me personally known o be the individuals and officers deseribed in and
who executed the preceding instrument, and scknowledged the execmtion of same, and being by me duly swom, deposeth and saith, that he/she is the said
officer of the Company aforesaid, and that the seals affixed to the preceding instiurment are the Corporate Seals of said Comparnies, and that the said Corporate
Seals and the sigmture as such officer were duly affixed and subsceribed to the said instrament by the autherity and direction of the said Corpurations.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOQF. { have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Officinl Seal the day and year first above written,

(M, -
\“‘r L 9‘3’;&’/
ottty T o
I Rea 2 .M
EEE ?

Y "
5 G aud S Constance A, Dunn, Notary Public
5 My Commission Expires: July 9, 2023




EXTRACT FROM BY-LAWS OF THE COMPANIES

*Article V, Section 8, Attorneys-in-Faet, The Chief Executive Officer, the President, or any Executive Vice President or Vice President
may, by written instument under the attested corporate seal, appoint sstomevs-in-fact with awthority to execute bonds, policies,
recognizances, stipulations, undertzkings, or other Gike instruments on behalf of the Company, and may authorize any officer or any such
attorney-in-fact o affix the corporate seal thereto; and may with or without cause modify of revoke any such appointment or authority at any
Hre.”

CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned, Vice President of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, the COLONIAL AMERICAN
CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, and the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, do hereby certify that
the foregoing Power of Amomey is still in full force and effect on the date of this certificate; and [ do further certify that Anicle V,
Section 8, of the By-Laws of the Companies is still in force, .

This Power of Atterney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of
Directors of the ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY at a meeting duly cailed and held on the 15th day of December 1998,

RESOLVED: "That the signature of the President or a Vice President and the attesting signature of a Secretary or an Assistant Secrotary
and the Seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile on any Power of Attorney... Any such Power or any certificate thereof bearing such
facsimile signature and seal shall be valid and binding on the Company.”

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile wnder and by authority of the following resolution of the Board of
Brirectors of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY at a meeting duly called and beld on the Sth day of
May, 1994, and the following resolution of the Board of Directors of the FIDELITY AND BEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND ut a
meeiing duly called and held on the 18th day of May, 1990,

RESGLVED: "That the facsimile or mechanically reproduced seal of the company and facsimile or mechanically reproduced signature
of any Vice-President, Secretary, or Assistant Secretary of the Company, whether made heretofire or hereafier, wherever appearing upon 2
certificd copy of avy power of attomey issued by the Company, shall be valid and binding upon the Company with the same force and effect
as though masually affixed, '

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF, 1 have horeunto subscribed my name and affixed the corperate seals of the said Companies,
this _ 28 dayof Seplember | 2023

w3

" Bty

By: Brian M. Hodges
Vige President

TO REPORT A CLAIM WITH REGARD TO A SURETY BOND, PLEASE SUBMIT A COMPLETE DESCRIPTION
OF THE CLAIM INCLUBING THE PRINCIPAL ON THE BOND, THE BOND NUMBER, AND YOUR CONTACT
INFORMATION TO:

Zurich Surety Claims

1299 Zurich Way

Schaumburg, 1L 60196-1056
www reporisfclaims@rurichna.com
800-626-4577




FORM OF BID
HVAC MODIFICATIONS - PHASE 1
Saratoga County Anintal Shelter
6016 County Farm Road, Ballston Spa, NY

BID #23 PWASHAVC-15(E) - Electrical Conshuction

Date: ? /za /z -

Bidof 58 MReMIER CoNTRACTING, LLC _ (heremafier called "Bidder™)
‘organized and existing under the laws of the State of __ /| (£ !; 2 s |
doingbusiness as__[S BB, PREMIER  ConTRACTING , LLC

To (e County of Saratoga, Ballston Spa, New York (hersinafter called "Owner").

Centlemen:

“The Bidder, in compliance with your invitation for bids for SARATOGA COUNTY ANIMAL SHELTER, and having
examinsd sgec;ﬁcanans with related documents and the site of the pmpc;sed project, hereby propeses to furnish all labor;
materials, and supplies; and fo complete-the project in a timely manner-in. accordance with the Contract Docuiments; and a
‘the prices stated below. These: prices afe to.cover all expenses incutred in performing the work required under the Contract
Doctanerits, of which this bid is & part,

Bidder agrees to perferm all worlcdeseribed in these specifications (as 4 lamp sum) a3 stated in the following. The bidder
agrees to furnish all labor; equipment, and material ecessary for thie Saratoge County Animal Shelter based on these
specifications 23-PWASHAVC-15(E) and a review of the site,

°
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FORM OF BID \

BIDER'SNAME: _ B &R 1Remuch  (enrmedctinE, Lic

Addenda Acknowledgement: Addendum No. Date Received
i a4 /z =
_z /7

BASE BID SN S < X 20 010 o0 »1%;

TOTAL WRITTEN AMOUNT:  _fLys Fou Hous.
Ave Z2ERO CENTS.

NOTE: Base bid shall include contract allowance of $5808 for BID #23 PWASHAVC: IS(E})-— Electrical
Consiraclion.

Thié bidder understands that the Owoer reserves:the ‘tight to reject'any or &l bids and to waive any informalities.

“The bidder agrees that his bid shall be valid:and may not he withdrawn for a periad of 45 days after scheduled closing:
time for receiving bids.

‘The bid security atiached in the.sum of § 4'1. 200 . o0 _{in figures)

Tn : Ne_ ZERLO ceNTS {in words)

i510-become the property: of the Ownir'in the event that contractand bend are not executed within the time set forth, as
liquidated damages for fhie delay'and additional expense to the County: caused thereby:

Respectfully submitted: SIGNATURE QZ.A:/’ (ﬂ

NAME & TTTLE E’a BELT Bgr);/ Ousrg.

{Sedl if bid is by a corporation) COMPANY LLe
ADDRESS . 16 FERR < =T

) - 125
FEIN_Z|-— 72,2 72347

TELEPHONE /B - CAl-Ltsa?

DATE 72&4/&3 | FAX

EMAIL ADDRESS _Fonn21 P B8@EMAIL. cong

PAGE2OF 2
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BID BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, the undersigned, B&B Premier Contracting, LLC
10 Ferris Street, Hudson Falls, NY 12839

as Principal,
Old Republic Insurance Company and as Surety, are hereby held
and firmly bound unto the County of Saratoga as owner in the penal sum of  Fve Percent of Attached Bid (5%)  fr

the payment of which, well and truly to be made, we hereby jointly and severally bind ourselves, our heirs, executors,

administrators, successors and assigns. Signed, this 28" gay of September 20 23

‘The condition of the above is such that whereas the Principal has submitted to the County of Saratoga

a Certain Bid, attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof to enter in a contract in writing, to

HVAC Moeodifications - Phase 1
Saratoga County Animal Shelter
6016 County Farm Read, Ballston Spa. NY

NOW, THEREFORE,
(2) If said Bid shall be rejected, or in the alternate,

(b) If said Bid shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a contract in the form of contract attached
hereto (properly completed in accordance with said Bid) and shall furnish a bond for his faithful performance of sajd
contract, and for the payment of all persons performing labor or furnishing materials in connection therewith, and shall in
all other respects perform the agreement created of said Bid, then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the same shall
remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood and agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims
hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal amount of this obligation as herein stated. '

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulated agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond shall be in no way
impaired or affected by an extension of the time within which the Owner may accept said Bid; and said Surety does
hereby waive notice of any such extensions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto
set their hands and seals, and such of them as are corporations have
caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be
signed by their proper officers, the day and year first set for above.

B&B Premier Contracting, LLC (L. S) Old Republic Insurance Company
Principal ' Surety

Robert Brady, Owner d

IMPORTANT - Surety companies executing bonds must be authorized to transact business in the State of New York.
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INDIVIDUAL
STATE OF
COUNTY OF 58

On this day of ) , before me personally appeared
to me known and known to me to be the individual

in and who executed the foregoing instrument and
acknowledged to me that
executed the same in his individual capacity.

Notary Public
COPARTNERSHIP
STATE OF
COUNTY OF 88
On this day of ) , before me personally appeared

to me known and known to me to be one of the firm of

described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and he/she thereupon acknowledged to me that he/she
executed the same as and for the act and deed of said firm.

Notary Public
CORPORATE

STATE OF _NEWYORK
COUNTY OF _ALBANY s

Onthis __26th _ day of September , 2023 , before me personally appeared
Robert Brady to me known, who, being by me first duly sworn,
did depose and say that he/she resides in _Hudson Falls, New York ; that he/she is the
Owner of __ B&B Premier Contracting, LLC

the corporation described in and which executed the foregoing instrument; that he/she knows the corporate seal of
" said corporation; that the corporate seal affixed to said instrument is such corporate seal; that it was so affixed by
order and authority of the Board of Directors of said corporation, and that he/she signed his/her narme thereto by

like order and authority. ~  KIMBERLY A. RITCHIE. ) .
Notary Public, State of New York i N
_No. 01RI6215612 - .
_Qualified in Rensselaer.County tary Publiecee’ ’
Commission Expires January 4, 2026 otary Publi
SURETY
STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF ALBANY ss
|, Kimberly A, Ritchie Notary Public of _Rensselaer
Gounty, in the State of New York do hereby certify that _Jaymie P. Columbus
Attorney-in-Fact, of the _Old Republic Insurance Company , who is personally

known to me to be the same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me

this day in person, and acknowledged that he/she signed, sealed and delivered said instrurnent, for and on behalf
of the __Old Republic Insurance Company , for the uses and

purposes therein set forth. _ _
Given under my hand and notarial seal at my office in the City of Latham

in said County, this __26th day of September /_, A.D. 2023
~ KIMBERLY A, RITCHIE %
Notary Public; State of New York = - Ad)
Form F5345 No, 01RI6215612 NOtary Public

Qualified in Rensselaer County
Commission Expires January 4, 2026




OLD REPUBLIC INSURANCE COMPANY
GF MT. PLEASANT, PENNSYLVANIA

STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022
ADMITTED ASSETS

Bonds
Commuon stocks
Cash, cash equivalents and shortterm investments
Bonds, shortterm investments and cash held under retrospective rating agreements
Pramiums and considerations — uncollected premiums and agents” balances in the course of collection
Deferred premlums, agents’ balances and instaliments booked but deferred and not yet due
Accrued rpirospective premiums
Funds held by or deposiled with einsurad companles
Qther amounts receivable under reinsurance contracts
Amaunts recoverable from reinsurers
Electronic dala processing equipment and software
tnvestment income due and accrued
Current federal and foreign income tax recoverable and interest
Reteivables from parent, subsidiaries and affiliates
Other assets
TOTAL ADMITTED ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SURFLUS

Losses
Reinsurance payable on pald losses and loss adjustment expenses

‘Loss adjustinent expenses

Commissions payable, contingent commissions and other similar charges
Other expenses {exciuding 1axes, #censes and fees)
Taxes, licenses and fees {excluding federal income taxes}
Currant federal income taxes
Net deferred tax tiability
Unearned premfums
Dividends declared and unpaid - peficyholders
Advance premium
Ceded reinsurance premiums payabia (net of ceding commissions}
Funds held by company under reinsurance treaties
Amounts withheld or retained by company for account of others
Remittances and itemns not atlocated
Provision for reinsurance
Payable to parent, subsidiaries and affiliates
Other labilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Commaon capital stock
Surplus notes
Gross paid in and contributed surplus
Unassigned fands (surplus)
SURFLUS AS REGARDS POLICYHOLDERS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS

Becurities carded at $419,089,780 are deposited with States or Other Authorities as required by Jaw.

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
158
COUNTY OF WAUKESHA)

Alan P. Pavlic, Vice President, and Karen.J, Haffner, Vice President of Old Republic insurance Company of Mt Pleasant, Pennsylvania being
duly swomn, each for himself, deposes and says that they are the above described officers of the said company, antl that on the 21st day of
Decembér, 2022, the company was actually possessed of the assets set forth In the foregoing stetemeni and that such assets were
ava:tab!a for the payment of Iusseaand clauns and held forthe protection of its polrcyhotders and cfedators, except as herg-in-before

Notzry Publn: State of W’lsconsm
My Commission expires: July 31, 2023

$2,328,284,958
627,463,625
115,262,534
105,056,403
£02,071,511
5,398,218
349,056
538,986
260,166
109,630,686
179,308
21,938,565
476,359
15,946,777
9,347,078

$3,941,202,230

$1,126,329,785
13,872,966
210,945,288
7,498,635
24,544,862
74,000,945
0
17,225,673
344,640,487
2,414,897
2,082,588
468,691,280
97,814,943
104,150,884
1,850,911
37,014,434
3,516,073
42,830,459 _

$2,550.062,224

3,800,004
155,200,000
103,869,422

1,126,430,580

$1,389,150,006

$3,941,202,230




B el 3

% OLD REPUBLIC INSURANCE COMPANY

*****

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That OLD REPUBLIC INSURANCE COMPANY, a Pennsylvania stock insurance corporation, does make,

TIMOTHY M. TYRRELL, CHARLES C. LEACH, PATRICK J. CLYNE, JAYMIE P, COLUMBUS,

MICHAEL J. GRASSO, HARRY UNGEHEUER, KIMBERLY RITCHIE of LATHAM, NY

its true and lawful Attorney(s)-in-Fact, with full power and authority for and on behalf of the Company as surety, to execuie and deliver and affix the seal of the
Company thereto (if a seal is required), bonds, undertakings, recognizances or other written obligations in the nature thereof, (ofther than self-insurance workers

constitute and appoint:

compensation bonds guarantesing payment of benefits, or black lung bonds), as follows:
ALL WRITTEN INSTRUMENTS

and to bind OLD REPUBLIC INSURANCE COMPANY thereby, and all of the acts of said Attorneys-in-Fact, pursuant to these presents, are ratified and
confirmed. This appgintment is made under and by authority of the board of directors at a mesting held ot December 10, 2019. This Power of Altorney is sighed
and sealed by facsimile under and by the authority of the following resolutions adopted by the board of directors of the OLD REPUBLIC INSURANCE

COMPANY on December 10, 2019.
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the chairman, president or any vice president of the Company's surety division, in conjunction with the secretary or any
assistant secretary of the Company, be and hereby are authorized and directed to execute and-deliver, to such persons as such officers of the Company
may deem appropriate, Powers of Afiomey in the form presented to and aftached to the minufes of this meeting, authorizing such persons to execute and
deliver and affix the seal of the Company to bonds, undertakings, recognizances, and suretyship obligations of all kinds, other than bail bonds, bank
depository bonds, mortgage deficiency bonds, mortgage guaranty bonds, guarantees of installmant paper and not guaranty bonds. The said officers may

revake any Power of Attorney previously granted fe any such person.

RESOLVED FURTHER that any bond, undertaking, recagnizance, or suretyship obligation shall be valid and binding upon the Company
(1) when signed by chairmen, president or anyvice president of the Company’s surety division and attested andsealed (if a seal be required} by any

secretary or assistant secretary; or
(i) when signed by a duly authorized Attorney-in-Fact and sealed with the seal of the Company (if a seal be required).

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the signature of any officer designated above, and the seal of the Company, may be affixed by facsimile to any Power of
Aftorney or certification thereof authorizing the execution and delivery of any bond, undertaking, recagnizance, or other suretyship obligations of the

Company, and such signature and seal when so used shall have the same force and effect as though manually affixed.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, QLD REPUBLIC INSURANCE COMPANY has caused these presents to be signed by its proper officer, and its corporate seal to

be affixed this 2nd day of March 2022 ,
s, IC INSU E COMPANY
Koy Hafdans (s %
d i § %g 'SEAL :
AR R/ Vice President

Assistant SecretaFjr v

ke
g

STATE OF WISCONSIN, COUNTY OF WALIKESHA - S8
On this _2nd dayof March , 2022 , personally came before me, Alan Pavlic
, to me known te be the individuals and officers of the OLD REPUBLIC INSURANCE

and Karen J. Haffrer

COMPANY who executed the above instrument, and they each acknowledged the execution of the same, and being by me duly swarn, did severally depose
and say: that they are the said officers of the corporation aforesaid, and that the seal affixed to the above instrument is the seal of the corporation, and that said
corporate s¢al and their signatures as such officers were duly affixed and subscribed to ihe said instrument by the authority of the board of directors of said

organization.

Netary Public

September 28, 2022

My Commission Expires:

(Expiration of notary’s commission does not invalidate this instrument)

CERTIFICATE
I, the undersigned, assistant secretary of the OLD REPUBLIC INSURANCE COMPANY, a Pennsylvania corporation, CERTIFY that the foregoing and
attached Power of Attorney remains in full force and has not been revoked; and furthermore, that fhe Resolutions of the board of directors set forth in the

Power of Attorney, are now in force.

\\ﬂm\mmu.'u,,.ﬂ.
Sp WAy,
s %
gg O‘SEAL& %,_.g% Signed and sealed at the City of Brookfield, WI this 26th day of September 2023
72:5020 Lo\ 37 / Lt
L AsSistant Secigtlly

CRSC 11008 (6-93) o

ARTHUR J GALLAGHER RISK MNGT .




CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE FOR THE
PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Pursuant to State Fiance Law §139-1 of the State of New York, effective January 1, 2019, where
competitive bidding 1s required for cettain public contracts; .every bid must contain the following
statement affinming that the bidder has implemented a ‘writtert policy addressing sexual
harassment -prevention and. that {he bidder provides anmual sexual harassment prevention
training, whichi statement must be signed by the bidder and affirmed by such bidder under the

penalty of perury:

[Pleise Check Onig]

BIDDER’S CERTIFICATION

Kl By submission of this bid, éach bidder and each person signing on behalf of any bidder
certifies, and in the ‘case of a Jamt ‘bid ‘each party thereto. certifies as to iis own
organization, under penalty of perjury, that the bidder has and has mpplemented a writfen
policy addressmg sexiral harassment prevention in the Werkpiace and provides anral
sexual harassment prevention training to all of its employees, Such poliey shall, at a
minimum, meet the requirements of section two hundred one-g of thic labor law,

1 Iamuieble o certify that T, or my employer, have Implenientad a written policy
addressing sexual harassment prevention:in the workplace, The reason(s) why teither 1
nor'my employer can miake such certification isfare:

Dated: i Zzg 2023

STATE OFlad

COUNTY OF Lr a2 i

The undersigned, bemg duly sworn, says: (a) Lam ciu[y aiithorized to exscute this Cextification
and (b) Thereby certify uader penalty of perjury, that the forgeing Certification is in all respects

‘Hue and accurate,
7 A

ngnamrey

ReBERT BMD}/
Printed Namé

EOWNER.
Title

Subscribed and sworn to beforeme this 7 &

, dyof o oin o 200D
K
\_/\Q\O P o ATRINA ROSALYN cARgy

e T Notary Public, State of
T i New
I\Sk}far_yl’_ubhc \( Qualified in Warren Counﬂ;mk

Reg. No. 01CA0003338
mmission Expires March 22, 2027

My Co




CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH IRAN DIVESTMENT ACT

‘Pursuant to General Munlezpai Law §103-g, which generally. prohlbxts the County of Saratoga:
from: aﬁtsrmg 1into-contracts with persons engaged in investment-activitics in the energy sector of
Tran, the bidder/proposer submits the following certification;

[Please Check Qnef
‘BIDDER'S CERTIFICATION

X By submissionof this bid or proposal, each bidder/proposer and each person- sigiing on
behalf of any bidder/proposer certifies, and v the case of a joint bid each party thereto
certiftes as oits owe organization, under penalty of peijury, that to the best of'its
knowledge and belief, that each bidder/ ‘propeseris niot on the list created pursuant o
paragiaph (b) of subdivision 3 of Section 165-a of the State’ Finarice Law.

E} Fam wnable 10 cerfify that my nanie and the name of the bidder/proposer does not appear
on the list created pursuant to paragraph {byof subdivision 3 of Section 165-a of the State

Finanee Law. [have attached a signed statement settmg forth in detail why I cannat so
gertify.

Dated: 7//23 2022

STATE OF oA ; )
B

COUNTY ORADC v

The un{iermg:ned bemg {hﬂy SWorn, says (a) 1 am duly authorized to exceute this Certification
and (b} I hereby certify, nader penalty of perjury, that the: f@rgamg Certificationis in.all respeets
true-and adcurate.

Bf 7S

Szgnanire

RomeltT 15ramy

Printed Name
Dewop) EJL
Title
Subscribed and sworn-to before me this Z 37
day of oo 2013
“Notary Poblic - KATRINA ROSALYN OARE
Notary Public, State of New YorkY
( ) Qualified in Warren Count 15

Reg. No. 01CAQ00
3338
My Commission Expires March 22, 2027




NON-COLLUSIVE BIDDING CERTIFICATION

Section 103-d of the General Municipal Law

{a) By submission of this bid, each bidder and each person signing on behalf
«of any bidder certifies, and, in the case of a joint'bid; each party thereto cerfifies
as to ifs-own organization, under penalty of perjliry, that to the best of knowledge
and belief:

(1) The prices in'this bid have been arrived at independently without collusion,
consultation, communication, or agreement for the purpese of restricting
competition, as to any matter relatifig 1o slich prices with arly other bidder. or with
any competitor;

(2) Unless otherwise equired by Law, the prices which have been guoted in
this bid have not been knowingly disclosed by the bidderand will not knowingly
be digclosed by the bidder prior to opening, directly of indirectly, to any other
bidder or to any competitor, and

{3) No attempt has been made or will be made by'the bidder to induce any
-other person, partnership or corporation to submit or not to-submit a bid for the
purpose of restricting competition.”
 Lhereby affirm underthe penalties of perjury that the foregoing statements
are e, : o '

Dated:, 7{/2;«3 2023

/%Z;(;{/ | !/l)//,/"“r:;/ _ OOwE T2

@ig_naﬁture & Title

STATE OF hAcn )
e ) st

Subscribed to and sworn before e this 7K day GTM&Q:L 20735

by 1 _ (narhe of signe).

Q M KATRINA ROSALYN CAREY

~\ Notary Public, State of New York
Notary Public Quatified in Warren County
.. Reg.No.01CA0003338
My Commission Expires March 22, 20%3’




CONTRACTOR REFERENCE SHEET

All bidders must camplete this form providing three (3) reférences of past performance. References
should involve projects and or service situations of similar size and scope to this bid. Referenees must
‘have had dealings with the bidder within the 1ast 36 months. The County reserves the right to contact any
of - all of the references supplied for an evaluation 0f past peiforntance inn order to establish the.
responsibility of the bidder before the actial award of this bid and/or contract.

BIDDER’S NAME: RAB PREMIER CDMTKA_CTINQ , bLC

REFERENCE NAME; SPAC Extepior. SITe LIGHTIAS
ADDRESS:. CARATOBA  SPA STATE DARIC
19 Re ATuedA  SPRins ¥ 1236,
TELEPHONE: 518 - 82710192
CONTACTPERSON: Sasen Tgnse

SR RS R R R S R e e R R R S R e R Wi AT YEste ok o R AR S o o R o A

REFERENCE NAME: As J T LD STAT6A RENO
ADDRESS: 502! Kevre BG
i mmeTen) N )/ (2997
TELEPHONE: 4R~ BT - ,,,,/_;‘/
CONTACT PERSON: _DPavip talour

e o e e e e e e Bt A R e e e b R ok R R R R e e R gk

REFERENCE NAME: Ron) DAC I A , . LACEMEN T~
ADDRESS: Zee__ =T Dt
Lop inTel _.I\J)_/ [IZEZ 2
TELEPHONE: 518 - 37B - 7By 7
CONTACT PERSON: Tony Casso
47
_PAGETOFL

Nosﬁce 'I'Ixis docammt may not bembdified vitlout the permissmn of a1 :m(homeé representame of Saratoga Cmmt} {re1 111’&:‘&6) i




FORM OF BID
HVYAC MODIFICATIONS — PHASE 1
Saratoga County Animal Shelter
6010 County Farm Road, Ballston Spa, NY

BID #23-PWASHAVC-15(P) — Plumbing Construction

Bid of DiGesare Mechanical Incorporated {hereinafter called "Bidder")

organized and existing under the laws of the State of __ New York

doing business as ___DiGesare Mechanical Incorporated

To the County of Saratoga, Ballston Spa, New York (hereinafter called "Owner™).

Gentlemen:

The Bidder, in compliance with vour invitation for bids for SARATOGA COUNTY ANIMAL SHELTER, and having
examined specifications with related documents and the site of the proposed project, hereby proposes to furnish all labor,
materials, and supplies, and to complete the project in a timely manner in accordance with the Contract Documents; and at
the prices stated below. These prices are to cover all expenses incurred in performing the work required under the Contract
Documents, of which this bid is a part.

Bidder agrees to perform all work described in these specifications (as a lump sum) as stated in the following. The bidder
agrees to furnish all labor, equipment, and material necessary for the Saratoga County Animal Shelter based on these
specifications 23-PWASHAVC-15(P) and a review of the site. - -

11
PAGE1 OF 2
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FORM OF BID
HVAC Modifications — Phase 1

BIDDER’S NAME:  DiGesare Mechanical Incorporated

Addenda Acknowledgement: Addendum No. Date Received

— v 4dholecma

BASEBID oo erassiee e e ener e $ S77.006
3 - !
TOTAL WRITTEN AMOUNT: Ql w ]

NOTE: Base bid shall include contract allowance of $1,500 for BID #23-PWASHAVC-15(P) — Plumbing
Construction.

The bidder understands that the Owner reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive any informalities.

The bidder agrees that his bid shall be valid and may not be withdrawn for a period of 45 days after scheduled closing
time for receiving bids.

The bid security atéached in the sum of § Q ) g co (in figures)

M@L&@m( il YL Dallars (in words)

is to become the property of the Owner in the event that contract and bond are not executed within the time set forth, as
liquidated damages for the delay and additional expense to the County caused thereby.

Respectfully submitted: ~ SIGNATURE X g

NAME & TITLE Thomas Holmes / Vice President

(Seal if bid is by a corporation) COMPANY__ DiGesare Mechanical Incorporated

ADDRESS 3434 Carman Road

Schenectady, NY 12303

FEIN _ 14-1636722

TELEPHONE _ (518) 356-2224

DATE 9/12/2023 FAX  (518) 356-5529

EMAIL ADDRESS tom@digesaregroup.com

12
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BID BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, the undersigned, DiGesare Mechanical, Inc.
3434 Carman Road, Schenectady, NY 12303 as Prineipal,
Western Surety Company, c¢/o CNA Surety, 151 N. Franklin St., Chicago, IL 80606 and as Surety, are hereby held

and firmly bound unto the County of Saratoga as owner in the penal sum of Five Percent of the Attached Bid (5%)  for

the payment of which, well and truly to be made, we hereby jointly and severally bind ourselves, our heirs, executors,
administrators, successors and assigns. Signed, this  22nd  day of September 20 23

The condition of the above is such that whereas the Principal has submitted to the County of Saratoga

a Certain Bid, attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof to enter in a contract in writing, to

HVAC Modifications - Phase 1
Saratoga County Animal Shelter
6010 County Farm Road, Ballston Spa. NY

NOW, THEREFORE,
(a) If said Bid shall be rejected, or in the alternate,

. (b) I said Bid shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a contract in the form of contract attached
hereto (properly completed in accordance with said Bid) and shall furnish a bond for his faithful performance of said
contract, and for the payment of all persons performing labor or furnishing materials in connection therewith, and shall in
all other respects perform the agreement created of said Bid, then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the same shall
remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood and agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims
hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal amount of this obligation as herein stated.

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulated agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond shall be in no way
impaired or affected by an extension of the time within which the Owner may accept said Bid; and said Surety does
hereby waive notice of any such extensions.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto
set their hands and seals, and such of them as are corporations have
caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be
signed by their proper officers, the day and year first set for above.

DiGesare Mechanical, Inc. (L. S) Western Surety Company
HC] Surety

By:y - t By:
Thomas Holmes, Vice President

ie Patricia Columbus, Attorney-in-Fact

IMPORTANT - Surety companies executing bonds must be authorized to transact business in the State of New York.

13
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INDIVIDUAL
STATE OF
COUNTY OF 88

On this day of , , before me personally appeared
to me known and known to me to be the individual

in and who executed the foregoing instrument and
acknowledged to me that
execuied the same in his individual capacity.

Notary Public

COPARTNERSHIP
STATE OF }
38

COUNTY OF

On this day of ) , before me personally appeared
to me known and known to me to be one of the firm of

described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and he/she thereupon acknowledged to me that he/she
executed the same as and for the act and deed of said firm.

Notary Public

CORPORATE
STATE OF NEWYORK
COUNTY OF ALBANY 88
On this __22nd day of September , 2023 before me personally appeared
Thomas Holmes to me known, who, being by me first duly sworn,
did depose and say that he/she resides in Amsterdam, New York ; that he/she is the
Vice President of DiGesare Mechanical, Inc.

the corporation described in and which executed the foregoing instrument; that he/she knows the corporate seal of
said corporation; that the corporate seal affixed to said instrument is such corporate seal; that it was so affixed by
order and authority of the Board of Directors of said corporation, and that he/she signed his/her name thereto by
like order and authciriﬁya
nginelli York
Notary Public, State of New
No. D1MAB421561 /)Z,&ﬁ’é ‘?Mmém%
Qualitied in Montgomery County Notary Public
Commission Expires September7, 202%

SURETY
STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF ALBANY } &8
I, Tiffany Gocha Notary Public of Saratoga
County, in the State of New York do hereby certify that _Jaymie Patricia Cofumbus
Attorney-in-Fact, of the _Western Surety Company . who is personally

known to me to be the same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me
this day in person, and acknowledged that he/she signed, sealed and delivered said instrument, for and on behalf
of the Westem Surety Company , for the uses and
purposes therain set forth.

Given under my hand and notarial seal at my office in the City of _Latham

in said County, this_22nd day of ___ September , A.D, 2023
TIFFANY GOCHA ' i
Notary Publi¢; State of New York .’rﬂm ( @4
Form F5345 Qualified in Saratoga County Notary Pubfic”

No. 01606434469
Commission Expires June 6, 2026




WESTERN SURETY COMPANY
Sioux Falls, South Dakota

Statement of Net Admitted Assets and Liabilities

December 31, 2022
ASSETS

Bonds
Stocks
Cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments
Receivables for securities
Investment income due and accrued
Premiums and considerations
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers
Current federal and foreign income tax recoverable and interest thereon
Net deferred tax asset
Receivable from parent, subsidiaries, and affiliates
Other assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS

Losses
Loss adjustment expense
Commissions payable, contingent commissions and other similar charges
Other expenses (excluding taxes, license and fees)
Taxes, License and fees (excluding federal and foreign income taxes)
Federal and foreign income taxes payable
Unearned premiums
Advance premiums
Ceded reinsurance premiums payable (net of ceding commissions)
Amounts withheld or retained by company for account of others
Provision for reinsurance
Payable to parent, subsidiaries and affiliates
Payable on security transactions
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities

Surplus Account:
Common stock $ 4,000,000
Gross paid in and contributed surplus 286,896,195
Unassigned funds 1,225.687,276

$  1,963,735,416
16,356,743
842,484

50,000

18,288,449
58,660,094
31,089,427

16,569,622
1.385

$ 2,105,593,621

$ 191,034,021
52,287,429
12,200,032

3,809,360
6,216,918
288.685.277
7,968,584
6,756,776
9,359,697
280,055
10,262,438

149,612

Surplus as regards policyholders
Total Liabilities and Capital

$ 589,010,150

$ 1.516.583.471

$ 2.105,593,621

I, Julie gggaAg51stant Vice President of Western Surety Company hereby certify that the above is an
@iggiéﬁ@se t10n of the financial statement of the Company dated December 31, 2022, as filed

al%?gthat date.

gg "%
Wt ,%p
&

”””f’i@gﬁéme

ance Departments and is a true and correct statement of the condition of Western

WESTERN SURETY COMPANY

I,

@ﬂa siapeeis®

Subscribed and sworn to me this 14th  day of March

By Qpﬂb Feg,

Assistant Vice President, External Reporting

My commission expires; §™™ OFFICIAL SEALY 3
-
} YOLAH:?A JIM&EF!::Ss 2 By
9. Motary Public, State Of lliincis :
$ 31y Commission Explres 09/24/2025 <  Notary Public

Commission No, 542740




Western Surety Company

POWER OF ATTORNEY APPOINTING INDIVIDUAL ATTORNEY-IN-FACT

Know All Men By These Presents, That WESTERN SURETY COMPANY, a South Dakota corporation, is a duly organized and existing corporation

having its principal office in the City of Sionx Falls, and State of South Dakota, and that it does by virtue of the signature and seal herein affixed hereby make,
constitute and appoint '

Michael Grasso, Charles C Leach, Jaymie Patricia Columbus, Kimberly Ritchie, Tiffany
Gocha, Individually

of Latham, NY, its true and lawful Attorney(s)-in-Fact with full power and authority hereby conferred to sign, seal and execute for and on its behalf bonds,
undeitakings and other obligatory instruments of similar nature

- In Unlimited Amounts -

and to bind it thereby as fully and to the same extent as if such instruments were signed by a duly authorized officer of the corporation and all the acts of said
Attorney, pursuant to the authori€y hereby given, are hereby ratified and confirmed.

This Power of Attorney is made and executed pursuant to and by authority of the By-Law printed on the reverse hereof, duly adopied, as indicated, by
the sharcholders of the corporation.

In Witaess Whereof, WESTERN SURETY COMPANY has caused these presents to be signed by its Vice President and its corporate seal to be hereto
affixed on this 8th day of November, 2022,

a..m----.% WESTERN SURETY COMPANY
s\“‘FTP

ALl T

aul T. Bruflai, Vice President
State of South Dakota .
County of Minnchaha

On this 8th day of November, 2022, before me personally came Paul T. Bruflat, to me known, who, being by me duly swomn, did depose and say: that
he resides in the City of Sioux Falls, State of South Dakota; that he is the Vice President of WESTERN SURETY COMPANY described in and which executed
the above instrument; that he knows the seal of said corporation; that the seal affixed to the said instrument is such corporate seal; that it was so affixed pursuant

to authority given by the Board of Directors of said corporation and that he signed his name thereto pursuant to like authority, and acknowledges same to be
the act and deed of said corporation.

bt b Y G hya b bt

. . .
My commission expires ; M. BENT
J
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NOTARY PUBLYC ;
March 2, 2026 b SOUTH DAKDTAIEEAD i M
Fabnhanss hotts G LLLL LG LLS 4

M. Bent, Notary Public
CERTIFICATE

L, L. Nelson, Assistant Secretary of WESTERN SURETY COMPANY do hereby certify that the Power of Attorney hereinabove set forth is still in force,

and further certify that the By-Law of the corporation printed on the reverse hereof is still in force. In testimony whereof I have hereunto subscribed my pame
and affixed the seal of the said corporation this 22™ day of September, 2023,

ﬁ“ﬂ“u...%

%, WESTERN SURETY COMPANY

-
ryuﬁnl‘“‘

%.;xef oy
A
L. Nelson, Assistant Secretary
Form F4280-7-2012

Go to www.cnasurety.com > Owner / Obligee Services > Validate Bond Coverage, if you want to verify bond authenticity,




Authorizing By-Law

ADOPTED BY THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WESTERN SURETY COMPANY

This Power of Attormney is made and executed pursuant to and by authority of the following By-Law duly adopted by the shareholders
of the Company.

Section 7. All bonds, policies, undertakings, Powers of Attorney, or other obligations of the corporation shall be executed in the
corporate name of the Company by the President, Secretary, and Assistant Secretary, Treasurer, or any Vice President, or by such other
officers as the Board of Directors may authorize.- The President, any Vice President, Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, or the Treasurer may
appoint Attorneys in Fact or agents who shall have authority to issue bonds, policies, or undertakings in the name of the Company. The
corporate seal is not necessary for the validity of any bonds, policies, undertakings, Powers of Attorney or other obligations of the corporation.

The signature of ahy such officer and the corporate seal may be printed by facsimile.




NON-COLLUSIVE BIDDING CERTIFICATION

Section 103-d of the General Municipal Law

(a) By submission of this bid, each bidder and each person signing on behalf
of any bidder certifies, and, in the case of a joint bid, each party therefo certifies
as to its own organization, under penalty of perjury, that to the best of knowledge
and belief:

(1) The prices in this bid have been arrived at independently without collusion,
consultation, communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting
competition, as {o any matter relating to such prices with any other bidder or with
any competitor;

(2) Unless otherwise required by Law, the prices which have been quoted in
this bid have not been knowingly disclosed by the bidderand will not knowingly
be disclosed by the bidder prior to opening, directly or indirectly, to any other
bidder or to any competitor, and

(3) No attempt has been made or will be made by the bidder to induce any
other person, partnership or corporation to submit or not to submit a bid for the
purpose of restricting competition.”

| hereby affirm under the penalties of perjury that the foregoing statements
are true.

Dated: September12 9023

Vice President

Signature  Thomas Holmes Title
STATE OF New York )
} ss:
COUNTY OF albany }
Subscribed to and sworn before me this _12thday of Sptember , 20 23

by _ Micole Mancj‘n\g,“( (name of signer).

QZﬁa—g q"%éﬂ% ‘

Notary Public

Nicole Manginelti
Notary Public, State of New York
No. 01MAS421561 '
Qualified in Montgomery County : 14
Commission Expires September 7, 2028




CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH JRAN DIVESTMENT ACT

Pursuant to General Municipal Law §103-g, which generally prohibits the County of Saratoga
from entering into contracts with persons engaged in investment activities in the energy sector of
Iran, the bidder/proposer submits the following certification:

[Please Check One]
BIDDER’S CERTIFICATION

By submission of this bid or proposal, each bidder/proposer and each person signing on
behalf of any bidder/proposer certifies, and in the case of a joint bid each party thereto
certifies as to its own organization, under penalty of perjury, that to the best of its
knowledge and belief, that each bidder/proposer is not on the list created pursuant to
paragraph (b) of subdivision 3 of Section 165-a of the State Finance Law.

] Tam unable to certify that my name and the name of the bidder/proposer does not appear
on the list created pursuant to paragraph (b) of subdivision 3 of Section 165-a of the State
Finance Law. I have attached a signed statement setting forth in detail why I cannot so
certify.

Dated: September 12 ,20 23,

STATE OF New York )
}ss.:

The undersigned, being duly sworn, says (a) I am duly authorized to execute this Certification
and (b} [ hereby certify, under penalty of perjury, that the forgoing Certification is in all respects

true and accurate. )ﬁg

Signature

Thomas Holmes
Printed Name

Vice President
Title

Subscribed and sworn to before me this  12th
day of _ September ,2023

Neiele  Wingneld
Notary Public 4

Nicole Manginell
Notary Public, State of New York
No. 01MAB421561 .
Qualified in Montgomery County . 5
Commission Expires September 7, 2025




CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE FOR THE
PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Pursuant to State Finance Law §139-1 of the State of New York, effective January 1, 2019, where
competitive bidding is required for certain public contracts, every bid must contain the following
statement affirming that the bidder has implemented a written policy addressing sexual
harassment prevention and that the bidder provides annual sexual harassment prevention
training, which statement must be signed by the bidder and affirmed by such bidder under the

penalty of perjury:
[Please Check One]
BIDDER’S CERTIFICATION

By submission of this bid, each bidder and each person signing on behalf of any bidder
certifies, and in the case of a joint bid each party thereto certifies as to its own
organization, under penalty of perjury, that the bidder has and has implemented a written
policy addressing sexual harassment prevention in the workplace and provides annual
sexual harassment prevention training to all of its employees. Such policy shall, at a
minimum, meet the requirements of section two hundred one-g of the labor law.

L] T am unable to certify that I, or my employer, have implemented a written policy
addressing sexual harassment prevention in the workplace. The reason(s) why neither I
nor my employer can make such certification is/are:

Dated: September 12 , 20 23.

STATE OF New York
COUNTY OF Albany ) ss:

The undersigned, being duly sworn, says: (a) [ am duly authorized to execute this Certification
and {b) I hereby certify, under penalty of perjury, that the forgoing Certification is in all respects
true and accurate.

Signature

Thomas Holmes
Printed Name

Vice President
Title

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 12th
day of _September ,20 23,

Mool ‘5}47.&4)4*/\/%

Notary Public

Nicole Manginelll

Notary Public, State of New York o
No.01MAB421561 .

Qualified in Montgomery Courty

Commission Expires September 7, 2025




CONTRACTOR REFERENCE SHEET

All bidders must complete this form providing three (3) references of past performance. References
should involve projects and or service situations of similar size and scope to this bid. References must
have had dealings with the bidder within the last 36 months. The County reserves the right to contact any
or all of the references supplied for an evaluation of past performance in order to establish the
responsibility of the bidder before the actual award of this bid and/or contract.

BIDDER’S NAME: DiGesare Mechanical Incorporated

C : t
REFERENCE NAME: Le /\ A&Qﬁ V\&\\! U(‘/‘LV LY
ADDRESS:

TELEPHONE: 8- 5%% - 9100
CONTACT PERSON: Q,}/mo\ !’/q.u] Km&v

e s s o e o e ook o sk ok ot sk o s s o ok e e sk afe sk s e o ok ok R o o R ook ok s ok ke sk e e e s s o ok sk ok o ok o ook ok kR sk sk e sk sk ke oR

REFERENCE NAME: . gaﬁf L nar el
ADDRESS: ! ~J

TELEPHONE: S8~ Y82~ (9]
CONTACT PERSON: Tevid L a)/ Lo

e she sk sle ok ok ke sk sk sk e sk koo s e sl sl sk e sk ok o s e ke sl sl s skl sk ok ke seiokok s skokok Sk ok ok ok e sk sk sk ke e sk ke ke s e e ke ke e

REFERENCE NAME: Socho. Manao w\e,m)—
ADDRESS: ~

TELEPHONE: §I2 - 35~V
CONTACT PERSON: I Socha

17
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CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATION STATEMENT

The undersigned certifies under oath that the information provided herein is true and sufficiently complete so as not to be
misleading.

SUBMITTED TO: The County of Saratoga

ADDRESS: 50 High West St., Ballston Spa, New York 12020
SUBMITTED BY: Thomas Holmes / Vice President

NAME: DiGesare Mechanical Incorporated

ADDRESS: 3434 Carman Road, Schenectady, NY 12303
PRINCIPAL OFFICE: 3434 Carman Road, Schenectady, NY 12303
Corporation ¥

Partnership [

Individual 0

Joint Venture [

Other (]

NAME OF PROJECT (if applicable): Saratoga County Animal Shelter HVAC Modifications - Phase 1

TYPE OF WORK (file separate form for each Classification of Work):

General Construction HVAC
X Plumbing Electrical
Other
(please specify)

1. ORGANIZATION:

1.1 How many years has your organization been in business as a contractor?
60+

1.2 How many years has your organization been in business under its present business name?
35 '

1.2.1  Under what other or former names has your organization operated?
Leo DiGesare & Sons Plumbing

18
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CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATION STATEMENT

1.3 If your organization is a corporation, answer the following:
1.3.1 Date of Incorporation: July 1982
132 State of Incorporation: New York
1.3.3  President’s Name: David DiGesare
1.3.4 Vice-President’s Name(s): Thomas Holmes

1.3.5 Secretary’s Name: Michael DiGesare
1.3.6 Treasurer's Name: Michael DiGesare

1.4 If your organization is a partnership, answer the following:
1.4.1 Date of Organization:
1.4.2  Type of Partnership (if applicable):
1.4.3  Name(g) of General Partner(s):

1.5 If your organization is individually owned, answer the following:
1.5.1 Date of Organization:

1,52 Name of Owner:

1.6 If the form of your organization is other than those listed above, describe it and name the principals:

2. LICENSING:

2.1 List jurisdictions and trade categories in which your orgamization is legally qualified to do business, and
indicate registration or license numbers, if applicable.

All Phases of piping, plumbing, HVAC, refrigeration, sheet metal, temperature controls

2.2 Listjurisdictions in which your organization’s partnership or trade name is filed.

Entire state of New York outside of New York City

19
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CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATION STATEMENT

3. EXPERIENCE:

31

32

33

3.4

35

3.6

List the categories of work that your organization normally performs with its own forces.

All phases of plumbing, pipimg, welding & HVAC

Claims and Suits - (if the answer to any of the questions below is yes, please attach details):
3.2.1 Has your organization ever failed to complete any work awarded to it? no

32.2  Arethere any judgements, claims, arbitration proceedings, or suits pending or outstanding
against your organization or its officers? no

3.2.3 Has your organization filed any lawsuits or requested arbitration with regard to construction contracts
within the last five (5) years? no

Within the last five (5) years has any officer or principal of your organization ever been an officer or principal
of another organization when it failed to complete a construction contract? (if answer is yes, please attach

details)
. No

On a separate sheet, list major construction projects your organization has in progress giving the name of the
project, owner, architect, contract amount, percent complete, and scheduled completion date.  gee Attached

34.1 State total worth of work in progress and under contract.
$152,840,956
On a separate sheet, list the major projects your organization has completed in the last five (5) years, giving the

name of project, owner, architect, contract amount, date of completion, and percentage of the cost of the work
performed with your own forces.

3,5.1 State average annual amount of construction work performed during the past five (5) years:
50,000,000

On a scparate sheet; list the construction experience and present commitments of the key individuals of your
organization.
See Attached

4. REFERENCES:

4.1

Trade References:
Security Supply - Mike Mullins - (518) 767-2226
Trane Company - Evelyn Daley - (518) 785-1315

F.W. Webb Co. - Tom Lane - {518} 490-7500

20
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CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATION STATEMENT

4,2 Bank References:
Capital Bank & Trust

Albany, New York
Kevin Harrigan - (518) 433-5830

4.3  Surety:
43.1 Name of bonding company: ~ Western Surety Company c/o CNA Surety

432 Name and address of agent: Gallagher Insuring Agency

Latham, New York
5. FINANCING:

5.1 Financial Statement:
5.1.1 Attach a financial statement, preferably audited, including your organization’s latest balance sheet and
income statement showing the following items; see attached
Current Assets (e.g., cash, joinf venture accounts, accounts receivable, notes receivable,
accrued income, deposits, materials inventory, and prepaid expenses);

Net Fixed Assets;
Other Assets,

Current Liabilities {e.g., accounts payable, notes payable, accrued expenses, provision
for income taxes, advances, accrued salaries, and accrued payroll taxes);

Other Liabilities (e.g., capital, capital stock, authotized and outstanding shares par
values, earned surplus and retained earnings).

5.1.2 Name and address of firm preparing attached financial statement, and date thereof:

Staff Ciampino Company

Albany, NY o "
5.1.3 Is the attached financial statement for the identical organization named on page one?

yes

If not, explain the relationship and financial responsibility of the organization whose financial
statement if provided (e.g., partner-subsidiary).

5.2 Will the organization whose financial statement is attached act as guarantor of the contract for
construction?

yes
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CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATION STATEMENT

6. SIGNATURE:

6.1

6.2

Dated 2023 day of __ September
Name of Organization: Incorporated
By:
T Thomas Holmes
Title: Vice President

Mr. Thomas Holmes

being duly sworn deposes and says

that the information provided herein is true and sufficiently complete so as not to be misleading.

Subscribed and sworn before me this 12th

day of

September 2023

Notary Public: ‘:)M MQMJQJG

My Commission Expires: A \‘1‘ 2025

Nicole Manginel
Notary Public, State of New York
No. §1MAG421561
Qualified in Montgomery County
Conmmission Expires Sepfember 7,2025

PAGE 5 OF 5
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CORPORATE BID RESOLUTION

For Corporate Bidders Only

RESOLVED, that  Thomas Holmes / Vice President be authorized to sign and submit
(individual)

the bid or proposal of this corporation for the following project(s):

HVAC Modifications - Phase 1
Saratoga County Animal Shelter
6010 County Farm Road, Ballston Spa. NY, Bid¥ PWASHAVC-15

and to include in such bid or proposal, the certificate as to non-collusion required by section 103-d of the General
Municipal Law as the act and deed of such Corporation, and for any inaccuracies or misstatements in such
certificates this corporate bidder shall be liable under the penalties of perjury.

Fokdk ok kR kokdcokkkkk

The foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolution adopted by _ DiGesare Mechanical Incoporated
{corporation)

at a meeting of its Board of Directors heldonthe  29th  dayof  August , 2023

and is still in full force and effect on this __ 28th  day of September , 2023

SEAL OF CORPORATION

24
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INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE AGREEMENT

IT IS HEREBY AGREED by _DiGesare Mechanical Incorporated , the CONTRACTOR, as follows:

INSURANCE
CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Contractor shall purchase and maintain such insurance as will protect him from all ¢laims as set forth below, which may arise cut
of or result from the Contractor’s operations under the Contract, whether such operations be by himself or any subconiractor or by
anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable:

claims under workmen’s compensation, disability benefit and other similar employee benefit acts;

claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death of his employees;

claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any person other than his employees;

claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage which are sustained (1} by any person as a result of an
offense directly or indirectly related to the employment of such person by the Contractor, or {2) by any other person; and

5. claims for damages because of injury to or destruction of tangible property, including loss of use resulting therefrom,

S

Certificates of Insurance acceptable to the County shall be filed with the County prior to commencement of the work. Saratoga County
must be named and included as an additional insured under the Contractor’s general liability insurance. Proof that the County has been
named as an additional insured on the Contractor’s general liability insurance must be provided in the form of an additional insured rider
to said policy, or by other proof acceptable to the Saratoga County Attorney

The Contractor’s Comprehensive General Liability Insurance and Automobile Insurance shall be in an amount not less than One Million
Dollars ($1,000,000) for injuries, including accidental death, to any one person and subject to the same limit for each person, and in an
amount not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) on account of one occurrence. The Contractor’s Property Damage Liability
Insurance shall be in an amount not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000). The Contractor shall require his subcontractors to
procure and to maintain during the life of his subcontract, Subcontractors’ Comprehensive General Liability, Automobile Liability, and
Property Damage Liability Insurance of the type and in the same amounts as specified hereinabove. The Contractor’s and his
subcontractors’ Liability Insurance shall include adequate protection against the following special hazards:

Bodily Injury and Property Damage — completed job operation and/or products liability at before mentioned limits with $1,000,000
for bedily injury and $1,000,000 aggregate for operations, protection, contractual and products and/or completed job operations.
Property Damage shall be on the broad form and shall include coverage for explosion, collapse and underground damages.

The above insurance is not, and shall not be construed as, a limitation upon CONTRACTOR s obligation to indemnify the COUNTY.

Attorney’s Approval

All documents submitted shall be subject to the approval of the Saratoga County Attomey as to form and content.
HOLD HARMLESS

The CONTRACTOR shall, at all times, indemmnify and save harmless the COUNTY from and against any and all claims and demands
whatseever, including costs, litigation expenses, counsel fees and liabilities in connection therewith arising out of injury to or death of
any person whomsoever or damage to any property of any kind by whomsoever, caused in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, by the
acts or omissions of the CONTRACTOR, any person employed by the CONTRACTOR, its Contractors, subcontractors, materialmen,
or any person directly or indirectly employed by them or any of them, while engaged in the work hereunder. This clause shall not be

construed 1o limit, or otherwise irnpair, other rights or obligations of indemnity which exist in law, or in equity, for the benefit of the
COUNTY.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CONTRACTOR have sct its hand this _ 12thday of  September , 2023

SIGNATURE K =~
NAME & TITLE Thomas Holmes / Vice President

27
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KEY PERSONNEL

Name; Thomas Holmes Position; Vice President / Project Executive
Date Started with Organization: 1989
Date Started in Construction Field: 1986

Describe Experience and/or Positions held in Construction Field:
Project Manager -  Albany High School Additions & Renovations Ph 1

NY5 OGS 508 #4 — HVAC & PLMVB

Ayco Office Building Core and Shell & Fit-up

Rivers Casing at Mobawk Harbor

Name: Jason Kenny Position: BIM Manager / Project Management
Date Started with Organization: 1994
Date Started in Construction Field: 1994

Describe Experience and/or Positions held in Construction Ficld:

Project Manager -  Albany High School Additions & Renovations Ph |
SUNY Albany Upgrade Central Plant

Dutchess County Justice & Transition Center
NYS OGS Albany Training Academy
NYS OGS SOB #4 — HVAC & PLMB

Name: JoeParillo Position: Estimator / Project Manager
Date Started with Organization: 2004
Date Started in Construction Field: 2004

Describe Experience and/or Positions held in Construction Field:
Project Manager -

NYS OGS Albany Training Academy
Shenaendehowa CSD Profect 1 & 2 HVAC
SUNY Albany Bldg 27 Renovatian

DASNY JOC COPE Fan Coil Replacement Unlt L

Name; Jerid Denis Position: Project Manager / Design Coordinator
Date Started with Organization: 2019
Date Started in Construction Field: 2015

Describe Experience and/or Positions held in Construction Field:
Project Manager- ..o office Fit out

Galway C5D HVAC
SUNY Albany Upgrade Central Plant

Name:; Dan lLongo Position: Project Manager
Date Started with Organization: 2019
Date Started in Construction Field: 2014

Describe Experience and/or Positions held in Construction Field:
Project Manager-

Kingston High School Ph 2 HVAC & Plumbing
Dutchess Comm College - Airport Education Building
Guilderland €58 Capital Projact ~ Plumbing
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Staff Ciampino & Company, P.C.

CerRTIRED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

10 Colvin Avenue 518459.9205 ¢ 300 724-6567 web: www.staffci i
i v CER .
Albany, New York 12206 Facsimile; 518 439-1395 e-mail: info@staffci;:;llﬁg.zgz

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REVIEW REPORT .

To the Board of Directors DiGesare Mechanical, Inc.
Schenectady, New York

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of DiGesare Mechanical; Inc. (a New York corporation},
which comptise the balance sheets as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements of income and retained
earnings and cash flows forthe years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. Araview includes.
primarily applying analytical procedures to management's financial data and making inquiries of company
management. A review is substantially less In scope than an audit, the objective of which s the expression of an
opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management's Respansibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with

. accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenarnice of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error. .

Accountants' Responsibility

Ourresponsibility is to conduct the review engagements in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting
and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee ofthe AICPA, Those standards
require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any
material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe thatthe results of our procedures provide a
reasonable basis for our conclusion. :

We are required to be independent of DiGesare Mechanical, Inc. and to meset our ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our review. :

Accountants’ Conclusion

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying
financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted inthe United
States of America.

3 D F Member DFK Internationalf{USA * Offices in Principal Cities Worldwide
- m‘rmm!&a. UsA New York State Society of Certified Public Accountants
Amerlcan Institute of Certified Public Accountancs




Supplementary Information

The supplementary information included in Exhibits { through Vi Is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is
notarequired part ofthe basic financial statements, The information is the representation of management and was
derived from, and relates directly to, the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The supplementary information has been subjected to the review procedures applied in our review of the
basicfinancial statements. We are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the supplementary
information. We have not audited the supplementary information and do not express an opinion on such information.

Albany, NY
September 14, 2022




DIGESARE MECHANICAL, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2022 and 2021

ASSETS
2022 2021
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 3,509,477 $ 5,626,688
Contract receivables, including $ 3,162 491
and § 2,566,295 retained under contract
provisions, for 2022 and 2021, respectively 0,692,762 6,508,712
Related party receivable - 33,804
Employee retention credii receivable 751,731 1,114,669
Materials inventory ‘ 75,000 70,000
Costs and estimated earnings in excess .
of billings on contracts in progress 3,603,295 2,060,259
Prepaid expenses 31,151 30,461
Prepaid income faxes : 27,377 38,318
Total curreni assets 17,600,793 15,482,711
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, at cost
Leasehold improvements : 36,165 ' 36,165
Machinery and equipment 86,405 86,405
Furniture and fixtures 5,294 5,284
Vehicles 1,187,964 1,094,513
Qffice equipment 245,146 . 245,146
Total property and equipment 1,560,974 1,467,623
Less - Accumulated depreciation 1,032,702 820,270
Property and equipment, net ' 528,272 647,253
TOTAL ASSETS ' $ 18,219,085 $ 16,129,964

See independent accountants' review report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

2022 2021
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3 7,572,751 $ 5,263,696
Related party payable 723,309 124,341
Income taxes payable 29,768 C -
Current maturities of notes payable 125,843 143,808
Billings in excess of costs and estimated
earnings on contracts in progress 1,022 928 2,017,242
Total current liabilities 9,474 596 7,549,087
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Notes payable - Less current maturities 238,311 281,621
Deferred income taxes 89,586 109,805
Total long-term liabilities 327,897 381,426
Total liabilities 9,802 493 7,940,513
STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
Common stock - 200 shares no par value
authorized, 111 shares issued and outstanding 170,235 170,235
Retained sarmings 8,248,337 8,019,216
Total stockhiolder's equity 8,416,572 8,189,451
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY 3 18,219,085 $ 16,129,964

See independent accountants' review report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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DIGESARE MECHANICAL, INC.
STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

For The Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

CONTRACT REVENUES EARNED
COSTS OF REVENUES EARNED
GROSS PROFIT
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
‘LOSS FROM OPERATIONS
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)

Other income

Interest income

Gain on disposal of asset

Debt extinguishment ~ PPP loan

Interest expense

Management fee expense

Total otherincome

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAXES
NET INCOME
RETAINED EARNINGS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

RETAINED EARNINGS - END OF YEAR

2022 % 2021 9%
44,532,135 100.00 $ 35837747  100.00
40,180,286 90,23 31,144,445 86.90

4,351,849 9.77 4,693,302 13.10

4,946,954 1111 5,565,439 15.53

(598,105) (1.34) (872,137) (2.43)

817,112 2.06 1,117,321 3.12

12,636 0.03 28,648 0.08

- - 20224 0.08

- - 2,926,325 8.16

(7,861) (0.02) (9,458) (0.03)

(36,000) (0.08) (33,000} {0.09)

885,887 1.99 4,059,060 11.32

287,782 0.65 3,186,923 8.89

60,661 0.14 (3,402) (0.01)

227,121 0.51 3,190,325 8.90
8,019,216 4,828,891
8,246,337 $ 8019216

See independent accountants' review report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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DIGESARE MECHANICAL, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For The Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income ‘
Adjustments o reconcile net income to net cash
provided (used) by operations:

Depreciation

Deferred Income taxes

Debt extinguishment - PPP loan

Gain on disposal of asset

{Increase) decrease in:
Contract recsivables
Related party receivable
Employee retention credit receivable
Materials inventory
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of

billings on contracts in progress

Prepaid expenses
Prepaid income taxes

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Related party payable
Income taxes payable

" Billings in excess of costs and estimated

earnings on contracts in progress

Net ¢ash used by operatin'g activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of asset

Net cash provided by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on long-term debt

Net cash used by financing activities
NET DECREASE IN CASH
CASH AT BEGINNING CF YEAR

. CASH AT END OF YEAR

202 2021
227,121 $ 3,190,325
212,432 210,794
(20,219) 19,897
- (2,928,325)
- (29,224)
(3,184,050) 4,824,223
33,604 (8,139)
362,038 (1,114,669)
(5,000) (25,000)
(1,543,036) (977,877)
(690) 731
10,941 (154)
2,309,055 (1,864,614)
598,968 (131,784)
29,768 (23,524)
(994,317} (2,648,701)
(1,962,485) {1,502,041)
- 3,305
- 3,305
(154,726) (134,777)
(154,726) (134,777)
(2,117,211) (1,633,423)
5,626,688 7,260,111
3,509,477 $ 5,626,688

See independent accountants' review report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES

2022 2021
INCOME TAXES PAID
Provision for (benefit from} income taxes per statemenis
of income and retalned earnings - $ 60,661 {3,402)
Adjustments related to prepaid income taxes {10,841) 164
Adjustments related to income taxes payable {29,768) 23,624
Adjustments related to deferred income taxes 20,219 (19,887)
TOTAL INCOME TAXES PAID | $ 40,171 379
INTEREST PAID $ 7,861 9,458
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Trade-in value of vehicles acquired with debt $ - 126,500
Vehicles acquired with long-term debt 63,451 279,722
$ 83,451 406,222

See independent accountants' review report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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DIGESARE MECHANICAL, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022 and 2021

M

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of significant accounting policies of DiGesare Mechanical, Inc. (the “Company”) is presented to
assist in understanding the Company's financial staiements. The financial statements and notes are
representations of the Company’s management whe is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These
accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America and
have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

DiGesare Mechanical, Inc. was organized under the laws of the State of New York on July 1, 1982. The
Company is primarily engaged in industrial and commercial plumbmg construction. The work is generally
performed under fixed-price contracts madified by incentive provisions.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the recorded
amounts of assets, flabilities, revenues and expenses. Such estimates primarily relate to unsettled transactions
and events as of the date of the financial statements. Accordingly, upon settiement, actual results may differ
from estimated amounts.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS )
The Company considers all highly liquid Investments with a2 maturity of three months or less when purchased to
be cash equivalents. There were no cash equivalents at June 30, 2022 and 2021,

The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured fimits.
The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts. The Company belleves it is not exposed to
any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

CONTRACT RECEIVABLES

The Company extends unsecured credit to its custorers in tha ordinary course of business. The balance in
contracts receivable is considered by management to be fully collectible, and accordingly, no allowance for
doubtful accounts is required. Ifin the future, management determines that amounts may be uncollectible, an
allowance will be established and operations will be charged when that determination s made.

INVENTORY
Materials invenfory is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value determined on a first-in, first-out (FIFO)

basis.

REVENUE AND COST RECOGNITION

Industrial and commercial plumbing construction is a single perfermance obligation that is satisfied over time.
Payment is also due over time in instaliments, based on project phases as specified in the contract, with final
payment due at the time the contract is completed and control is transferred to the customer.

Revenues from fixed-price and modified fixed-price construction contracts are recognized on the percentage-of-
completion method, measured by the percentage of cost incurred fo date to estimated total cost for each
contract. That method is used because management considers total cost to be the best available measure of
progress on the contracts. Because of the inherent uncertainties in estimating costs, it is at least reasonably
possible that the Company’s estimates of costs and revenues could change in the near term, and that change
could be matertal. .
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DIGESARE MECHANICAL, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022 and 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
REVENUE AND COST RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

Contract costs include all direct material and labor costs and those indirect costs related to contract
performance, such as indirect labor, supplies, tools, and repairs, Selling, general, and administrative
costs are charged to expense as incurred. Provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted coniracts are
made in the period in which such losses are determined. Changes in job performance, job conditions,
and estimated profitability may result in revisions fo costs and income, which are recognized in the
period in which the revisions are determined. Changes in estimated job profitabllity resulting from
variable consideration (such as incentives far completing a contract early or on time, penalties for not
completing a contract on time, claims for which the Company has enforceable rights, or contract
modificationsichange orders In which the scape if medification has been approved, butthe price has not
been determined or approved) are accounted for as changes in estimates in the current period, but
limited to an amount that will not result in a significant reversal of revenue in future periods. The
Company uses the same revenue recognition method for both tax and financial reporting purposes.

The asset, "Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on contracts in progress”, rapresents
revenues recognized in excess of amounts hilled. The liability, "Billings in excess of costs and estimated
earnings on contracts in progress”, represents billings in excess of revenues recognized.

INCOME TAXES

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in the financial statements and
consist of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes. Deferred taxes are recognized for differences
between the basis of assets and liabilities for financial statement and income tax purposes. The

differences relate primarily to depreciation differences,

The deferred tax asset (liability) represents the future tax return consequences of those differences,
which will gither be deductible or taxable when the assets and liabilities are recovered or seftled.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The Company records its property and equipment at cost and uses straight-line and accelerated
methods of computing depreciation based upon estimated useful lives ranging from five to twenty years
for financial reporting purposes. The Company uses the accelerated method for tax reporting putposes.
Total depreciation expense was $ 212,432 and $ 210,794 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

ADVERTISING COSTS .
Advertising costs are charged to operations when incurred and totaled $ 235 and § -0- for the years

. ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. :

COMPENSATED ABSENCES .
Employees of the Company are entitied to paid vacation and paid sick days depending on job
classification, length of service, and other factors. It is -impracticable fo estimate the amount of
compensation for future absences, and, accordingly, no liability has been recorded in the accompanying
financial statements. The Company's policy is to recognize the costs of compensated absences when
actually paid to employees,




DIGESARE MECHANICAL, ING.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTES PAYABLE

A summary of the Company's notes payable is as follows:

First National Bank of Scotla - Installment note,
payable in monthly instaliments of § 1,418 including
interest at 3.34%. This note matures in November,
2023 and is secured by a vehicle.

First National Bank of Scotia - Instaliment note,
payable in monthly installments of $ 522 including
interest at 3.34%. This nocte matures in November,
2022 and is secured by a vehicle.

GM Financial - Installiment note, payable in manthly
installments of $ 1,085. This note is non-interest
bearing, matures May, 2027 and is secured by a
vehicle.

First National Bank of Scotia - Installment note,
payable in monthly instaliments of $ 840 including
interest at 3.14%. This note matures in February,
2023 and is secured by a vehicle,

Land Rover Financial Group - Instaliment note,
payabla in monthly instaliments of $ 994.This note is
non-interast bearing, matures October, 202€ and is
secured by a vehicle.

First National Bank of Scotia - Installment nofe,
payable in monthly installments of $ 1,356 including
interest at 2.74%. This note matures in January,
2026 and is secured by a vehicle.

Saratoga National Bank & Trust Company -
installment note, payable in manthly installments of
$ 872 including interest at 2.79%. This note was
satisfied in April, 2022,

GM Financial - instaliment note, payable in monthly
installments of $ 975 including interest at 3.05%. This
note matures in January, 2024 and is secured by a
vehicle.

GM Financial - Installment note, payable in monthly

instaliments of $ 831 including interestat 3.25%. This -

note was satisfied in June, 2022.

First National Bank of Scofia - Installment note,
payeble in monthly installments of $ 852 including
interest at 3.64%. This note was satisfied in June,
2022,
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DIGESARE MECHANICAL, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCI|AL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTES PAYABLE (GONTINUED)

First National Bank of Scofia - Instaliment note,
payable in monthly installments of $ 822 including
interest at 3.64%. This note was satisfied in June,
2022,

GM Financial - Installment note, payable in monthly
instaliments of $ 756 including interestat 2.19%. This
note matures in June, 2024 and is secured by a
vehicle.

First National Bank of Scotia - Installment note,
payable in monthly installments of $ 2,046 including
interest at 2.74%. This note matures in June, 2025
and is secured by a vehicle.

First National Bank of Scotia - Installment note,
payable in monthly installments of $ 1,097 including
interest at 1.89%. This note matures in Aprll 2026
and is secured by a vehicle.

Rhinebeck Bank - Installment note, payable in
monthly instaliments of § 937 including interest at
2,29%. This nofe matures in July, 2025 and Is
secured by a vehicle.

Total notes payabls
Less - Current maturities

Notes payable — Less current maturities

Scheduled maturities of notes payatle are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30

2023
2024
2025
2026
Thersafter

Total

41-

2022 2021

-0- 10,464

17,733 26,312

70,630 92913

48,558 -0-

33,446 -0-

364,154 425 429

125.843 143,808

3 238,311 $ 281,621

Amount

5 125,843
105,003
82,794
40,127
10387
i 364,154




DIGESARE MECHANICAL, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022'and 2021

(3

(4)

LINE OF CREDIT

The Company has available a $ 1,000,000 line of credit with Capital Bank and Trust Corhpany of which

$ -0-was outstanding-for both years ended June 3G, 2022 and 2021, Interest accrues at the annual rate of
250 basis points over the one-month LIBOR rate or 5%, whichever is greater, and is payable monthly based
upon the balance of advances made. The line is secured by all machinery and equipment, vehicles, furniture
and fixtures and the personal guaraniee of the Company's officers. This line of credit expires December 31,
2022 - -

COMMITMENTS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Company leases its principal place of business from Condor Development Corporation (an affiliated
company) under the terms of a month-to-month lease. Annual rent payments totaled $ 120,000 and
$ 111,000 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and the Company is responsible for its
own building maintenance. '

Equipment
The Company is committed under the terms of non-cancelable operating leases for vehicles. The future

annual minimurm rental payments required under these leases are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Amount
2023 $ 26,085

in February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02. Leases (Topic 842). The guidance in the ASU supersedes
l@asing guidance in topic 840, Leases. Under the new guidance, all leasing arrangements with terms greater
than twelve months are required to be recognized as lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet,
L eases will be classified as either financing or operating, with classification affecting the expense recognition
in the income statement, in Qctober 2019 and again in June 2020, FASB issued deferrals of the effective date.
The new standard is now effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021 and interim periods
within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022,

The Cornpany is currently evaluating the effects this standard will have on the financial statements.

MANAGEMENT FEE
The Company incurred management fees totaling § 36,000 and $ 33,000 for the years ended Junhe 30, 2022
and 2021, respectively. These amounts are paid to The DiGesare Group, LLC, an affiliated entity.

INTERCOMPANY TRANSAGTIONS i
The Company paid subcontractor costs of $ 1,110,668 and $ 731,800 during the years ended June 30, 2022
and 2021, respectively, to Condor Fire Sprinkler Co., Inc., a related party.

The Company paid subcontractor costs of § -0~ and $ 45,000 during the years énded June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, to D.S. DiGesare Plumbing & Heating, Inc. a related party.

REGEIVABLES FROM (PAYABLES TO} AFFILIATES

“The Company has a receivable of § -0- and $ 33,604 due from Cender Fire Sprinkler Co., Inc., an affiliated

entity, and has a payable of $ 423,309 and $ 124,341 due to Condor Fire Sprinkler Co., Inc. for the years
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respactively.
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DIGESARE MECHANICAL, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022 and 2021

(4)

(5)

COMMITMENTS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED}
RECEIVABLES FROM (PAYABLES TO) AFFILIATES {(CONTINUED)

The Company has a receivable of $ -0- and $ -0- due from D.8. DiGesare Plumbing and Heating, Ing., an
affiliated entity, and has a payable of $ 300,000 and $ -0- due to D.S. DiGesare Piumbing and Heating, Inc. for

the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
INCOME TAXES

A summary of the Company's income tax accounts is as follows:

2022 2021
Prepaid '
Federal $ -0- $ 28,654
State 27,377 9,664
Total prepaid $ 27,377 $ 38,318
Pavable
Federal $ 29,768 $ -0-
Deferred
Federal 3 802,586 % 109,805
-Provision (Benefit
Current:
Federal $ 94,757 3 (47.237)
State (13.877) 23,838
Total current 80,880 (23,299)
Deferred: .
Federal (20,219) 18,897
Total provision for (benefit from) income taxes 3 60,661 8 (3.402)
Deferred tax liability is comprised of the following:
Deferred tax asset — Tax credit carryforward $ -0- $ {2,431)
Deferred tax liability - Depreciation differences 80,686 112,236
Deferred tax liability $ 89,586 3 109,805

The Company's effective income tax rate is different than what would be expected if the statutory rates were
applied to income before income taxes because it is part of & controlled group. The statutory rates are
apportioned among the entities of the controlled group. The Company also has expenses deductible for
financial reporting purposes that are not deductible for tax purposes, and expenses deductible for tax

purposes that are not deductible for financial reporting purposes.
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DIGESARE MECHANICAL, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022 and 2021

(8

(€)

()

INGOME TAXES (CONTINUED}

UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS
Management has determined that the Company does not have any uncertain tax positions and associated
unrecognized benefits that materially impact the financial statements or related disclosures.

Since tax matters are subject to some degree of uncertainty, there can be no assurance that the Company's
tax returns will not be challenged by the taxing authorities and that the Company or its sharehclders will not be
subject to additional tax, penalties, and interest as a result of such a challenge, Generally, the Company's tax
returns remain open for three years for the federal income tax examination and various years for state taxing
authorifies,

RETIREMENT SAVINGS AND PROFIT-SHARING PLAN

The Company has a Simple IRA plan covering substantially alf of its employees mesting certain age and
length of service requirements. The plan contains an employer contribution provision, which requires the
Company.to match employee contributions. The match for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 totaled
$ 95,546 and $ 105,002, respectively.

CONTRACT RECEIVABLES
Contract receivables as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 consist of:
2022 2021
Billed
Completed contracts $ 125,901 3 34,569
Contracts in progress 6,404,370 3,907,848
Retainage 3,162,491 2,566,295
Total 3 0692762 $ 6508742

The Company follows the practice of fiting statutory liens on all projects where collection problems are
anticipated. The liens serve as collateral for contract receivables.

UNCOMPLETED CONTRACTS

Costs and billings on uncompleted contracts as of June 30, 2022 are summarized as follows:

_Amaunt
Revenue earned to date : $ 87,558,974
Billings o date {684,978 ,604)
2 370
Included in accompanying balance sheets under the following captions:
Costs in excess of billings on contracts in progress $ 3,603,295
Billings in excess of costs on contracts in progress {1.022,925)

$ 2,680,370
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DIGESARE MECHANICAL, INC,
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022 and 2021

(10

(11)

(12)

SCHEDULE OF CONTRACT BACKLOG

The following schedule summarizes changes in backlag on contracts during the year ended June 30, 2022.
Backlog represents the amount of revenue the Company expects to realize from work to be performed on
uncompleted contracts in progress at year end and from contractual agreements on which work has not yet
begun.

Backlag balance at June 30, 2021 $ 61,560,030
New contracts during the year 54,042 830
115,802,860

Less — Contract revenues eamed during the year 44 532 135
Backlog balance at June 30, 2022 ‘ ) 71,070,725

The Company also enterad into additional contracts with estimated revenues of approximately $ 10,880,000
between June 30, 2022 and September 14, 2022.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain 2021 figures have been reclassified to conform with the 2022 presentation. These changss had
no effect on prior year results of operations, financial position or cash fiows.

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENTS AND UNION PENSION PLANS

Substantially the entire labor force is subject to coliective bargaining agreements which are renewed
periodically. In connecticn with its collective bargaining agreements with various unions, the Company
participates with other companies in the unions’ multi-employer pension plans. These plans cover all the
Company’s employees who are members of such unions.

SBA LOAN PAYABLE

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Gompany entered Into a [oan transaction in which the Company
received $ 2,926,325 {the “PPP Loan") under the Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP"). The PPP,
established as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act ("CARES Act), provides for
loans to qualifying companies and is administered by the U.S. Small Business Administration (the "SBA”).

The PPP Loan was admilnistered by Capital Bank on April 20, 2020. The Note had a two-year term, accrued
interest at the rate of 1% per annum, and was prepayable af any time without payment of any premium. No
payments of principal or interest were due during the six-month period beginning on the date of the Note (the
“Deferral Period"). Beginning on the seventh month following the date of the Note, the Company was required
to make 18 monthly payments of principal and interest.

Under the terms of the CARES Act, PPP loan recipients can apply for and be granted forgiveness for all or a
portion of the loan granted under the PPP, with such forgiveness to be determined, subject to limitations,
based on the use of the loan praceeds for payment of payroll costs and any payments for mortgage interest,
rent, and utilities. However, at least 75 percent of the PPP loan proceeds must be used for aligible payroll
costs. The terms of any forgiveness may also be subject to fusther requirements In any regulations and
guideiines the SBA may adopt.
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DIGESARE MECHANICAL, INC.,
NQTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022 and 2021

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

SBA LOAN PAYABLE {CONTINUED)

The Company applied for forgiveness of the PPP loan during the year ended June 30, 2021 and received
notice from the bank on May 24, 2021 that the bank had received confirmation from the SBA that the
application for forgiveness had been approved. The loan forgiveness request in the amount of $ 2,626,325
was applied to the Company’s entire outstanding PPP loan balance with the bank. Therefore, the Company
has recognized the loan proceeds in other income as extinguishment of debt.

EMPLOYEE RETENTION CREDIT RECEIVABLE

The Employee Retention Credit (ERC) was established by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Securiy
(CARES) Act and further amended by the Consolidated Appropriations Act (CAA)} and the American Rescue
Plan (ARP). The 2020 and 2021 ERC provides fully refundable credits against the employer portion of Social
Security taxes based on the amount of qualfied wages that an eligible employer has incurred. The maximum
credit is based on a qualified-wages ceifing for each employee. Eligibility for the credit Is based upon two
testing criterion: the grass-receipts test or the suspension-of-services test. The Company qualified based cn
the gross-receipts test. The amount of the credits are $ 751,731 and $ 1,094,936 for fiscal year ended June
30, 2022 and 2021, respectively and have been recorded as assets on these financial statements and
reflected in “other income” in the statements of income and retained eamings. Also included in the receivable
for fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 and as “other income” are COVID sick credits of § 19,733.

Laws and regulations concerning governmeni programs, including the Employee Retention Credit are complex
and subject to varying interpretations. Claims made under the CARES Act may also be subject to retroactive
audit and review. There can be no assurance that regulatory authorities will not challenge the Company's claim
to the ERC, and the impact, if any, this would have upon the Company's financial position.

" SURETY BOND

The Company, as conditions for entering into construction contracts, has outstanding surety bonds
approximating $ 39,034,944. The bonds are partially collateralized by contracts receivable.

DATE OF MANAGEMENT'S REVIEW
Mariagement considered and evaluated the nature of any subsequent events through September 14, 2022,

which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued, and believes there is nothing of
significance to report.
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DIGESARE MECHANICAL, INC.

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

EXHIBIT | - SCHEDULES OF REVENUES EARNED, COSTS OF REVENUES EARNED,

AND GROSS PROFIT

2022
Contracts completed during the vear
Contracts in progress at yearend

Total

021
Contracts completed during the year
Contracts in progress at year end

Total

See independent accountants’ review report.

Costs of
Revenuas Revenuas Gross
Earned Earned Profit
2,715,934 2,664,579 151,355
41,818,201 37,615,707 4,200,464
44,532,135 40,180,286 4,351,849
4,315,335 3,060,750 1,254,585
31,622,412 28,083,695 3,438,717
35,837,747 31,144,445 4,693,302
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DIGESARE MECHANICAL, INC.

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
For The Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

EXHIBIT i - SCHEDULES OF COSTS OF REVENUES EARNED

2022 % 2021 %
invertory at beginning of year $ 70,000 0.16 $ 45,000 0.13
Direct materials 14,131,106 31.74 8,104,453 22.61
Subcontractors 13,831,436 31.06 12,462,801 34,77
Diract labor 5,792,118 13,01 4971,762 13.87
Union benefits 3,838,009 8.62 3,302,522 8.22
Insurance and bonding 1,026,177 2.30 1,010,887 2.82
Payroll taxes 739,879 1.66 502,008 1.40
Equipment rental 579,810 1.30 616,822 1.72
Vehicle gas and ol 246,651  0.65 197,400 0.56
Training - 0.00 1,110 .0.00
Total 40,255,286 90,40 31,214,445 87.10 |
Less - Inventory at end of year 75,000 0.17 70,000 0.20
TOTAL COSTS OF REVENUES EARNED $ 40,180,286  90.23 $ 31,144,445 B6.90

See independent accountants’ review report.

-18-




For The Years Ended Juna 30, 2022 and 2021

DIGESARE MECHANICAL, INC.
SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Officers' salaries
Office salaries
Insurance
Depreciation expense
Payroll taxes

Rent

Professional fees
Employee benefils
Qutside services
Office expense
Telephone

Vehicle rental
Contributions

Dues and subscriptions
Utilities

Officers' life insurance
License and permits
Vehicle gas and oil
Protection and security
Advertising

Repairs and maintenance

See independent accountants’ review report.

TOTAL GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
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EXHIBIT Il - SCHEDULES OF GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2022 % 2021 %
$ 2163000 487 $ 2586000 7.22
41,642,706  3.45 1,793,807  5.00
228169  0.51 221,193 062
212,432 0.48 210,794  0.59
108,733  0.45 222,941  0.62
120,000 027 111,000  0.31
114,307  0.26 60,828  0.17
95,546  0.21 105,002  0.29
74,358 0.17 58762  0.18
68,753  0.14 59261 017
20,776  0.07 26,752  0.07
25241  0.05 26,434 0,07
20,375  0.05 28,750  0.08
20,241 .05 15988  0.04
17,063 0.04 14,004  0.04
16,554  0.02 12,939  0.04
2438 . 0.01 3232 0.01
394  0.00 9887 003
356 0.00 975  0.00 .
235  0.00 - 000
217 0.00 . 0.00
$ 4949954 1111 § 5565438 15.53
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SARATOGA COUNTY
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM

TO: Steve Bulger, County Administrator
Ridge Harris, Deputy County Administrator
Michelle Granger, County Attorney
Therese Connolly, Clerk of the Board
Stephanie Hodgson, Director of Budget

CC: John Warmt, Director of Purchasing
Jason Kemper, Director of Planning and Economic Development
Bridget Rider, Deputy Clerk of the Board
Matt Rose, Management Analyst

Audra Hedden, County Administrator's Office This column must be completed

prior to submission of the request.

DEPARTMENT: Department of Public Works
DATE: 10/17/23
COMMITTEE: Buildings & Grounds

County Attorney’s Office

1. Is a Resolution Required:
Consulted Yes

Yes, Contract Renewal

2. Proposed Resolution Title:

Authorizing a 3-year lease renewal with a 2-year extension
option with Railroad Place Partners, LP for lease of space for
Judge Freestone's chambers in the City of Saratoga Springs.

3. Specific Details on what the resolution will authorize:

Authorizing a 3-year lease renewal with a 2-year extension
option with Railroad Place Partners, LP for lease of space for
Judge Freestone's chambers in the City of Saratoga Springs.

Terms are as follows:
1/1/24-12/31/26: $4,000/month
1/1/127-12/31/28: $4,200/month

Space is 2,134 square feet




4. Is a Budget Amendment needed: YES or [V |[NO County Administrator’s Office
If yes, budget lines and impact must be provided. Consulted

Any budget amendments must have equal and offsetting entries.

Please see attachments for impacted budget lines.
(Use ONLY when more than four lines are impacted.)

Revenue

Account Number Account Name Amount
Expense

Account Number Account Name Amount

Fund Balance (if applicable): (Increase = additional revenue, Decrease = additional expenses)

Amount:

Identify Budget Impact (Required):

a. G/L line impacted

b. Budget year impacted

C. Details



6.

Are there Amendments to the Compensation Schedule?

Human Resources Consulted

YES or |V [NO (Ifyes, provide details)

a. Is anew position being created? Y N
Effective date
Salary and grade
b. Is anew employee being hired? Y N
Effective date of employment
Salary and grade
Appointed position:
Term
c. Isthis a reclassification? Y N
Is this position currently vacant? Y N
Is this position in the current year compensation plan? Y N
Does this item require the awarding of a contract: Y |[Y[N Purchasing Office Consulted
a. Type of Solicitation
b. Specification # (BID/RFP/RFQ/OTHER CONTRACT #)
c. If a sole source, appropriate documentation, including an updated letter, has been
submitted and approved by Purchasing Department? E Y N N/A
d. Vendor information (including contact name):
e. Is the vendor/contractor an LLC, PLLC, or partnership:
f. State of vendor/contractor organization:
g. Commencement date of contract term:
h. Termination of contract date:
L. Contract renewal date and term:
k. Is this a renewal agreement: Y N

Vendor/Contractor comment/remarks:



10.

Is a grant being accepted: YES or v |NO

a. Source of grant funding:

b. Agency granting funds:

c. Amount of grant:

d. Purpose grant will be used for:

e. Equipment and/or services being purchased with the grant:
f. Time period grant covers:

g. Amount of county matching funds:

h. Administrative fee to County:

Supporting Documentation:

Marked-up previous resolution

No Markup, per consultation with County Attorney

Information summary memo

Copy of proposal or estimate

Copy of grant award notification and information

V| other draft lease

County Administrator’s Office
Consulted

Remarks:

The expiring lease terms for the same space is $3,800 per month. Note that the County
shares this space with NYS Office of Court Administration. DPW invoices OCA monthly

for half of our rent expenses.




LEASE RENEWAL

AGREEMENT OF LEASE RENEWAL, made as of  day of
2023, between RAILROAD PLACE PARTNERS, L.P., a New York Company with a pr1n01pa1
place of business at 60 Railroad Place, Saratoga Springs, New York 12866, hereinafter called the
“Landlord”, and the COUNTY OF SARATOGA, A New York Municipality, having an address
of 40 McMaster Street, Ballston Spa, NY 12020, hereinafter called the “Tenant”.

WITNESSETH:

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, for themselves, their successors, and assigns,
hereby covenant as follows:

ARTICLE 1: Agreement

The landlord hereby leases to, and the Tenant hereby leases from the Landlord the
Premises (defined hereinafter) described herein according to the terms and conditions of this
Lease.

ARTICLE 2: Premises

2.1  The premises consists of approximately 2,134 rentable square feet of space is known as
Suite 100 (the “Premises”) in building (the “Building™) located at property commonly known as
60 Railroad Place, Saratoga Springs, New York 12866, which property is more particularly
described in the attached Exhibit A.

2.2 At Tenant’s option, Landlord will at its sole cost and expense provide Tenant with both
common area interior and exterior signage at the Building. Such signage will be consistent with
the existing Building signs in design, size, and placement. Landlord is permitted, from time to
time, to change the design, size and placement of such signs as seen fit for aesthetic purposes.

ARTICLE 3: Term and Renewal

3.1 The Term of this Renewal shall commence on January 1, 2024 (the “Commencement
Date”) and expire on December 31, 2026 (the “Expiration Date™).

3.2  Tenantis hereby granted the option to extend the term of this Lease for one (1) successive
period of two (2) years, following the initial Renewal term, upon condition that at the date of
exercise, with respect thereto, and at the date of commencement of such Renewal Term, there is
no default by Tenant in the performance of any of its obligations under this Lease. The Renewal
term shall be upon the same terms and conditions as provided in the Lease renewal for the Initial
Term except that there shall be no privilege to extend the term of the lease for any period beyond
the expiration of the Renewal Term. Tenant, if it elects to exercise its option to renew, shall do so
by irrevocable written notice to Landlord, at least one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the




date of expiration of the Initial Term. Upon such exercise this Lease shall be deemed to be
extended without the execution of any further lease or other instrument.

ARTICLE 4: Base Rent

4.1  The Tenant shall pay monthly rent (“Monthly Base Rent”) to the Landlord throughout the
Term of this Lease according to the following schedule:

January 1, 2024-December 31, 2026: $22.49/SF; $48,000/Year; $4,000/Month

Monthly Base rent will be paid in advance on or before the first day of each calendar
month. Ifthe Commencement Date is on a day other than the first day of a calendar month or if
the Lease Termination Date is a day other than the last day of a calendar month, then Monthly
Base Rent will be appropriately prorated based on the actual number of calendar days in such
month. Monthly Base Rent will be paid to Landlord, without written notice or demand, and
without deduction or offset (other than deductions or offsets expressly permitted herein), in
lawful money of the United States of America at Landlord’s address, or to such other address as
Landlord may from time to time designate in writing.

4.2 In the event Tenant exercises the option to extend the term of this Lease for an additional
period of two (2) years, the Tenant shall pay monthly rent to the Landlord throughout the
Renewal Term of this Lease according to the following schedule:

January 1, 2027-December 31, 2028: $23.62/SF; $50,400/Year; $4,200/Month

4.3  Landlord acknowledges that Tenant requires Landlord to submit a duly executed County
of Saratoga voucher every month in order for Tenant to process and effect the payment of rent to
the Landlord. Landlord agrees to submit a duly executed County of Saratoga County voucher to
Tenant on or by the first day of each month during the Term or any Renewal Term of this Lease.

ARTICLE 5: Operating Expenses and Utilities

5.1  Landlord represents and warrants that the Tenant’s proportionate share is 4.12% and is
calculated as follows: Tenant’s rentable square footage, 2,134, divided by the total rentable
square footage in the Building, 51,766.

5.2 Asused in this Lease, the term “Operating Expenses” shall mean Landlords reasonable
cost of management. Operation and maintenance of the Premises, Building and land upon which
the Building is located including the following:

(a) real and, if applicable, personal property taxes and assessments and any tax or
assessments levied in lieu of, or in addition to, real property taxes.

(b) the cost of all utility services provided by the Landlord including natural gas,
electricity, sewer, water, oil, or other fuel for the Common Areas (defined hereinafter).

(c) janitorial service, waste disposal and recycling costs.

(d) lawn and landscaping service and repairs and maintenance of landscaped areas.




(e) parking lot and sidewalk repairs and maintenance including snow and ice removal,
patching, coating, sweeping, and striping.

(f) cleaning, repairs and maintenance of building exteriors and Common Areas of the
Building.

(g) repairs and maintenance of all Building mechanical equipment and systems.
(h) repair and maintenance supplies.
(1) property insurance, including fire, casualty, and liability coverage.
(j) property management fee not to exceed 5% of Monthly Base Rent.
5.3  Common Area expenses shall not include:

(a) Expenses for which Landlord is or will be reimbursed by another source (excluding
Tenant reimbursement for Common Areas operating costs), including but not limited to repair or
replacement of any item covered by warranty

(b) costs incurred to benefit a specific tenant or items and services selectively supplied to
any specific tenant

(c) expenses for the defense of the Landlords’ title to the property
(d) charitable or political contributions

(e) costs to correct original or latent defects in the design, construction or equipment of
the Premises or the Building.

() expenses paid directly to any tenant for any reason which Landlord is not obligated to
reimburse (such as excessive utility use)

(g) any repair, rebuilding or other work necessitated by condemnation, fire, windstorm, or
other insured casualty or hazard,

(h) any expenses incurred as a result f the Landlords’ violation of or failure to comply
with any governmental regulations and rules or any court order, decree or judgment;

(i) leasing commissions, advertising expenses and other costs incurred in leasing or
procuring new tenants;

(j) attorneys’ fees, accounting fees and expenditures incurred in connection with tax
negotiations, disputes and claims of other tenants and occupants of the Building or with other
third parties except as specifically provided in the Lease

(k) cost of initial stock of tools and equipment for operation, repair, and maintenance of
the Building

(1) depreciation and amortization of the Building or finan¢ing costs, including interest and
principal amortization of debts




(m) rental or ground leases or other underlying leases
(n) any amounts expended by Landlord to comply with any environmental laws
(0) costs of new construction and the cost of the initial improvements
(p) costs of structural repairs to the Building
(@) replacement of all, or a substantial portion of any of the following:
(i) the parking lot
(ii) the parking lot lighting system
(iii) any utility system servicing the Common Areas
(iv) the sewer or drainage systems servicing the Common Areas
(r) the cost of complying with any law or code existing as of the date of this Lease
(s) any capital repair or capital improvement

(t) any repair to any roof (or roof component such as gutters and downspouts) or to any
structural component or exterior walls of the building

(w) the costs for Landlords office, administrative or overhead expenses, or

(w) any wages or any employee of Landlord or its affiliate to the extent in excess of such
cost if competitively bid (and only to the extent such personnel performed on site maintenance
services)

54  (2) Landlord shall provide electricity for Tenants’ normal electric needs at the Demised
Premises and the Landlord represents that the Demised Premises is serviced by a separate
electrical meter. Tenant shall pay for all electricity used by it directly to the utility company. The
Tenant covenants and agrees that its use of electric current shall not at any time exceed the
capacity of existing feeders to the Building or the risers or wiring installation, and the Tenant
may not use any electrical equipment which, in Landlord’s opinion, reasonably exercised, will
overload such installations or interfere with the uses thereof by other tenants of the Building. Th
use by Tenant of electric service shall in no way make the Landlord liable or responsible to the
Tenant for any loss, damages, or expenses which the Tenant may sustain.

(b) Landlord shall furnish hot and cold water for ordinary cleaning, toilet, lavatory and
drinking purposes in accordance with standards from time to time prevailing for similar office
buildings in the area in which the Building is located. Tenant shall pay all costs necessary to
provide hot and cold water in excess of that sufficient for the foregoing purposes.

(c) Landlord shall furnish electrical current in the amount that is suitable for the intended
use of the Premises, which includes office equipment typical in an office (e.g., computers,
telephones, computer server rack, telephone system, etc.) In the event Tenant requires any
extraordinary utility services, including, without limitation, electricity for computer facilities
over and above normal usage for a business office, Landlord shall furnish at Tenant’s expense,

B DT




sub-meters for such extraordinary services and Tenant shall pay the entire cost thereof directly to
the utility company.

(d) Tenant shall be responsible for provision of cleaning and janitorial services to the
Premises by engaging a cleaning service approved by Landlord, such approval not to
unreasonably withheld or denied.

(e) Landlord shall not be liable for the interruption, curtailment, stoppage or suspension
of services and utilities to be furnished by Landlord by reason of accident or emergency or
suspension of utility services or when necessary for repairs, alterations, replacements, or
improvements desirable or when necessary, in the reasonable judgment of Landlord or for any
cause beyond the control of Landlord. In the event of any such interruption, curtailment,
stoppage or suspension, there shall be no diminution or abatement of Monthly Base Rent or other
charges due from Tenant to Landlord hereunder, Tenant’s obligations hereunder shall not be
affected or reduced, and landlord shall have no responsibility or liability for any such
interruption, curtailment, stoppage or suspension; provided, however, that if due to any such loss
of utilities or services not caused by Tenant or its officers, employees, agents representatives or
invitees, or by workers employed by or at the request of the tenant, the Premises cannot be
occupied for the purposes specified in Article 6 for a period in excess of 24 hours in any one
instance, Tenant may abate Monthly Base Rent based upon the period for which the Premises
could not be occupied. Landlord shall exercise reasonable diligence to restore any services or
utilities so interrupted, curtailed, stopped, or suspended.

ARTICLE 6: Use of Premises

6.1  Landlord acknowledges that Tenant has a statutory obligation pursuant to County Law
§218 to provide suitable chambers for resident judges of the Supreme Court of the State of New
York residing in Saratoga County at Tenant’s expense. Landlord further acknowledges that
Tenant itself will not be occupying and using the leased Premises, but rather Tenant is renting the
space for use as chambers by Supreme Court Justice Dianne N. Freestone, and will be subletting
approximately one-half of the leased premises jointly to the New York State Unified Court
System, Court of Claims, and the New York State Unified Court System, Fourth Judicial District
for use as chambers by Judge Kathleen B. Hogan, who is both a Judge on the Court of Claims
and Supervising Judge for the County Courts for the Fourth Judicial District.

6.2  The Tenant will conduct its business and control its employees, agents, and invitees in
such a manner as not to create any nuisance or interfere with any other tenant in the Building or
the Landlord in its operation of the Building.

6.3  The Tenant shall not place a load upon any floor of the Premises which exceeds the load
per square foot which such floor was designed to carry, or which is in excess of that allowed by
law. Landlord represents and warrants that the load per square foot designated for the Premises is
100 for live load and 75 for dead load.




ARTICLE 7: Assignment and Subletting

7.1  The Tenant shall not assign, mortgage, or encumber this Lease, nor sublease, nor permit
the Premises or any part of the Premises to be used or occupied by others without the prior
written consent of the Landlord which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or
delayed. Landlord acknowledges that the New York State Unified Court system, Fourth Judicial
District, are pre-approved subtenants and no further approval is required by Tenant for these
subtenants.

7.2  If the Landlord consents to a proposed assignment or sublease, then the Landlord will
have the right to require the Tenant to pay to Landlord (a) any rent or other consideration paid to
tenant by any proposed transferee that is in excess as the rent allocable to the transferred space
then being paid by Tenant to the Landlord pursuant to this Lease; and (b) any other profit or gain
(after deducting any necessary expenses incurred) realized by Tenant from any such sublease or
assignment.

7.3 The Landlord consents to an assignment of this Lease or sublease of all or part of the
Premises to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Tenant or the parent of the Tenant or to any
corporation into or with which the Tenant maybe merged or consolidated; provided that the
Tenant promptly provides the Landlord with a fully executed copy of such assignment or
sublease and that the Tenant is not released from liability under the Lease.

ARTICLE 8: Compliance with Laws and Insurance Requirements

8.1  Atits sole cost and expense, Tenant will promptly comply with all laws, statutes,
ordinances, and governmental rules, regulations, or requirements now in force or in force after
the Commencement Date and with the requirements of any board of fire underwriters or other
similar body constituted now or after the date (collectively, “Compliance Requirements™),
insofar as they relate to the Tenant’s particular use or occupancy of the Premises.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Tenant shall not be required to perform or pay for work
required to comply with the Compliance Requirements where such work: (a) is required as a
result of the Landlords failure to comply with such Compliance Requirements, or (b) is not a
result of Tenant’s particular use or occupancy of the Premises, or (c) involves structural
alterations at the Premises or Building, or (d) is otherwise the responsibility of the Landlord
pursuant to the terms of this lease.

82 (a Tenant will cause or permit the storage, use, generation, or disposition of any
hazardous materials in, on, or about the Premises by Tenant, its agents, employees, or
contractors. Tenant will not permit the Premises to be used or operated in a manner that may
cause the Premises to be contaminated by any hazardous materials in violation of any hazardous
materials laws.

(b)  For purposes of this Lease “hazardous materials” means any explosives,
radioactive materials, hazardous wastes, or hazardous substances, as defined by federal, state or
local statute, law, ordinance, code, rule, regulation, order, or decree regulating, relating to, or
imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning hazardous materials, waste, or substances
now or at any time hereafter in effect (collectively, “Hazardous Materials Laws”).




8.3  Tenant will not do or permit to be done anything upon the Premises or the Building which
would (a) jeopardize or be in conflict with fire insurance policies covering the Building and
fixtures and property in the Building; (b) increase the rate of fire insurance applicable to the
Building to an amount higher than it otherwise would be for general office use of the Building;
or (¢) subject Landlord to any liability or responsibility for injury to any other person or persons
or to property by reason of any business or operation being carried on upon the Premises.

ARTICLE 9: Tenant’s Care of the Premises

Tenant will maintain the interior portions of Premises in their condition at the time they
were delivered to Tenant, reasonable wear and tear excluded, and shall, at the Tenat’s sole cost
and expense, make all necessary repairs to such Portions of the Premises. All other maintenance,
repairs, and if necessary, replacements of the Building of which the Premises forms a part,
including, without limitation, maintenance, repairs, and replacements to the electrical, plumbing,
and HVAC systems located therein, shall be the responsibility of the Landlord at its sole cost and
expense, excepting only repairs including structural repairs necessitated by the negligence of the
Tenant, its agents, employees, vendor, invites or business associates, which items shall be
repaired as speedily as possible by the Tenant at the Tenat’s own cost and expense. Landlord
shall replace any and all broken glass in and about the Building (except broken glass in the
interior of the Premises, which will be replaced by the Tenant). Notwithstanding the foregoing,
the Landlord hereby releases the Tenant, its agents, officers and employees, and any other person
for whom the Tenant is legally responsible from any liability or claim that may be made by the
Landlord against the Tenant under the provisions of this Lease with respect to such loss to the
extent of the lesser of : (a) the amount, if any, by which such loss exceeds the amount of
insurance the Tenant is required to maintain under the terms of this Lease or actually maintains,
whichever is greater; and (b) the proceeds actually paid to the Landlord with respect to such loss
under the policies of insurance maintained by the Landlord or which would have been paid if
Landlord had maintained the insurance required under this Lease and had diligently processed
any claims thereunder.

ARTICLE 10: Alterations

During the Term, Tenant will not make, or allow to be made any alterations, additions, or
improvements to or of the Premises or any part of the Premises, or attach any fixtures or
equipment to the Premises, except for those enumerated in Exhibit C, without first obtaining
Landlords’ written consent which will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. All such
alterations, additions, and improvements consented by the Landlord, will be made in a good and
workmanlike manner, and will be performed by contractors approved by the Landlord and
subject to conditions specified by the Landlord.

ARTICLE 11: Rules and Regulations

The Tenant, its employees, agents licensee, and visitors will at all times observe
faithfully, and comply strictly with, the rules and regulations set forth in Exhibit B. Landlord
may from time to time reasonably amend, delete, or modify existing rules and regulations, or




adopt reasonable new rules and regulations for the use, safety, cleanliness and care of the
Premises, the Building, and the comfort, quiet, and convenience of occupants of the Building.

ARTICLE 12: Quiet Enjoyment

Landlord covenants and agrees that so long as Tenant pays rent and observes and
performs all the terms and condition of this Lease, the Tenant and its subtenants may peaceably
and quietly enjoy the Premises subject to the terms and conditions of this Lease, and Tenant’s
possession will not be disturbed by the Landlord or anyone claiming by, through, or under the
Landlord.

ARTICLE 13: Subordination and Non-Disturbance

13.1 This Lease and the Tenant’s rights under this Lease are subject and subordinate to any
ground or underlying lease, mortgage, indenture, deed of trust, or other lien encumbrance (each a
“superior Lien”), together with any renewals, extensions, modifications, consolidations, and
replacements of such superior lien, now or after the date placed, charged and enforced against the
land or the Building. This provision will be self-operative, and no further instrument of
subordination will be required in order to effect it. In the event a current or future mortgage
holder requires a separate subordination agreement to be executed, the Tenant will, upon
Landlord’s request, execute same promptly provided that the terms of such subordination
agreement are reasonably acceptable to Tenant.

13.2  Tenant will, upon request of any person or party succeeding to the interest of Landlord,
automatically become the Tenant of and attorney to such successor in interest without change in
the terms or provisions of this Lease.

13.3  As long as the Tenant is in compliance with the terms of this Lease and is not in default in
the performance of its obligations under the Lease, the Tenant’s use and possession of the
Premises shall not be disturbed nor will the Lease be terminated by any person or party
succeeding to the Landlords’ interest.

ARTICLE 14: End of Term

At the need of this Lease, Tenant will act to ensure that its Subtenants promptly quit and
surrender the Premises in broom clean in good order and condition, reasonable wear and tear and
damage by the elements and casualty excepted. The Tenant will remove any remaining trade
fixtures, equipment, and furniture of its Subtenants and will fully repair any damage occasioned
by the removal of any trade fixtures, equipment, or furniture. All trade fixtures, equipment or
furniture, inventory, and effects, on the Premises after the end of the Term will be deemed
conclusively to have been abandoned and may be appropriated, sold, stored, destroyed, or
otherwise disposed of by Landlord without written notice to Tenant or to any other person and
without obligation to account for them. Tenant will pay Landlord for all expenses incurred in
connection with the removal of such property, including, but not limited to the cost of repairing
any damage to the Building or Premises caused by the removal of such property. Tenant’s
obligation to observe and perform this covenant will survive the expiration or other termination
of this Lease.




ARTICLE 15: Landlord’s Services

15.1 The Landlord will repair and maintain, at Landlord’s cost, the Common Areas (as such
term is defined in Article 17 below) of the Building, including, but not limited to, lobbies,
corridors, elevator cabs, stairwells and restrooms, the exterior of the windows in the Building,
the mechanical, plumbing and electrical equipment serving the Building, and the sidewalks,
parking lots, landscaping, grounds and structure of the Building in reasonably good order and
condition. Landlord shall keep sidewalks and parking lots free from rubbish, ice, and snow.
Landlord’s repair and maintenance of the Common Areas shall be consistent with similar
buildings in the Saratoga Springs, New York area.

15.2 Landlord shall wash the windows of the Premises at intervals reasonably established by
Landlord but at least one (1) time per calendar year.

15.3 Landlord shall replace all lamps, bulbs, starters, and ballasts in Building standard lighting
as required from time to time as a result of normal usage. Lighting replacement shall be done
during business hours.

15.4 Landlord shall provide automatic elevator service twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven
(7) days per week, except in the event of an emergency or during scheduled maintenance of the
same, of which Tenant shall be notified in advance.

15.5 The Landlord will furnish the Premises with those services customarily provided in
comparable office buildings in the vicinity of the Building, including (1) Heating, ventilation and
air conditioning between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and 9:00
a.m. through 1:00 p.m. on Saturday of each week except on legal holidays utilizing an overall
system that will be capable of maintaining (in areas of the Premises), during the cooling season,
inside space conditions of 70° to 72° and during the heating season, 68° to 70°F; (2) hot and cold
water in the Premises and Common Areas for lavatory and drinking purposes and (3) sewer
services. Landlord may provide but will not be obligated to provide, any such services on
holidays and Sundays.

15.6  The term “business hours” means 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. on Monday through Thursday
except the holidays (as that term is defined below), and 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Friday’s, except
holidays. The term “Holiday” is defined as United States Bank Holiday’s as published each year
by the Unted States Federal reserve. Landlord will issue to Tenant, at no initial cost to Tenant,
key fobs to each individual working in the premises on a fulltime basis for access to the Building
outside of business hours as defined above. Landlord is not responsible for lost and/or stolen fob
keys and will replace lost and/or stolen key fobs for a charge of $10.00 per key fob.

15.7 The Landlord’s services herein to be provided contemplate the uses customary and usual
in the conduct of a general business office operation. Specialized or extraordinary requirements
exceeding such normal services are not included.

ARTICLE 16; Common Areas




As used in this Lease, the term “Common Areas” means, without limitations, the lobbies,
corridors, elevator cabs, hallways, entryways, stairs, elevators, driveways, walkways, terraces,
docks, loading areas, restrooms, trash facilities, and all other areas and facilities in the Building
or land that are provided and designated from time to time by the Landlord for the general
nonexclusive use and convenience of Tenant with Landlord and other tenants of the Building or
land and their respective employees, invitees, licensees, or other visitors. The Landlord grants the
Tenant, its Subtenants, employees, invitees, licensees, and other visitors nonexclusive license for
the Term to use the Common Areas in common with others entitled to use the Common Areas,
subject to the terms and conditions of this Lease. Without advance written notice to the Tenant,
and without any liability to Tenant in any respect, provided Landlord will take no action
permitted under this Article 17 in such a manner as to materially impair or adversely affect
Tenant’s benefit, use and enjoyment of the Premises, Landlord will have a right to:

(@) Temporarily close any of the Common Areas for maintenance, alteration, or
improvement purposes; and
(b) Change the size, use, shape, or nature of any such Common Areas.

ARTICLE 17: Parking

17.1 Tenant will be entitled to use its proportionate share of the parking spaces around the
Building or in the land in common with the other tenants during the Term subject to the rules and
regulations set forth on Exhibit B, and any amendments or additions to them. The parking spaces
set for thein Exhibit C will be made available on a first-Come first-serve basis and will be
unassigned, non-reserved, and non-designated, except for those spaces which have been
designated exclusively as “Visitor Parking”, “Handicap Parking”. The parking spaces set forth in
Exhibit C1 will be assigned, reserved, and designated for the exclusive use of the Tenant, and in
particular Judges Dianne Freestone and Kathleen Hogan. Tenant’s said parking spaces set forth
in Exhibit C1 are labeled as parking spaces 5 and 17. The Tenant uses the parking spaces at its
own risk, and the Landlord will not be liable for loss or damage to any vehicle or any contents of
such vehicle or accessories to any such vehicle, or any property left in any of the parking areas.

17.2  Landlord will issue to Tenant, for use by its Subtenants and at no initial expense to
Tenant, parking permits for those employees working in the Building on a full-time basis and
two (2) overhead door openers. The parking permits shall be made visible from the rear view
mirror of each vehicle. Tenant and Subtenant vehicles parking in the spaces labeled “Permit
Parking Only” as shown on Exhibit C and described above must have a parking permit visible at
all times the vehicle is parked in the lot and must park vehicle head-in. Tenant is aware that the
parking lots are patrolled regularly 24/7 and non-compliant vehicles are towed at the owner’s
expense. Tenant is to instruct visitors, customers, and clients as well as vendors (collectively
“Visitors™) of the parking rules and regulations. In the event that no “Visitors™ spaces are
available, Tenant may issue to its Visitors a temporary day pass which permits such vehicle to
park in the permitted areas on Exhibit C (a “Temporary Day Pass™). A Temporary Day Pass must
indicate the Tenant’s name and the date and be displayed from the vehicles rearview mirror. The
Temporary Day Pass is only valid for the date written. Vehicles displaying an expired Day Pass
are subject to being towed. The overhead door opener is made available by Landlord for Tenant’s




use to access the parking spaces as shown in Exhibit C1 and described above. Landlord is not
responsible for lost or stolen parking permits and/or overhead door openers. Parking permits
and/or overhead door openers lost or stolen will be replaced by Landlord at a cost to Tenant of
$50.00 per parking permit and $150.00 per overhead door opener. Landlord reserves the right to
deny Tenant’s request for re-issuance of parking permits and/or overhead door openers if
Landlord deems Tenant to not be acting in good faith in such request; such right not be
unreasonably enacted by Landlord. Tenant will advise its Subtenants that said Subtenant shall be
subject to the provisions of this Paragraph and shall have the rights and obligations enumerated
for Tenant herein.

ARTICLE 18: Entry by Landlord

Landlord, its agents, employees, and contractors may enter the Premises: (1) at any time
in response to an emergency; or (2) with reasonable notice (but in no event less than twenty-four
(24) hours’ notice) otherwise to:

(@) Inspect the Premises;

(b) Exhibit the Premises to prospective purchasers, lenders, or tenants (if within the last
six (6) months of the Term);

(c) Determine whether the Tenant is complying with all its obligations under this Lease;

(d) Supply cleaning service and any other service to be provided by Landlord to Tenant
according to this Lease; or

(e) Make repairs required of Landlord under the terms of this Lease or make repairs to
any adjoining space or utility services or make repairs, alterations, or improvements
to any other portion of the Building.

Except in the case of emergency, Landlord shall provide seventy-two (72) hours’ notice
prior to a planned interruption in electrical, communication, water, or HVAC service.

Any permitted entrance and all such work pursuant to this Article will be done as
promptly as reasonable possible so as to cause as little interference to Tenant as
reasonably possible.

ARTICLE 19: Insurance
19.1 At all times during the Term, Landlord will carry and maintain:

(a) Fire and extended coverage insurance covering the Building, its equipment, Common
Area furnishings, and leasehold improvements in the Premises;

(b) Bodily injury and property damage insurance at full replacement cost; and

(c) Such other insurance as Landlord reasonably determines from time to time.

These insurance coverages and amounts will be reasonably determined by Landlord,
based on coverages carried by prudent owners of comparable buildings in the vicinity of
the Building.

19.2 At all times during the Term, Tenant will carry and maintain, at Tenant’s expense, the
following insurance, in the amounts specified below or such other amounts as Landlord may
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from time-to-time reasonably request, with insurance companies and on forms satisfactory to
Landlord:

(a) Bodily injury and property damage liability insurance, with a combined single
occurrence limit of not less than $1,000,000. All such insurance will be equivalent to
coverage offered by a commercial general liability form, including without limitation
personal injury and contractual liability coverage for the performance by Tenant of
the indemnity agreements set forth in Article 21 of this lease; and

(b) Worker’s Compensation Insurance satisfying Tenant’s obligations and liabilities under
the worker’s compensation laws of the State of New York, including employers’
liability insurance in the limits required by the laws of the State of New York.

19.3  Certificate of insurance, naming the Landlord as additional insured, will be delivered to
the Landlord prior to the Tenant’s occupancy of the Premises. All commercial general liability or
comparable policies maintained by Tenant will name Landlord as additional insured. All
commercial general liability and property policies maintained by Tenant will be written as
primary policies, not contributing with and not supplemental to the coverage that the Landlord

may carty.

19.4 The Landlord (and its affiliates, property managers and mortgagees) and Tenant (and its
affiliates) each waive any and all rights to recover against the other or against the officers,
directors, shareholders, partners, employees, agents, customers, invitees, or business visitors of
such other party, for any loss or damage to such waiving party and its property, the Premises, its
contents, or other portions of the Building or Common Areas arising from any cause covered by
any property insurance required to be carried by such party pursuant to this Article 20 or any
other property insurance actually carried by such party to the extent of the limits of such party.
The special form coverage insurance policies and worker’s compensation insurance policies
maintained by Landlord and Tenant as provided in this Lease shall include an endorsement
containing an express waiver of any rights of subrogation by the insurance company against
Landlord and Tenant, as applicable.

ARTICLE 20: Indemnification

Except for any injury or damage to persons or property on the Premises that is caused by
or results from the negligence or deliberate act of Landlord or Tenant, its employees, or agents,
and subject to the provisions of Paragraph 20.4, Tenant/Landlord will not hold each other, its
employees, or agents liable for, and Tenant and Landlord will indemnify and hold harmless each
other, its employees, and agents from and against, any and all demands, claims, causes of action,
fines, penalties, damages (including consequential damages), liabilities, judgment, and expenses
(including without limitation reasonable attorney’s fees) incurred in connection with or arising
from:

(a) The use or occupancy or manner of use or occupancy of the Premises by
Tenant/Landlord or any person claiming under Tenant/Landlord;

(b) Any activity, work, or thing done or permitted by Tenant/Landlord in or about the
Premises, the Building, or on the land on which the Building is situated.




(c) Any breach by Tenant/Landlord or its employees, agents, contractors, or invitees of
this Lease; and

(d) Any injury or damage to the person, property or business of Tenant/Landlord, its
employees, agents’ contractors, or invitees entering upon the premises under the
express or implied invitation of Tenant/Landlord.

ARTICLE 21: Damage and Destruction

21.1  If the Premises or the Building are damaged by fire or other insured casualty, Landlord
will give Tenant written notice of the time which will be needed to repair such damage, as
determined by Landlord in its reasonable discretion, and the election (if any) which Landlord has
made according to Article 21. Such notice will be given before the 30™ day (the “notice date”)
after the fire or other insured casualty.

21.2  If the Premises or Building are damaged by fire or other insured casualty to an extent
which may be repaired within 120 days after the notice date, as reasonably determined by
Landlord, Landlord will promptly begin to repair the damage after the notice date and will
diligently pursue the completion of such repair. In that event this Lease will continue in full force
and effect except that Monthly Base Rent and Additional Rent will be abated on a pro rate basis
from the date of the damage until the date of completion of such repairs (the “repair period”)
based on the proportion of the rentable area of the Premises Tenant is unable to use during the
repair period.

21.3  If the Premises or Building are damaged by fire or other insured casualty to an extent that
may not be repaired within 120 days after the notice date, as reasonably determined by Landlord,
then (1) Landlord may cancel this Lease as of the date of such damage by written notice given to
Tenant on or before the notice date, or (2) Tenant may cancel this Lease as of the date of such
damage by written notice given to Landlord within 10 days after Landlords delivery of a written
notice that the repairs cannot be made within such 120 day period. If neither Landlord nor Tenant
so elects to cancel this Lease, Landlord will diligently proceed to repair the Building and
Premises and Monthly Base Rent and Additional Rent will be abated on a pro rate basis during
the repair period based on the proportion of the rentable area of the Premises Tenant is unable to
us during the repair period.

21.4 Notwithstanding the provisions of Subparagraphs 22.1, 22.2, and 22.3 above, if the
Premises or the Building are damages by uninsured casualty, or if the proceeds of insurance are
insufficient to pay for the repair of any damage to the Premises or the Building, Landlord will
have the option to repair such damage or cancel this Lease as of the date of such casualty by
written notice to Tenant on or before the notice date.

21.5 If any such damage by fire or other casualty is the result of the willful conduct or
negligence or failure to act of Tenant, its agents, contractors, employees or invitees, there will be
no abatement of monthly rent as otherwise provided for in this Article 21. Tenant will have no
rights to terminate this lease on account of any damage to the Premises or the Building, except as
set forth in this Lease.

ARTICLE 22: Eminent Domain




If all of the Premises are taken by exercise of the power of eminent domain (or conveyed
by Landlord in lieu of such exercise) this Lease will terminate on a date (the “termination date’)
which is the earlier of the date upon which the condemning authority takes possession of the
Premises or the date on which title to the Premises is vested in the condemning authority. If 25 %
or more of the rentable area of the Premises is so taken, Tenant will have the right to cancel this
Lease by written notice to Landlord given within 20 days after the termination date. If less than
25% of the rentable are of the Premises is so taken, or if the Tenant does not cancel this Lease
according to the preceding sentence, the Monthly Base Rent and Additional Rent will be abated
in the proportion of the rentable area of the Premises so taken to the rentable area of the Premises
immediately before such taking, and Tenant’s share will be appropriately recalculated. If 25% or
more of the Building is so taken, Landlord may cancel this Lease by written notice to Tenant
given within 30 days after the termination date. In the event of any such taking, the entire award
will be paid to Landlord and Tenant will have no right or claim to any part of such award,
however, Tenant will have the right to assert a claim against the condemning authority in a
separate action, so long as the Landlord’s award is not otherwise reduced, for Tenant’s moving
expenses and leasehold improvements owned by Tenant.

ARTICLE 23: Default

23.1 The following events are referred to, collectively, as “events of default” or, individually
as an “Event of Default”:

(2) Tenant defaults in the due and punctual payment of rent, and such default continues
for 10 days after written notice from Landlord; however, Tenant will not be entitled to more than
1 written notice for monetary defaults during any 12-month period, and if after such written
notice any rent is not paid when due, an Event of Default will be considered to have occurred
without further notice;

(b) This Lease or the Premises or any part of the Premises are taken upon execution or by
other process of law directed against Tenant, or are taken upon or subject to any attachment is
not discharged or disposed of within 30 days after its levy;

(c) Tenant files a petition in bankruptcy or insolvency or for reorganization or
arrangement under the bankruptcy laws of the United States or under any insolvency act of any
state, or admits the material allegations of any such petition by answer or otherwise, or is
dissolved or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors;

(d) Involuntary proceedings under any such bankruptcy law or insolvency act or for the
dissolution of Tenant are instituted against Tenant, or a receiver or trustee is appointed for all or
substantially all of the property of the Tenant, and such proceeding is not dismissed, or such
receivership or trusteeship vacated within 60 days after such institution or appointment;

(e) Tenant breaches any of the other agreements, terms, covenants, or conditions that this
Lease requires Tenant to perform, and such breach continues for a period of 30 days after written
notice from Landlord to Tenant or, if such breach cannot be cured reasonably within such 30 day
period, if Tenant fails to diligently commence to cure such breach within 30 days after written .
notice from Landlord and to compete such cure within a reasonable time thereafter.

23.2 If any one or more Events of Default set forth in Subparagraph 24.1 occur then Landlord
has the right, at its election:
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(@) To give Tenant written notice of Landlord’s intention to terminate this Lease on the
earliest date permitted by law or on any after date specified in such notice, in which
case Tenant’s right to possession of the Premises will cease and this Lease will be
terminated, except as to Tenant’s liability;

(b) Without further demand or notice, to reenter and take possession of the Premises or
any part of the Premises, repossess the same, expel Tenant and those claiming through
or under Tenant, and remove the effects of both or either, using such force for such
purposes as may be necessary without prejudice to any remedies for arrears of
monthly rent or other amounts payable under this Lease; or

(c) Without further demand or notice to cure any event of default and to charge Tenant
for the cost of affecting such cure, including without limitation reasonable attorneys’
fees.

23.3 In addition to Landlord’s remedies pursuant to Subparagraph 24.3, Tenant shall pay to
Landlord as current liquidated damages the Monthly Base Rent and any other amounts payable
hereunder up to the time of termination.

23.4 The Tenant waives any right of redemption arising as a result of the Landlord’s exercise
of its remedies under this Article 24.

23.5 In the event of any default in the obligation of the Landlord under this Lease, Tenant will
deliver to Landlord written notice listing the reasons for Landlord’s default and Landlord will
have 30 days following receipt of such notice to cure default or, in the event the default cannot
reasonably be cured within a 30-day period, to commence action and proceed diligently to cure
such default. A copy of such notice to Landlord will be sent to any holder of a mortgage or other
encumbrance on the Building of which Tenant has been notified in writing, any such holder will
also have the same time periods to cure such default.

ARTICLE 24: Landlord Representations, Warranties and Covenants
24.1  Landlord represents warrants and covenants that:

(a) Landlord owns fee simple title to the Building, the Premises, and the land on which it
sits;

(b) Landlord has the full right, power, and authority to lease the Premises to Tenant as
provided in this Lease without any need for obtaining any consents or approvals from
any party, including, without limitation, any mortgagees or other entities;

(c) This Lease and all documents to be executed pursuant hereto by Landlord are binding
upon and enforceable against Landlord in accordance with their respective terms;

(d) The transaction contemplated hereby will not result in a breach of, or constitute a
default under, any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, loan agreement, or other
agreement to which Landlord or the Premises or the Building is subject or by which
Landlord or the Premises or the Building is bound;

(e) Landlord represents and warrants that the Premises and Building are zoned for
Tenant’s intended uses thereof; and




(f) The Building and the Premises are currently in compliance with all applicable, laws,
rules, statutes, codes, rules, regulations, and the like, including, without limitation, the
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended.

ARTICLE 25: Miscellaneous

25.1 The waiver by Landlord of any agreement, condition or provision contained in this Lease
will not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other agreement,
condition, or provision contained in this Lease, nor will any custom or practice that may grow up
between the parties in the administration of the terms of this Lease be construed to waive or to
lessen the right of Landlord to insist upon the performance by Tenant in strict accordance with
the terms of this Lease. The subsequent acceptance of rent by Landlord will not be deemed to be
a waiver of any preceding breach by Tenant or any agreements, condition, or provision of this
Lease, other than the failure of Tenant to pay the particular rent so accepted, regardless of
Landlord’s knowledge of such preceding breach at the time of acceptance of such rent.

25.2  Tenant shall not permit any mechanic’s or other lien or charge to be files against the
Premises or the Building by reason of any act or omission of Tenant or anyone holding the
Premises through or under Tenant. If any such mechanic’s or other lien or charge shall at any
time be filed against the Premises or Building, Tenant shall immediately cause the same to be
discharged of record, in default of which Landlord may, on fifteen (15) days’ prior written notice
to Tenant, discharge the same, and all reasonable costs and expenses, including attorneys’ fees,
incurred by Landlord in procuring such discharge shall be payable by Tenant to Landlord as
Additional Rent upon demand. ’

25.3  Tenant shall, upon thirty (30) days prior written request by Landlord, execute and deliver
to Landlord a written declaration: (1) ratifying this Lease; (2) expressing the commencement and
termination dates thereof; (3) certifying that this Lease is in full force and effect and has not been
assigned, modified, supplemented or amended (except by such writings as shall be stated); (4)
that all conditions under this Lease to be performed by Landlord have been satisfied; (5) that
there are no defenses, offsets or counterclaims against the enforcement of this Lease by
Landlord, or stating those claimed by Tenant; (6) the amount of advance rental, if any (or none if
such is the case) paid by Tenant; (7) the date to which rental has been paid; and (8) the amount of
security deposited with Landlord. Such declaration shall be executed and delivered by Tenant
from time to time as may be requested by Landlord in writing. Landlord’s mortgage lenders
and/or purchasers shall be entitled to rely upon same.

25.4  Tenant will have no right to remain in possession of all or any part of the Premises after
the expiration of the Term without the express consent of Landlord. If Tenant remains in
possession of any or all part of the Premises after the expiration of the Term, without the express
consent of Landlord: (a) such tenancy will be deemed to be a periodic tenancy from month-to-
month only; (b) such tenancy will not constitute a renewal or extension of this Lease for any
further term; and (c) such tenancy may be terminated by Landlord upon the earlier of 30 days
prior written notice or the earliest date permitted by law. In such event, Monthly Base Rent will
be increased to an amount equal to 150% of the monthly rent payable during the last month of
the Term, and any other sums due under this Lease will be payable in the amount and at times




specified in this Lease. Such month-to-month tenancy will be subject to every other term,
condition, and covenant contained in this Lease.

25.5 Any notice, request, demand, consent approval, or other communication required or
permitted under this Lease must be in writing and will be deemed to have been given when
personally delivered, sent by facsimile with receipt acknowledged, sent by email with receipt
acknowledged, deposited with any nationally recognized overnight carrier that routinely issues
receipts, or deposited in any depository regularly maintained by the United States Postal Service,
postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the party for whom it is
intended at its address set forth in this Lease. Tenant notice address shall be 40 McMaster Street,
Ballston Spa, New York 12020. Either Landlord or Tenant may add additional addresses or
change its address for purposes of receipt of any such communication by giving 10 days prior
written notice of such change to the other party in the manner prescribed in this Section 25.5.

25.6 If any provision of this Lease proves to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the
remainder of this Lease will not be affected by such finding, and in lieu of each provision of this
Lease that is illegal, invalid, or unenforceable a provision will be added as part of this Lease as
similar in terms to such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision as may be possible and be
legal, valid and enforceable.

25.7 No amendment, alteration, modification of, or addition to the Lease will be valid or
binding unless expressed in writing and signed by Landlord and Tenant. Tenant agrees to make
any modifications of the terms and provisions of this Lease required or requested by any lending
institution providing financing for the Building provided that no such modifications will
materially adversely affect Tenant’s rights and obligations under this Lease.

25.8 The terms of this Lease are considered confidential and the Tenant shall not disclose any
of the terms of this Lease to anyone except that: i) the Tenant shall make those disclosures in
financial statements which are customarily made or such disclosures as Tenant may be required
to make by perspective creditors of the Tenant, and ii) the Tenant shall be permitted to provide a
copy of this Lease to any Subtenant of Tenant.

25.9 This Lease, the exhibits, and addenda, if any, contain the entire agreement between
Landlord and Tenant. No promises or representations, except as contained in this Lease, have
been made to tenant respecting the condition or the manner of operating the premises or the
Building.

25.10 The covenants, conditions, and agreements contained in this Lease will bind and inure o
the benefit of Landlord and Tenant and their respective heirs, distributes, executors,
administrators, successors, and, except as otherwise provided in this Lease, their assigns.

25.11 Landlord and Tenant represent and warrant to each other that Gerard Wise of Roohan
Realty is the only broker associated with this Lease and no payment is due by Landlord to any
other broker, agent, or tenant representative.

25.12 Each party shall indemnify the other with respect to the claim of any other broker
alleging to have acted on behalf of the indemnifying party.




Landlord and Tenant have executed this Lease as of the day and year first written above.

APPROVED AS TO COUNTY OF SARATOGA (Tenant)
FORM AND CONTENT:
By: By:
County Attorney Theodore T. Kusnierz, Jr., Chair
Board of Supervisors
Pursuant to Resolution: -2023
Date:

\

Railroad Place Partners, L.P., (Landlord)

By:

Print Name:

Federal I.D. #

Date




EXHIBIT A




EXHIBITA

PREMISES

e Wb ompe e e s N s i M s s K

—— s 3

FLOOR FPLAN.
NS,
*7- 2,20 s
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1.

EXHIBIT B
RULES AND REGULATIONS

The rights of tenants in the entrances, corridors, elevators, and escalators of the Building
are limited to ingress to and egress from the tenant’s premises for the tenants and their
employees, licensees, and invitees, and no tenant shall use, or permit the use of the
entrances, corridors, escalators, or elevators for any other purpose. No tenant shall invite
to the tenant’s premises or permit the visit of persons in such numbers or under such
conditions as to interfere with the use and enjoyment of any of the plazas, entrances,
corridors, elevators, and other facilities of the Building by other tenants. Fire exits and
stairways are for emergency use only, and they shall not be used for any other purpose by
the tenants, their employees, licensees, or invitees. No tenant shall encumber or obstruct
or permit the encumbrance or obstruction of any of the sidewalks, plazas, entrances,
corridors, escalators, elevators, fire exits or stairways of the Building. The Landlord
reserves the right to control an operate the public portions of the Building and the public
facilities, as well as, facilities furnished for the common use of the tenants, in such
manner as it deems best for the benefit of the tenants generally.

The Landlord may refuse admission to the Building outside of ordinary business hours to
any person not known to the watchman in charge or not having a pass issued by the
Landlord or the tenant whose premises are to be entered or not otherwise properly
identified, and may require all persons admitted to or leaving the Building at any time
shall in the judgment of the Landlord, be prejudicial to the safety, character, reputation
and interests of the Building or its tenants may be denied access to the Building or may
be ejected therefrom. In case of invasion, riot, public excitement, or other commotion, the
Landlord may prevent all access to the Building during the continuance of the same, by
closing the doors or otherwise, for the safety of the tenants and protection of property in
the Building. The Landlord may require any person leaving the Building with any
package or other object to exhibit a pass from the tenant whose premises the package or
object is being removed, but the establishment and enforcement of such requirement shall
not impoée against the removal of property from the premises of the tenant. The Landlord
shall, in no way, be liable to any tenant for damages or loss arising from the admission,
exclusion, or ejection of any person to or from the Tenant’s premises or the Building
under the provisions of this rule. Canvassing, soliciting, or peddling in the Building is
prohibited and every tenant shall cooperate to prevent the same.

The cost of repairing any damage to the public portions of the Building or other public
facilities or to any facilities in common with other tenants, caused by a tenant or the
employees, licensees, or invitees of the tenant, shall be paid by such tenant.

No lettering, sign, advertisement, notice or object shall be displayed in or on the windows
or doors, or on the outside of any tenant’s premises, or at any point inside any tenant’s
premises where the same might be visible outside of such premises, except that the name
of the tenant may be displayed on the entrance door of the tent’s premises, and in the
elevator lobbies of the floors which are occupied entirely by any tenant, subject to the
approval of the Landlord as to the size, color, and style of such display which approval




shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed, or conditioned. The inscription of the name
of the tenant on the door of the tenant’s premises shall be done by the tenant at the
expense of the tenant. Listing the name of the tenant on the directory boards in the
Building shall be done by the Landlord at Landlord’s expense, any other listing shall be at
the discretion of the Landlord. '

. No awning or other projections over or around the windows shall be installed by any
tenant, and only such window blinds as are reasonably permitted by the Landlord shall be
used in a tenant’s premises. Any floor covering shall be laid in a tenant’s premises only in
a manner approved by the Landlord.

The Landlord shall have the right to prescribe the weight and position of safes and other
objects of excessive weight, and no safe or other object whose weight exceeds the lawful
load for the area upon which it would stand shall be brought into or kept under a tenant’s
premises. If, in the judgment of the Landlord, it is necessary to distribute the concentrated
weight of heavy objects, the work involved in such distribution shall be done at the
expense of the tenant and in such manner as the Landlord shall determine. The moving of
safes and other heavy objects shall take place only outside of ordinary business hours
upon previous notice to the Landlord, and the persons employed to move the same in and
out of the Building shall be reasonably acceptable to the Landlord, and, if so, required by
law, shall hold a Master Rigger’s license. Freight, furniture, business equipment,
merchandise and bulky matter of any description shall be delivered to and removed from
the premises only in the freight elevators and through the service entrances and corridors
and only during hours and in a manner reasonably approved by the Landlord.
Arrangements will be made by the Landlord with any tenant for moving large quantities
of furniture and equipment into or out of the Building.

. No machinery or mechanical equipment, other than ordinary portable business machines,
may be installed or operated in any tenants premises without Landlords poor written
consent, and in no case (even where the same are of a type so excepted or as so consented
to by the Landlord) shall any machines or mechanical equipment be so placed or operated
as to disturb other tenants; but machines and mechanical equipment which may be
permitted to be installed in a tenant’s premises shall be so equipped, installed, and
maintained by such tenant as to prevent any disturbing noise, vibration, or electrical or
other interference from being transmitted from such premises to any other area of the
Building.

. Nothing shall be done or permitted in any tenant’s premises, and nothing shall be brought
into or kept in any tenant’s premises, which would impair or interfere with any of the
Building services or the proper and economic heating, cleaning, or other servicing of the
Building or the premises, or the use or enjoyment by any other tenant of any other
premises, nor shall there be installed by any tenant any ventilating, air-conditioning,
electrical or other equipment of any kind which, in the judgment of the Landlord, might
cause any such impairment or interference. No dangerous, inflammable, combustible or
explosive object or material shall be brought into the Building by any tenant or with the
permission of any tenant.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

No acids, vapors, or other materials shall be discharged or permitted to be discharged into
the water lines, vents or flues of the Building which may damage them. The water and
wash costs and other plumbing fixtures in or serving any tenants’ premises shall not be
used for any purpose other than the purposes for which they were designed or
constructed, and no sweepings, rubbish, rags, acids, or other foreign substances shall be
deposited therein.

No additional locks or bolts of any kind shall be placed upon any of the doors or
windows in any tenant’s premises, and no lock on any door therein shall be changed or
altered in any respect without the written approval of Landlord, not to be unreasonably
withheld. Additional keys for a tenant’s premises and toilet rooms shall be procured only
from the Landlord, which may make a reasonable charge, therefore. Upon the termination
of a tenant’s lease, all keys of the tenant’s premises and toilet room (if locked to public)
shall be delivered to the Landlord.

All entrance doors in each tenant’s premises shall be left closed. Entrance doors shall not
be left open at any time.

Hand trucks not equipped with rubber tires and side guards shall not be used within the
Building.

The entire Building including the Demised Premises, and all interior common areas are
designated “smoke free” areas such that no smoking of any type will be allowed therein
or thereon.

The Landlord reserves the right to rescind, alter, or waive any rue or regulation at any
time prescribed for the Building when, in its reasonable judgement, it deems it necessary,
desirable, or proper for its best interest and for the best interest of the tenants, and no
alteration or waiver of any rule or regulation in favor of one tenant shall operate as an
alteration or waiver in favor of any other tenant. The Landlord shall not be responsible to
any tenant for the non-observance or violation by any other tenant of any of the rules and
regulations at any time prescribed for the Building.

If in the case of any conflict between the terms of this Exhibit B and the Lease to which
it is attached, the terms of the Lease shall control.
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